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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Harmonicare Medical Holdings
Limited, | would like fo express my sincere gratitude to all our Shareholders
as well as all walks from the society for their support to the Group. 2015
witnessed great changes in China's policy and market environment in the
healthcare indusiry. On the one hand, there was further national invigoration
and support leading fo rapid growth in private medical institutions. On the
other hand, the fraditional Chinese concept towards the Year of Ram
brought adverse impact on the obstefrics service market which the Group is
operating in, presenfing great challenges to our operating performance.
Despite the said temporary adverse effects, the Group made fimely and
appropriate adjustment in its operating strategy after meticulous analysis and
sought new drivers fo the growth of our business. As such, the Group has
maintained steady growth in the overall operating performance and is well-
positioned fo embrace the coming of 20106, the Year of Monkey, and the
significant development opportunities from the overall implementation of the

national two-child policy.

last year was a year full of challenges. During the vear, the Group's
operafing performance was impaired by the adverse effects on the obstetrics
service market in general due fo the Year of Ram, the impact of the
renovation and upgrade of several existing hospitals as well as the relatively
large amount of one-off listing expenses incurred during the year. Therefore,
during the Review Period, the Group recorded a revenue of RMBQ09.4
million, representing a decrease of 2.8% as compared with the
Corresponding Period, while the profit atiributable to Shareholders was
RMB106.2 million, representing a YoY growth of 2.7%. Moreover,
benefiting from the Company’s measures on strict cost confrol and
maximisation of bed utilisation, the total gross profit margin of the Group
increased fo 50.7% during the Review Period (the Corresponding Period:
50.5%). With an adequate cash reserve and significant cash flows and
advance payments generated from operafing activities of the Group, the
Board recommended a dividend equivalent to 40% of the net profit for the
year affributable to equity holders of the Company, representing a final
dividend of RMB5.5 cents per Share for the financial year 2015, with a

view to bringing continuous and stable returns fo all our Shareholders.
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
FRE®E (R

In 2015, through objective analysis of the market trend and in-depth
research on customer demand, the Group made every endeavour fo
minimise the adverse effect of the Year of Ram on the obsfefrics service
segment while further explored other associated and alternafive services
including postpartum care services and pediatric care services. Meanwhile,
the Group timely brought forward the renovation and upgrading of its
existing hospitals, including Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital, VWuhan Modem
Hospital, Chongging Modem Woman Hospital and Guiyang Modern
Woman Hospital which has effectively improved the healthcare management
and services provision capability of each hospital. The Group has further
speeded up its enhancement of its information technology system to cope
with the demand of the mobile intemet era, laying a good foundation for
2016.

In the new year, with the arrival of the Year of Monkey, as well as the full
implementation of the two-child policy across the PRC and the gradual
emerging policy effect, we will seize favourable market opportunities and
further consolidate and enhance our leading position among the peers. With
regard to our overall development strategy, the Group will continue fo focus
on the specialised obstefrics service sector, and conduct rapid and
standardised mulfiplying expansion and mergers and acquisitions for industry
consolidation to provide highend obstefrics services in first and secondHier
cities in the PRC. In terms of business chain, the Group will quy take
advantage of ifs existing customer resources, expert physicians and national
distribution nefwork fo engage in active expansion and infernational
cooperation along the upstream and downstream value chain covering “test-
tube” baby, genefic festing, postpartum care centre and other associated
postpartum value-added services, and mobile infernet medical care, so as to
create new business growth drivers. In terms of business cooperation model
and falent training, the Group will further enhance strategic cooperation with
well-known medical universities and research institutions locally and abroad
in order to continuously strengthen its medical techniques and corporate
competitiveness. Meanwhile, the Group will atfract and train more excellent
medical experts and management falents, so as to provide strong personnel
support for the Group 1o build new hospitals, conduct acquisitions and

expansions, and engage in industrial consolidation going forward.

looking forward, the Group will continue to focus on high- and mid-end
customers and build differentiation advantages amidst market competition. In
this flourishing healthcare indusiry with prosperous development, the Group
will seize the historic development opportunities to build Harmonicare info
the world’s largest and influenfial high-end obsfetrics and gynecology
specialty hospital chain, providing continuous high-quality healthcare
services to our customers and bringing longterm stable and rewarding

returns fo all our Shareholders!
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

To achieve the grand goals above, on behalf of the Board, I would liketo & 7T ER LMl EREEZ RERKRES

extend my sincere thanks 1o all our customers, pariners, Shareholders and & @ AL B EFNFARTE S 1EBHE
employees. With your participation and support, Harmonicare will certainly ~ 282 % B M2 82 8 T B LA RO B R o
embrace a better future! BETHEMO2EMIZFE MEXBEMNHA

R—EGEMEL!

Lin Yuming xE
Chairman ME

Beijing, 23 March 2016 bR - 201653 423 H



MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BEEEBNWE DTN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Business Overview for 2015

In 2015, facing the challenges from the domestic economic downturn and
under the material and adverse impact of the Year of Ram on the obsfetrics
business segment, we sfrictly abide by the national industrial policy of
healthcare and the intemational standards  promulgated by the Joint
Commission International (JCI") as always to confinuously provide high-
quality healthcare services fo the customers. Meanwhile, by leveraging our
brand influence as a lisled group and our comprehensive competitive
strengths, we proactively took multiple measures to deal with the shortterm
downturn in the market. We stood against periodic industrial adversity and
achieved relatively stable operafing performance. Furthermore, we are well
prepared for rapid development in the coming years in the aspects of
hospital hardware upgrades, internal software replacement and professional

talent resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In 2015, tofal number of outpatient visits af the 11 hospitals owned by the
Group was 601,723 (2014: 660,173), representing a YoY decrease of
8.9%, which was due to the reduction of baby delivery in the obstetrics
segment, the impact of upgrade and renovation of four hospitals, namely
Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital, Wuhan Modemn Hospital, Chongging
Modern Woman Hospital and Guiyang Modern Woman Hospital, on
outpatient visits, as well as the growth of inpatient visits driven by other
associated business such as postpartum care services developed through
ufilising available beds. The inpatient visits reached 25,668 (2014:
24,773), representing a YoY increase of 3.6%, with the average spending
per visit growing by 6.2% YoY to RMB1,393.4. In terms of new business
development, in order fo better facilitate the extension of business and speed
up the vertical integration along the value chain, the Group established the
investment development department which focuses especially on site
selection for new hospitals and negotiation on acquisition of target hospital,
ancillary reproductive programs, and genetic festing and freatment efc. In
2015, the Company completed the following sfrategic cooperation with
three companies in Thailand, Hong Kong and Shenzhen: (1) the promotion
and expansion of the in vitro fertilization ("IVF" or commonly known as “fest
tube baby”) freatment business in the PRC; (2] the development and
implementation of advanced genetic testing business; and (3) the upgrading
of network information technology and media services and seffing up of

"intelligent” hospitals.

We took the Group's IPO as an opportunity for confinuous enhancement of
cenfral management system of the Group and improvement of our operating
and markefing capabilities. We organized marketing events such as the
"Guinness World Records of Prenatal Yoga Competition” and  China
Mothers and Infants Health Promotion Campaign, which greoﬂ\/ increased
our brand owareness while strictly controlled the markefing cost. In
accordance with our plans for listing, we actively promoted our information
system infrastructure, upgraded our hospital business system and launched
our "HarMoniCare Cloud (F13£2)" management plafform.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRED (&)

In respect of centralized purchase to reduce costs, our procurement platform
Tai He Tang which is a subsidiary of the Group joined hands with the
Group’s logistics department to improve our logistics system. On the one
hand, we strengthened the supervision over each hospital’'s medical devices
procurement process and proportion, enhanced pre-purchase assessment
and analysis, and further reduced the relevant cost with higher efficiency; on
the other hand, benefiting from the listed group’s market position and brand
influence, Tai He Tang entered into a sfrategic cooperation agreement with
GE Medical Systems Trade & Development (Shanghai) Co., ltd, a key and
dominant player of the infernational medical industry, in order to develop the
market for medical devices provided by private medical institutions. This will
not only further reduce Harmonicare's procurement costs for medical devices
in the future, but also broaden Tai He Tang's revenue sources as a new

profit growth driver.

The Group smoofh|y went Through this exfreme|y cho”enging year and has
fully positioned itself for the Year of Monkey and for the full implementation
of the two-child policy in China. In 2015, Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital
conducted overall renovation and reconstruction of its child care area. Affer
renovation, the 15 newly established postpartum care rooms have been put
info use in the first quarter of 2016. Moreover, for several established
existing hospitals, the Group also had part of them upgraded and
reconstructed fo promote business fransformation with an emphasis on high-
end obsfetrics service. During 2015, Wuhan Modern Hospital renovated
and reconstructed its outpatient rooms, wards and operating theatres, while
Chongging Modern Woman Hospital renovated its outpatient rooms and
Guiyang Modemn VWoman Hospital renovated and reconstructed its external
walls, operating theatres and transfusion rooms. Such efforts laid a solid
foundation for the Group to consolidate its leading position in the high-end
obstefrics service market, to welcome the Year of Monkey, and to be ready
for the peak of childbirths to be brought about by the two-child policy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Industry Outlook and the Group's Strategy

With the elimination of adverse impacts upon the obstetrics segment from the
Year of Ram, the arrival of the Year of Monkey, the release of the nation-
wide twochild policy and its gradual implementation, as well as the
growing demand for private high-end medical care services, China's
obstefrics and child care service market, especially the highend segment,
will embrace significant growth potential in the following two to three years.
Benefiting from the favorable policy and substantial market potential, in
2016, we will on the one hand proactively speed up the upgrade and
reconsfruction of existing hospitals such as Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital,
Guangzhou Woman Hospital, and Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare
Hospital, equipping them with improved child care focilities and expanded
service scope of medical care, and prominent high-end obsetrics and child
care to meet the custfomers’ new demand; on the other hand, we will fasten
the construction of new hospitals and merger and acquisition with external
parties, to build Harmonicare high-end women's and children’s hospitals in
Beijing and Xiamen, and fo seek for proper target for acquisition in the tier-1
and fier2 core cities. Meanwhile, we will actively explore to conduct
mergers and acquisitions projects via the industrial mergers and acquisitions
fund and to improve Harmonicare's business presence through new business
models including cooperative enfrusted management efforts with public
hospitals so as to obfain greater influence. In addition, we will expand
business along the obstefrics value chain covering new business with more
added value including ancillary reproductive programs, gene screening,
postpartum recovery, body firming and facial beauty care efc. in order to
further consolidate our leading position, and enhance our competitive

strengths and profitability.

Meanwhile, we will continuously improve and upgrade the Group's
information fechnology system to fully implement the application of
"HarMoniCare Cloud (F1Z€2)" in the Group and in each of ifs hospitals,
sef up a remote medicare platform to share expert resources and professional
technology, enforce the supply capacity of Tai He Tang, and enhance
infernal centralized procurement proportion and sales competence to further
improve Tai He Tang's sales revenue and further reduce the overall

procurement cosfs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B E WD (&)

Apart from these, we will continue to enhance our management capabilities,
actively promote the progress of JCI certification of Beijing HarMoniCare
Hospifo|, and facilitate the quo|i1‘y improvement of other hospito\s' medical
care. By leveraging the brand marketing campaigns, we will put more efforts
in recruiting and training of talents, and strengthen cooperation and
exchanges with medical institutes and medical groups at home and abroad,
with the aim fo raising the Harmonicare brand influence and comprehensive

competitiveness while ensuring the steady growth of the Group's revenue.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In spite of the domestic economic downturn and the temporary negative
impact of the Year of Ram, the Group achieved stable operafing
performance. During the Review Period, the Group recorded a revenue of
RMBQ09.4 million, which remained relatively stable with a slight decrease
of 2.8% as compared with that of RMB935.8 million in the Corresponding
Period (including the revenue of RMB24.04 million of Shenyang
HarMoniCare which we divested in August 2014). The revenue from the
provision of hospital services accounted for 96.1% of the tofal revenue of the
Group in the Review Period, which basically maintained at a stable level as
compared with 96.0% for the Corresponding Period. During the Review
Period, the Group's tofal gross profit margin increased to 50.7% |the
Corresponding Period: 50.5%). During the Review Period, adjusted net profit
attributable to Shareholders was RMB135.54 million [excluding the one-off
listing expenses in an amount of RMB24.73 million and the share option
expenses in an amount of RMB4.64 million incurred in 2015), representing
an increase of 22.4% from the adjusted net profit attributable to Shareholders
of RMB110.77 million (excluding the one-off listing expenses in an amount
of RMB7.39 million incurred in 2014) in 2014. The unadjusted net profit
afttributable to Shareholders (including the one-off listing expenses and the
share opfion expenses incurred in 2015) for the Review Period was
RMB106.17 million, representing an increase of 2./% as compared with
the unadjusted net profit aftributable to Shareholders of RMB103.38 million
for the Corresponding Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Segment Revenue

We generate revenue primarily from the following two sources: (i) providing
inpatient and outpatient healthcare services at our hospitals located in the
PRC, including fees for healthcare services, pharmaceuticals and medical
devices; and [ii] supplying of pharmaceuticals and medical devices fo
external customers and related companies by our subsidiary Tai He Tang.
The segment revenue generated by fransactions between Tai He Tang and
our hospitals is recorded as infersegment revenue and eliminated affer

consolidation.

Provision of hospital services

The Group has 11
mainly provide gynecologic, obstefric and pediatric services. The revenue of

obstefrics and gynecology specialty hospitals which

hospital services primarily includes providing inpatfient and outpatient
healthcare services at our hospitals located in the PRC, including fees for
P 9

healthcare services, pharmaceuticals and medical devices. The followin

P 9
fable sefs forth the revenue, cost of sales and services, gross profit and gross
profit margin of the Group's provision of hospital services segment for the
periods indicated:
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BERY 2ERBERE ZRaRBE
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FroREAfm e Y es - HE RIRBRA - EF

FESVIESE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2015 2014

(RMB’000) (RMB'000)

AR®T ) (AR FT)

Revenue &y 874,233 898,425!
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR KA 425,254 437,996
Gross profit EF 448,979 460,429
Gross profit margin EF = 51.4% 51.2%

Note:

1. The revenue in 2014 included revenue of RMB24.04 million from Shenyang
HarMoniCare which we divesfed in August 2014.

Mo
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEE N wE D (&)

Revenue from the Group's provision of hospital services segment reached
RMB874.2 million in the Review Period, accounted for 96.1% of our total
revenue and represenfed a decrease of 2.7% over the revenue of
RMB898.4 million for the Corresponding Period. Revenue from the Group's
provision of hospital services segment in the Review Period almost remained
unchanged as compared fo that of 2014 which amounted to RMB874.4
million after excluding the revenue of RMB24.04 million from Shenyang
HarMoniCare that we divested in 2014. The following table sefs forth
certain key operational information of the Group for the periods indicated:

7 B B AR A KEI S B AR 7% o0 &P W s
iﬁJAE%SM? G R E A Y
B[R A s }\EMSQSM TT T &
2474 CHIBRER2014FER Z BB XN
Wa ARB2 4048 L& - REIEHRE - K
EEERRBYMKERARKES744(E
JT E2014F M EARFEF - TRETIH
THRASRENETIREEEEHR

Year ended 31 December’
BZ12A318LEE'

2015 2014

Outpatient visits B AVNN 601,723 660,173
Inpatient visits EB R (AR) 25,668 24,773
Average spending per visit (RMB)? BR2ETHKRE (AR T’ 1,393.4 1,311.7
Number of registered beds at the end of BEHEELTHRAEAE

each period 842 842
Number of beds in operation at the end of BHREERKEE

each period 561 561
Number of employees at the end of ZHEEEHE

each period 3,113 3,145
Number of employee physicians af the end of % 4% & fz BE AT & B °

each period® 255 287
Number of contract physicians af the end of ~ FHIR AR EEME A *

each period* 224 202

Note:

1. The figures disclosed in above table include the aggregate figures from the 11
hospitals owned by the Group.

2. Average spending per visit is calculated by dividing our hospital services
revenue by fotal patient visits.

3. Employee physicians refer to the physicians who practice at one of our
hospitals as our employees and entered info employment contracts with us.

4. Confract physicians refer to the physicians who are employees or refirees of

other third-party hospitals. They practice at one of our hospitals fulltime or part-
fime on a confractual basis. We enfered into service confracts instead of
employment confracts with them.

5

. LRFAFESREREREEMBNIIRE
Brry @ R 8UE -

2. BRDEFHKERSRRE KRN
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

During the Review Period, the number of outpatient visits at our 11 hospitals
was 601,723, representing a decrease of 8.9% as compared with that of
660,173 for the Corresponding Period, which was caused by the decline
of the number of prenatal examinations resulting from the decrease in the
number of deliveries, the impact of renovation of several hospifals on
outpatient visits, as well as the growth of inpatient visits driven by other
associated business such as postpartum care service ufilising the available
beds. Our inpatient visits reached 25,668 during the Review Period,
representing an increase of 3.6% as compared with that of 24,773 for the
Corresponding Period. The following table sets forth the revenue and gross
profit as well as cerfain key operational information of our five largest

hospitals for the periods indicated:

EEE R RS i ()

REEHRE REMOGE TRERNE
BRAZ TR 2XEREEIELHMIZE
VB URFESNBRERCARAF
RBEENTEEBT RO ERENIER 1)
KERFIZ AR BO01,723)% - B A H#)
660,173 T F£8.9% : 7 [0 B #3 fE (£ Br AR
FERI25608 AR - B[R EIE 24,773 ARG
£3.6%° TREI M RNHEHMIAKRE
el EMRETIBELEER

Year ended 31 December
HZ12R310LFE

Average spending
Revenue Gross Profit Outpatient visits Inpatient visits per visit !
Wit 7 MZAR ERAR HRGE'
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(RMB'000) [RMB'000) (RMB'000) [RMB'000) (RMB) [RVB]
(AR% (AR% (AR® (AE% (AR® (AR®
T ) i) Fi) ) L)
Beijing HoéloniCare 3L RANZE
Hospital 153,650 178,683 73,034 97,426 63,648 75838 2,043 2,558 2,339 2,279
Chongging Modern BERR
Woman Hospitol 135,222 135,644 71,074 69,923 99,972 95,864 5078 4,526 1,287 1,351
Guangzhou Women M % FBR
Hospital 110,673 109,309 62,960 61,257 76,005 77910 4,683 4,206 1,372 1,331
Shenzhen HaMoniCare - 3IFIZE
Hospital 97,360 70,153 48,212 21,958 37,169 27,250 1,271 1,020 2,533 2,482
Wuhan Modem Hospitol B2 81,007 85,361 40,786 49,292 68,745 69,369 2,864 3,082 1,131 1,178
Note: P&
1. Average spending per visit is calculated by dividing our hospital services 1. BRZEFHRERE R RSB RGNR

revenue by fotal patient visits.

5355 A 8 B3 1S o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B E R R AT ()

Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices

The Group's revenue from the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical
devices was primarily derived from the sales of pharmaceuticals and
medical devices to our external customers and related companies. During
the Review Period, the Group's revenue from the supply of pharmaceuticals
and medical devices was RMB35.13 million (the Corresponding Period:
RMB37.41 million). This business segment accounted for 3.9% of our fotal
revenue for the Review Period, which was insignificant to our fotal revenue.

Gross Profit

During the Review Period, the Group's tofal gross profit amounted fo
RMB460.81 million, which was relatively stable as compared with
RMB472.35 million for the Corresponding Period. During the Review
Period, the total gross profit margin increased to 50.7% [the Corresponding
Period: 50.5%), reflecting a slightly higher operational efficiency of the
Group.

Other Income

During the Review Period, other income increased to RMB13.09 million, an
increase of RMB12.12 million as compared with RMB965,000 for the
Corresponding Period, primarily affributable to the increase in inferest

income from bank deposifs.

Other Gains and Losses

During the Review Period, other gains amounted to RMB22.48 million, as
compared with other losses of RMB892,000 for the Corresponding Period,
primarily due to the foreign exchange gains of RMB22.20 million, which is
mainly for the foreign currencies from IPO proceeds, recorded by the Group

during 2015.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the Review Period, selling and distribution expenses increased by 0.5%
from RMB217.2 million in the Corresponding Period to RMB218.2 million,

which remained relatively stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Administrative Expenses

During the Review Period, administrative expenses amounted fo RMB109.61
million, representing an increase of RMB4.06 million as compared with that
of RMB105.55 million for the Corresponding Period. The increase was
mainly due fo odditional consulting service fees, employee share option
expenses and increase of stoff remuneration, as well as the decrease of
trademark royalty received in 2015 as compared with the Corresponding
Period.

Other Expenses

During the Review Period, other expenses amounted to RMB26.62 million
[mainly consisting of listing expenses of RMB24.73 million, and seftlement
payment for medical disputes and provision for pending medical disputes of
RMB1.45 million) as compared with that of RMB9.87 million for the
Corresponding Period (mainly consisting of listing expenses of RMB7.39
million and settlement payment for medical dispute and provision for pending
medical disputes of RMB2.14 million), representing a YoY increase of
RMB16.75 million. The increase was mainly due fo the increased listing

expenses following the IPO in July 2015.

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense decreased by RMB2.63 million from RMB34.20
million in the Corresponding Period to RMB31.57 million during the Review
Period, mainly due fo the offset of the increase in the current income fax
expense of RMB2.07 million by the decrease in the deferred income tax
expense of RMB4.70 million.

EEENWRED (&)

1T BB X

REEHE AEEEENTERAIRA
R#109061 87 BRAMAHARE 10,555
BULEMT ARKLI0608 T TEHRL
0155 RFAMMBAARGE S THE
BURBITHMEM BREREERD
KR -

Hitt & H

REBEHHE EMEBRARXAARE
2602B (T EBRLELTERBARE
24738 BEAUMBEERRRRE
BUNREERGHARBI4587T) - R
HWEMBERSARARKOS/ETL(EE
BRETERBARK7OBT BEAD
REBARRRBEMOHEFEERLTA
R¥E21487T) - AL A EMARE
16758 L TERBE2015F7A LT
FXIIi& B B B IATE -

FrEREH

REBEHE ERERSARES157
B BRHHARES 4208 TH D A
R¥20387T TEHREHMEGHER
Bz ARB2078 THERMBHER
WO ANREA7OB TP -



.l 8 | Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B E R R AT ()

Net Profit

During the Review Period, the unadjusted nef profit atiributable fo
Shareholders was RMB106.17 million, an increase of 2.7% from
RMB103.38 million for the Corresponding Period. If the oneoff listing
expenses of RMB24.73 million and the share option expenses of RMB4.64
million were excluded, the adjusted net profit attributable to Shareholders
was RMB135.54 million, representing an increase of 22.4% as compared
with that of RMB110.77 million for the Corresponding Period.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Inventories

As at 31 December 2015, the balance of inventories increased by
RMB2.42 million to RMB22.25 million (31 December 2014: RMB19.83
million), primarily due to the increase in pharmaceuticals inventories in

certain hospifals.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2015, the balance of trade receivables increased by
RMB24.24 million over the Corresponding Period to RMB38.09 million (31
December 2014: RMB13.85 million), primarily due fo an increase in frade
receivables of RMB24.85 million driven by the external sales of

pharmaceuticals and medical devices by Tai He Tang.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Trade and Other Payables

As af 31 December 2015, the balance of trade payables increased by
RMB12.13 million, or 74.1% to RMB28.49 million (31 December 2014:
RMB16.36 million), mainly affributable to an increase of RMB12.57 million
in frade payables by Tai He Tang at the end of 2015.

The Group's balance of other payables increased to RMB134.25 million as
at 31 December 2015, which mainly included advances received from
customers of RMB95.95 million and staff remuneration payables of
RMB28.87 million. As at 31 December 2014, balance of other payables
was RMB113.72 million, which primarily included advances received from
customers of RMB72.69 million and staff remuneration payables of
RMB29.44 million. The resuling YoY increase of RMB20.53 million or
18.1% was mainly due fo the increase in membership deposit and hospital
deposit of RMB23.27 million [or 32.0%) included in advances received

from customers.

Net Current Assets Position

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's net current assefs were RMB1.141
billion (31 December 2014: net current liabilities of RMB314.7 million),
which was mainly due fo the net proceeds of RMB1.1171 billion raised

from the IPO in 2015 and repayment of the balance of related parties of
RMB300 million in 2014,
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B E R R AT ()

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following sets forth the information in relation to our Group's

consolidated statement of cash flows during the periods indicated:

B MR E SRR

KT8 AEERI RN EAR
SREBRENER :

Year ended 31 December
HZ12B31HLEE
2015 2014
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(ARE®ETT) (AR®BFT)

Net cash generated from operating activiies — #& & E B TSR & 558

Net cash (used in) generated from investing & & &) (FTA) AT & 558

activities

Net cash generated from (used in) financing B &EBNFTS (FT ) IR & F 58

activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R MRS FEWILINFR

125,394 189,444
(407,248) 20,584

1,096,767 (148,717)
814,913 61,311

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

During the Review Period, the net cash generated from operating activities
was RMB125.39 million, primarily atiributable to (i) profit before taxation of
RMB141.97 million, as adjusted to reflect non-cash items, which principally
included depreciation of property, plant and equipment of RMB35.17
million and foreign exchange gains of RMB22.20 million; (i) o decrease in
amounts of RMB24.36 million resulting from the increase in trade
receivables; (iii) a decrease of RMB13.67 million resulting from the increase
of prepayments, deposits and other receivables; (iv)] an increase of
RMB20.57 million resulting from the increase in other payables and
accruals; and [v) income tax paid of RMB25.39 million in 2015.

KREEBREREFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Net Cash (Used in) Generated from Investing
Activities

During the Review Period, the net cash used in investing activities was
RMB407.25 million, primarily attributable to (i) the payment for acquisition
of additional plants amounting to RMB14.14 million incurred by certain
hospitals for operation expansion, including RMB6.22 million for Chongging
Modern Woman Hospital and RMBZ.92 million for Tai He Tang; (ii] the
improvements of hospitals amounting to RMB35.36 million, mainly including
RMB13.28 million for Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital, RMB6.36 million for
Chongging Modern Woman Hospital, RMBZ.26 million for VWWuhan Modem
Hospital and RMB5.62 million for Guiyang Modern VWoman Hospital; (i)
the purchase of trademark in the amount of RMB33.20 million; (iv] the
purchase of investment producis in the amount of RMB384.42 million; and (v)
the redemption of investment products in the amount of RMB71.41 million.
Net Cash Generated from (Used in) Financing
Activities

During the Review Period, the net cash generated from financing activities
was RMB1.0968 billion, which was primarily attributable to (i) the net
proceeds from issue of new shares by public offering amounting to
RMB1.1171 billion (nef of related share issue expense amounting fo
RMB43.97 million); (i) RMB277 .4 million paid to Bosheng Medical by the
Group in consideration of acquiring the equity inferests of HarMoniCare
Management and Consulting; and (iii] cash of RMB259.3 million
contributed by the capital injection from shareholders of offshore companies.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals

As at 31 December 201

investments.

5, the Group did not have any significant

During the Review Period, the Group had no material acquisitions or

disposals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B E WD (&)

Capital Expenditures

Our capifal expenditures principally consist of expenditures in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, improvements of our hospitals
and offices and trademark royalty. The amount of capital expenditures of the
GCroup was approximately RMB82.7 million during the Review Period,
representing an increase of RMB59.53 million as compared with that of
RMB23.17 million for the Corresponding Period. The increase was primarily
due to (i) the payment for acquisitions of office and warehouse amounting fo
RMB14.14 milion namely RMB6.22 million for Chongging Modemn
Woman Hospital and RMB7.92 million for Tai He Tang; (i) the renovations
of hospitals amounting to RMB35.36 million, namely RMB13.28 million for
Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital, RMB6.36 million for Chongging Modemn
Woman Hospital, RMB7.26 million for Wuhan Modern Hospital and
RMBS5.62 million for Guiyang Modern Woman Hospital; [iii) the purchase
of trademarks from Bosheng Medical in the amount of RMB33.20 million.

Use of Proceeds from IPO

With reference to the use of proceeds disclosed in the Prospectus, the Board
is closely monitoring the use of proceeds from the IPO, and confirms that
there was no material change in the intended use as previously disclosed in
the Prospectus. As of 31 December 201

proceeds in the manner as disclosed in the announcement of the Company

5, the Group applied the net

dated 6 July 2015, defails of which were set out in the Prospectus.

BRI X

AEENEARAXIERRUBEDE K
ERRBAXUARAEES ER LKA
BROKENESERER AKERD
BHRNERAHAXBENRARES2/0E
T BRABREARATHARE2317ETIE
MARBSOS3E T - T2 H () EM A
ERRBZFREAR/RARBIN4E T H
TEERRAARKO2ETT ATWER
ARB728T  ((BEREBEERRARE
353687 HR L mMEARK1,3288
T EERRARKOCE T WERRK

ARB26E T EGERRARKS62E
TililfmBAREBEEIZRAREKS 320
=

BRALNHBEZMEBRERE

EZg2THBRERPREZMERER
BEYERERARABEEZMERENA
w THREMBERERPAEEZRE
RaiEEXNEE BHE2015F12 431
H AEEEARRAHAR2015F7H6
BZREMBEENTNERMBRER
B OAHABHR2HBRER-



NEBRERERAT £ 2015 | 23

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

INDEBTEDNESS

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no borrowings (31 December
2014 Nlil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a few medical disputes arising in
the ordinary and usual course of business. Based on the existing pending
claims and potential claims as at 31 December 2015, an estimated amount
of RMB822,000 was recognised as provision for medical disputes as of 31
December 2015 (31 December 2014: RMB1.40 million). The decrease of
41.3% in confingent liabilities was primarily due to setlement payment for
medical disputes of RMB957,000 made by the Group during the Review
Period.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchcmge Rates

During the Review Period, the Group only enfered info a few service
contracts denominated in foreign currency with professional intermediaries
involved in our IPO. The proceeds from IPO was recorded in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group fo foreign currency risk. We did not use
any derivafive confracts fo hedge against our exposure fo currency risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group currently does not have a specific policy to manage our interest
rafe risk and have not entered info interest rate swaps to prevent the

exposure, but will closely monitor the inferest rafe risk exposure in the future.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, there was no charge on the assets of the Group (31
December 2014: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B E R R AT ()

Contractual Obligations

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had contractual obligafions of
approximately RMB17.47 million, representing an increase of RMB17.38
million as compared to approximately RMB2,000 as at 31 December
2014. The increase was primarily due fo the future contractual obligations
arising from the construction confracts entered into in 2015 for upgrades

and renovation of our hospitals.

Financial Instruments

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other payables.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no interestbearing liabilities. The
Group's gearing ratio was nil as at 31 December 2015 (31 December
2014 nil).
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Yuming (#£E8B), aged 46, founder of our Group, is the chairman
of the Board, an executive Director and the president of our Company,
mainly responsible for overall strategic planning and business development
of our Group. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr.
Lin joined the Group in December 2005. He served as the general manager
of Shanxi Modem Hospital of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Co., Lid. (“Shanxi
Modermn Women Hospital’] from August 2003 fo July 2004, and the
executive director and general manager of Beijing Modern Woman Hospital
Investment Management Co., ltd. JtFIRARZTFEREEEEER QG
from July 2004 to March 2012, both mainly responsible for general
management and operation of the two hospitals. He established Bosheng
Medical and has served as its chairman and president since December
2007, mainly responsible for general management and operation of
Bosheng Medical. Mr. Lin has also served as the executive director of some
other members of the Group, such as [i) VWuhan Modern Hospital since
December 2005, (i Guangzhou Woman Hospital since July 2008; (i)
Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital since March 2009; (i)
Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital since May 2009; [v) Chongging Fuling
HarMoniCare Hospital since June 2009; (vi] Fuzhou Modem Woman
Hospital since January 2010; (vii) Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital since
July 2010; (viii) Guiyang Modermn Woman Hospital since March 2011 (ix]
Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital since June 2011; (x) Chongging Dushi Liren
Hospital since August 2013; and (xi] Chongging Modern Woman Hospital
since April 2014. Mr. Lin studied in law at Central China Normal University
(FERATEIAE) from March 2008 fo January 2010 and obtained a
bachelor's degree in business management in July 2012 through online
education. Mr. Llin is the sole director of Homecare, our substantial
Shareholder, and is the brother of Mr. Lin Yuguo, our non-executive Director.

Mr. Fang Zhifeng (5 7&#£), aged 42, is an executive Director and a vice
president of our Company. Mr. Fang joined our Group in December 2005
and served as the general manager of VWuhan Modern Hospital from
December 2005 to March 2010, mainly responsible for the operation and
management of VWuhan Modern Hospital. Mr. Fang has served as the vice
president of Bosheng Medical from December 2007 to December 2014,
mainly responsible for the management of Wuhan Modern Hospital and
Fuzhou Modern Woman Hospital. Mr. Fang has also served as a director
and a vice president of HarMoniCare Management and Consulting since
September 2014 and January 2015, respectively, mainly responsible for
medical and human resource management. Prior fo joining our Group, Mr.
Fang was a physician af Putian Licheng District Xitianwei Town Clinic Cenfer
(AT BWEAKREERER) from August 1995 to October 2002. He
also worked for Putian Food and Drug Administration (B5 T & fh 2R EE
BB from August 2002 to October 2005. Mr. Fang studied in clinical
medicine at Fujian Medical School (f&83£2222F5%) from September 1992 to
July 1995, and obtained a graduation certificate of law from Fujian Normal
University (@8 Z2RM&EAE2) in July 2006 through online education. Mr. Fang
obtained the qualification of a physician in December 1999.
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Mr. Zhao Xingli (#8#7), aged 42, is an executive Director and a vice
president of our Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Zhao joined our Group in July 2008, and served as the
general manager of Guangzhou VWoman Hospital from July 2008 to June
2010 and Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital from January 2009 to March
2010, mainly responsible for the general management of these two
hospitals. Mr. Zhao served as a vice president of Bosheng Medical from
April 2010 to December 2014, mainly responsible for the management of
Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital and Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital, and
the general manager of Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital from June 2011 to
February 2015, mainly responsible for the management of Beijing
HarMoniCare Hospital. Mr. Zhao has served as a director and a vice
president of HarMoniCare Management and Consulting since July 2014
and January 2015, respectively, mainly responsible for investment and
information Techno|ogy deve|opmem. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhao
served as the assistant to the chairman of Shanxi Modern Woman Hospital
from August 2003 fo July 2004, mainly responsible for assisting the
chairman in managing Shanxi Modern Woman Hospital. He served as the
assistant 1o the general manager of Beijing Modern Woman Hospital
Investment Management Co., lid. ([t RERLZTFEREEEEERAF)
from August 2004 to December 2005, mainly responsible for the general
management of the hospital. Mr. Zhao studied public relations af Taiyuan
University [ARAEE) from September 1993 to July 1996 and oblained a
certificate of completion in modern hospital management from the School of

Continuing Education, Tsinghua University in September 2010.

Mr. Wang Lin (£5%), aged 47, joined our Group in July 2014 and is a
non-executive Director. He is also a member of the Audit Committee. Mr.
Wang has served as a director of HarMoniCare Management and
Consulting since July 2014. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang served as
a senior manager of China National Investment & Guaranty Co., Lid. (B
KRV EERBRAF]) from August 1994 to March 1999 He served as a
senior manager at investment advisory department of China International
Capital Corporation Llimited (FE B & FAR A A from April 1999 to
August 2002. He has served as the managing director of CDH Investment
Consulting Company limited (b RSB IEAIFTIE BB AR A A]) since
August 2002. He has served as a director of Bosheng Medical since
November 2008. Mr. Wang obtfained a bachelor's degree in engineering
from East China Jiaotong University (2282238 AER) in July 1989 and both
master's and docforate's degrees in economics from Research Institute for
Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance (BfEREBEFERELIERFITHT) in February
1993 and July 2002, respectively.
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Mr. Lin Yuguo (#EEl), aged 43, is the brother of Mr. Lin Yuming and a
non-executive Director. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Lin joined our Group in July 2014 and has served as a director of
HarMoniCare Management and Consulting since July 2014. He also serves
as a director of Honeycare Infernational Investment Limited, our substantial
Shareholder. Mr. lin is the organizer of Changsha Liren Hospital since
March 2007. Mr. Lin has served as a director of Bosheng Medical since
December 2007 . He has served as the chairman of the board of Shanghai
Mayo Hospital Investment Co., lid. (E/EFEBERFE SR FR A 7] since
August 2008, mainly responsible for the general management of the
company. Mr. Llin obtained a certificate of completion in modern hospital
management from Shenzhen Research Institute affiliated with Peking
University and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (1£ 7%
KEBFBEHARZRYIFHERT) in May 2006. Mr. Lin also obfained an
execufive master of business administration degree from Fudan University (&
BRE| in January 2010.

Mr. Kong Aiguo (FLEE), aged 48, joined our Group in March 2015 and
is an independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Audit Commitlee and the
Nomination Committee. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Kong has
successively served as a corporate finance teacher, deputy professor and
professor in the School of Management of Fudan University (18 B K& since
September 1998, mainly responsible for teaching and research. He has
also served as an independent director of Simei Media Co., ltd. (BI={E
BRDABERRAT) (Stock Code: 002712) since November 2013, an
independent director of Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ud. (2 /&A1 B IR
A7) (Stock Code: 0000406) since July 2014, as well as an independent
director of Tianjin Xinmao Science & Technology Co., Uid (KIEZEEHE I
B BRAE]) (Stock Code: 000836) since May 2015, all of which are
lisled on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Kong obtfained a bachelor’s
degree in science from Jilin University [ #8A22) in July 1989, a doctorate's
degree in economics from Fudan University in January 1997 and worked as
a post doctorate researcher in Mathematics Department of Fudan University
from December 1996 to July 1998. Mr. Kong also obtained a certificate of
complefion in independent director qualification training from the Shanghai

Stock Exchange in December 2011.
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Ms. Fang Lan (757&), aged 45, joined our Group in March 2015 and is an
independent non-executive Director. She is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and o member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Fang is the
chairman of the board of directors of Shanghai KRDream Co., ltd. (/&1
EEERAMNERAF]) since August 2010, mainly responsible for
overall management and operation. Ms. Fang served as the finance director
of InBev Management (Shanghai) Co., Ud. (EEMEEE( HEF)HR AR
from June 2007 to June 2010, mainly responsible for finance management.
Ms. Fang has also served as an independent director of Zhejiang Hexin
Industry Group Co., ld. (AT RMEEEE RN ER LA listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002343) from May 2014 to
August 2015. Ms. Fang obtained a bachelor's degree in science from
Oxford Brookes University in 2007. Ms. Fang obtained a CPA certificate
from the Shanghai Institute of Certified Public Accountants in December
2009, and an ACCA certificate from the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in March 2006. Ms. Fang also obtained a certificate of
completion in independent director qualification fraining from the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in April 2014.

Mr. Cai Jiangnan (85T/), aged 58, joined our Group in March 2015, is
an independent non-executive Direclor. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cai assumed various positions including
human services program planner, reimbursement analyst, and contracted
program coordinafor at the Cenfer for Health Information and Analysis ot
Massachusetts from April 1999 to June 2012. Mr. Cai has served as a part-
time professor in economics and the director at Centre for Healthcare

Management and Policy in the China Europe International Business School
(BN TrH226%) since April 2012. Mr. Cai has also served as an
independent director of Zhejiang Dian Diagnostics Co., lid. [#iTiEZ 2l
Rz n AR A A listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
300244) since May 2014. Mr. Cai obtained a masfer's degree in
economics from Fudan University in 1985 and a docforate’s degree in
philosophy from Brandeis University in February 1997. Mr. Cai also
obtained a cerfificate in fraining for senior management of public companies
from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in April 2014. Mr. Cai obtained a Sun
Yefang Award in economic science paper in 1991 from Sun Yefang
Foundation (R A #ERIEZESE), and an Excellent Paper Award in
Shanghai Federation of Social Science Associations Seventh  Annual

Academic Seminar from Shanghai Federation of Social Science Associations

(EBmHERBREAE) in 2000
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Mr. Lin Yuming (#k & 8), Mr. Zhao Xingli (i
# 11) and Mr. Fang Zhifeng (5 %82, please see “— Directors — Executive
Directors”.

Mr. So Kin Ching (8#255), aged 44, is a vice president of our Company.
Mr. So joined our Group in November 2004 and served as the general
manager of Chongging Modern WWoman Hospital from November 2004 to
January 2014, mainly responsible for general management and operation
of the hospital. Mr. So served as a vice president and a director of Bosheng
Medical from December 2007 to December 2014 and since December
2007, respectively, mainly responsible for the management of Guiyang
HarMoniCare Hospital, Chongging Dushi Lliren Hospital, Chongging
Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital, Chongqing Fuling HarMoniCare
Hospital, Guangzhou Woman Hospital, Chongging Modermn VWomen
Hospital and Guiyang Modermn YWoman Hospifal. Mr. So has served as the
supervisor of Guiyang Modemn Woman Hospital since March 2011 and
Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital since August 2013. He also served as a
director and vice president of HarMoniCare Management and Consulting
from July to September 2014 and since January 2015, respectively, mainly
responsible for the general management of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. So successively served as a business director of Putian
Infernational Economics Cooperation Co., ltd. (BERAM BB &EAEAT)
from September 1993 to June 1996, and the sales engineer of lwaki Pumps
Co., lid. (BEF BB AF) from July 1998 fo June 2004. Mr. So obtained
a bachelor's degree in science from Fuzhou University (f&)NAE2) in July
1993, and an EMBA certificate from Peking University (16 5 AE2) in August
2007. Mr. So also obtained a cerfificate of complefion in modern hospital
management from the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University

in September 2010.

Mr. Chen Wei (Bff&), aged 37, joined our Group in March 2015 and is a
vice president and a joint company secretary of our Company, mainly
responsible for management of the securities investment and legal
departments of our Company. Mr. Chen served as a project manager at the
investment banking department of Huaxi Securities Co., lid. (ZEFRRE A AR
EEAA]) from March 2005 to May 2007, mainly responsible for
investment banking business. He has also served as a managing director of
investment banking of Guosen Securities Co., ltd. (B{E B &N BER AT
since May 2007 and subsequently tendered his resignation in March 2015.
He was mainly responsible for investment banking business and team
management. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree in management from
Jilin University (Z#AE) in July 2002 and a master's degree in
management from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics | /881 4%
KE) in March 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a Certified Public Accountant
cerfificate from Shanghai Insfitute of Certified Public  Accountants in
December 2009.
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Mr. Chen Longzhen (BRF£18), aged 58, is a chief financial officer of our
Company. Mr. Chen joined our Group in March 2015 and has served as
the chief financial officer of HarMoniCare Management and Consulting
since March 2015, mainly responsible for general finance management of
our Group. Mr. Chen served as a vice finance director and vice director in
securities investment department of Bosheng Medical from June 2010 to
February 2015, mainly responsible for management of finance, securities
and investment. Mr. Chen successively served as a finance director of
Xiamen Tianwei Industrial Co., Ud. ([EFIREEEERE AT from March
2008 to May 2010, and a finance director of Gaode Zhongcai
Technology Co., lid. (& FEHEAR A A from August 2006 to March
2008, mainly responsible for finance management. Mr. Chen served as a
finance direcfor of Shandong Juli Co., ltd. (IR E 7R B R AR [currently
known as Weichai Heavy Machinery Co., lid. (#LEE#IMNDER A 7])
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000880) from March
2004 to August 2005, mainly responsible for finance management. Mr.
Chen successively served as an assistant of general manager and finance
director of China Resources Jinhua Co., Uid. (EEREREER% 1D AR A7) (currently
known as Skyworth Digital Co., lid. (BI4ERF DB PR AR listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000810) from October 2001 to
February 2004, mainly responsible for finance management. Mr. Chen also
served as finance manager of Shandong Huimin Huarun Textile Co., Lid. (I
REREBSE AR AF]) from December 1999 to October 2001, mainly
responsible for finance management. Mr. Chen obtained an associafe
degree in industry accountant at Shandong TV University (1B E & E1R A E)
in July 1986, and studied in economics management at Shandong Cadres
Correspondence College (ILER#HEBHITAE) from July 1994 to June
1997. Mr. Chen also obtained the qualification of senior accountant from
Shandong Provincial Human Resources and Social Security Department (i1

RAEANEBRMEZREEEE) in November 1997

Mr. Li Wenfeng (Z=32Bl), aged 60, joined our Group in January 2015, is
the uncle of Mr. Lin Yuming and a vice president of our Company. Mr. Li
has served as a vice president of HarMoniCare Management and
Consulfing since January 2015, mainly responsible for procurement and
internal adminisfration. Mr. Li served as a deputy general manager of Shanxi
Modern Woman Hospital from August 2003 to December 2007, and the
vice president of Bosheng Medical from December 2007 to December
2014, mainly responsible for management of logisfics department, audit
department, president’s office, information department and medical
management department. Mr. Li has also served as the supervisor of some
other members of the Group, such as (i) Shanxi Wo De Investment since
October 2009; (i) Tai He Tang since April 2013; (i) Chongging
Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital since December 2013; (iv)] Chongging
Fuling HarMoniCare Hospital since December 2013; (v) Beijing
HarMoniCare Hospital since December 2013; (vi] Guiyang HarMoniCare
Hospital since August 2014; and (vii] Chongging Modern Woman Hospital
since April 2014. Mr. Li obtained a certificate of complefion in modern
hospital management from School of Confinuing Education, Tsinghua
University in September 2010.
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Mr. Ren Jinhui (fE£18), aged 40, is an assistant of the chairman of our
Company who is primarily responsible for the Company's financial
management. Mr. Ren joined our Group in March 2015 and has served as
an assistant of the chairman of HarMoniCare Management and Consulting
since March 2015, mainly responsible for assisting the chairman in
discharging his duties. Mr. Ren served as an auditing director and a finance
director of Bosheng Medical from December 2007 to December 2012 and
from March 2013 to December 2014, respectively, mainly responsible for
management of the auditing department and financial management
department. Mr. Ren obtained two bachelor's degrees in economics and
laws, respectively, from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics (T 7584
FEREE) in July 1999, Mr. Ren also obtained the qualification of registered
public accountant from the Ministry of Finance in December 2002, and the
qualification of registered tax agent from the Minisiry of Personnel of the PRC
and the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC (FRZE A R FNE B R 71
% 42/8) in September 2002.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The Direcfors are pleased to present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, is mainly engaged in provision
of high-quality healthcare services to women and children, Tai He Tang, our
subsidiary, is engaged in disfribution and sales of pharmaceuticals and
medical devices [which include medical consumables) to associated
companies and Independent Third Parties. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the

healthcare industry specializing in obstetrics and gynecology.

A list of the Company's subsidiaries, fogether with their places of
incorporation, principal activities and particulars of their issued shares/paid

up capital, is sef out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development are set out in "Chairman's
Statement” on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report and in “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Business Overview and Outlook” on pages 8 to
12 of this annual report. The financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. Significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to
the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note
39 fo the consolidated financial statements. Besides, the potential risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group, key relationship between the Group and
its employees, customers and suppliers, the environmental policies of the
Group and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations which have

significant impact are sef out below.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's results and operations are subject to various factors with the key

risks summarised below:

Reputation risk

Our business depends significantly on the soundness of our reputation.
Failure to develop, mainfain and enhance our reputation, or any negative
publicity or allegafions in the media against us, may adversely affect the
level of market recognition of, and frust in, our services, and failure fo
properly manage our physicians’ or other medical staff's clinical acfivities
may expose us to medical disputes, which could result in a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our

reputation and business may be harmed accordingly.

Customer risk

As we provide mid- fo high-end healthcare services, our business, financial
condition and results of operations are subject fo changes in patient
preference, consumption capacity, consumer confidence index and general

economic conditions in our respective markets.

Talent risk
If we are unable fo attract, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified
physicians, management sfaff and other hospital personnel, our hospital

operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Key Relationship

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and partners are the
key to our sustainable and stable development. We are commitied fo
establishing a close relationship with our employees, enhancing cooperation
with our partners and providing high-quality services to our customers so as
to ensure the Group's susfainable development.
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Staff

Our staff is regarded as the most important resource of the Group. The
Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff with a fair and
harmonious workplace where individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds
are treated equally. We offer a competitive remuneration package and
great opportunities for career advancement based on employees’
performance. The Group grants share options to outstanding employees fo
recognise and reward the employees who have contributed to the Group's
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings,
including internal trainings and courses offered by professional organisations,
so as to keep them abreast of the latest development of the Company,

medical indusiry and various businesses.

Customers

In order fo provide high-quality and safe medical services to customers, we
strictlly abide by the national industrial policy of healthcare and the
infernational standards promulgated by the Joint Commission International (/CI)
and adhere to our “customer-oriented” service philosophy. VWe provide every
patient with experienced medical stoff and advanced technologies and
facilities for diagnosis and treatment fo best satisfy the medical needs of our
cusfomers. Meanwhile, we value the feedback from customers and always
seek o understand their thoughts through services feedback and customer
satisfaction surveys. In addition, we also set up a customer service hotline fo

respond to any feedback and complaints from cusfomers.

Suppliers

We firmly believe that our suppliers are equally important in providing high-
quality medical services. When selecting suppliers, we consider, among
other things, their product offerings, pricing, reputation, service quality and
delivery schedule. We require our suppliers to mainfain requisite licenses
and permits to operate their business, such as business licenses and GMP
certificates and/or GSP certificates. We proactively communicate with our
suppliers to ensure they are committed to delivering high-quality and high-
standard medical equipment and drugs, and adopt a centralised
procurement system fo better confrol the quality of the medical supplies. We
clearly state our professional integrity and specify various requirements
including regulatory compliance, anti-corruption and other business ethics in

each confract we entered info with our suppliers.
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Environmental Policies

We are subject to various PRC laws, rules and regulations with regard to
environmental matters, including hospital sanitation, disease control, disposal
of medical waste, and discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive
substances. We have established systems and procedures in place
concering environmental protection, such as requiring all our hospitals to
engage qualified service providers to dispose of medical waste and
radioactive substances. During the Review Period, our businesses were in
compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations with regard to

environmental protection in all material aspects.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's
subsidiaries in Mainland China while the Company is a holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Our establishments and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, the Cayman
Islands and Hong Kong. During the Review Period, our businesses were in
compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland Ching,
the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong in all material aspects.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are sef out
in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income” of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB5.5 cents
per Share for FY2015 (FY2014: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of the movements in the share capital of the Company for the year
ended 31

financial statements in this annual report.

December 2015 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in the section headed “"Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had a share premium balance of
approximately RMB1,394.8 million, which shall be available for distribution
to the Shareholders provided that the sanction of an ordinary resolution at

the upcoming AGM for such distribution will be duly obtained.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group's property, plant and
equipment are sef out in note 16 fo the consolidated financial stafements in

this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past four financial years are set out in the section headed “Financial
Summary” of this annual report.
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BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no borrowings.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2015 amounted to RMB89,552 (2014: RMB/6,904).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, there was no charge on the assets of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no individual patient has
contributed over 5% of our total revenue. During the Review Period, our five
largest cusfomers were corporate customers engaged in the supply of
pharmaceuticals and medical devices business, who in aggregate

confributed fo less than 5% of our revenue during the Review Period.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 24.1% (2014: 20.0%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 5.7% (2014:

5.0%) of our total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules| or Shareholders that owned
more than 5% of the issued Shares had any direct or indirect inferest in the
five largest customers or the five largest suppliers of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Review Period and up fo the date of this Direcfors’

report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. lin Yuming (Chairman and President)
Mr. Fang Zhifeng (Vice President) (appointed on 18 March 2015)

Mr. Zhao Xingli (Vice President] (appointed on 18 March 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Lin (appointed on 18 March 2015)

Mr. Cheng Ruozhi (appointed on 18 March 2015 and resigned on
28 December 2015)

Mr. Lin Yuguo (appointed on 18 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kong Aiguo (appointed on 18 March 2015)
Ms. Fang Lan (appointed on 18 March 2015)
Mr. Cai Jiangnan [appointed on 18 March 2015)

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Arficles of Association, Mr. Lin
Yuming, Mr. Fang Zhifeng, Mr. Zhao Xingli, Mr. Wang Lin, Mr. Lin Yuguo,
Mr. Kong Aiguo, Ms. Fang Lan and Mr. Cai Jiangnan who were appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the forthcoming AGM. All of the
above refiring Directors are eligible for reelection and will offer themselves

for re-election thereat.

THE BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are sef out in the section headed "Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.
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SERVICES CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a 3-year service confract
with the Company effective from the Listing Date, subject fo termination
before expiry by either party giving not less than one month nofice in wrifing
to the other.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
has enfered info a letter of appointment with the Company which
commenced from the Listing Date for an initial term of three years and shall
be terminable by either party giving not less than one month nofice in writing
fo the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service confract with any member of the Group which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation [other

than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals in
the Group are set ouf in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements in

this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had 3,149 employees (31 December
2014: 3,187), of which 3,113 employees were involved in the general
hospital services and management sector (31 December 2014: 3,145 and
36 employees in the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices sector (31
December 2014: 42). Total staff remuneration expenses including Directors’
remuneration for the Review Period amounted to RMB297.9 million (the
Corresponding Period: RMB283.0 million]. Remuneration is determined with
reference to performance, skills, qualifications and experience of the staff
concerned and in accordance with the prevailing industry practice. On top
of salary payments, other sfaff benefits include a statemanaged retirement
pension scheme, a discretionary bonus program and the Share Option

Scheme.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme to provide incentive or
reward fo eligible participants for their confribution or potfential confribution

to the Group.
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The remuneration of the Directors is reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board. The relevant Director's experience,
duties and responsibilities, time commitment, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions are faken info considerafion in

determining the emolument of the Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr. lin Yuming and Homecare, our then
Controlling Shareholders, have undertaken to the Company in a deed of
non-competition that, subject fo and except as mentioned in the Prospectus,
they would not, and would procure that none of their associates (other than
any member of the Group) will directly or indirectly engage in any business
which, directly or indirectly, competes or may compete with the Group's
business in the PRC or any other places in which the Group carries on
business. Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the deed of non-competition for disclosure in this annual
report during the year ended 31 December 2015. No new business
opportunity was informed by them as at 31 December 2015.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the implementation
of the deed of non-competition and are of the view that the non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by Mr. Lin Yuming and Homecare for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as of 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had any
inferest in any business which competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Direcfors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or ifs associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified fo the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO |including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant fo the

Model Code were as follows:

(a) Long positions in Shares
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
FR
A MAOBE DL
EEns EEMNE R4 #E %
Mr. Lin Yuming™°® Inferest of controlled corporation 218,252,390 28.33
R RELEER
Mr. Wang Lin Beneficial owner 600,000 0.08
EREE EmEAA
Note: M ST

These Shares are held by Homecare, the 100% equity inferest of which is
owned by Mr. Lin Yuming. Therefore, Mr. Llin Yuming is deemed to be
interested in these Shares.

% % A% 1) FA Homecare 3578 » AR £ AR & 4
BHZARIO0%E At MEMRL
EHEBRAEEZERNDAER



42 | Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEgwRE (@

(b) Long positions in underlying Shares

(b) REBEROMNEFE

Number of
underlying
Shares held Approximate

under Share percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest Option Scheme shareholding
BRAESTEE FR
TRHENEE MABE DL

EEnE EEMTE R &5 #E %

Mr. Fang Zhifeng Beneficial owner 1,920,000 0.25

FEEEE EREA A

Mr. Zhao Xingli Beneficial owner 1,520,000 0.20

B h BEmERA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to
the Direcfors or chief executive of the Company, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations which (a) were required fo be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
inferests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant fo Section 352
of the SFO, 1o be recorded in the register referred to therein; or [c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, fo be notified o the Company and

the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme of the Company was conditionally adopted
pursuant fo a resolution passed by the Shareholders on @ June 2015, and

became effective on the Listing Date.

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is o provide an incentive or
reward for Eligible Parficipants (defined below) for their contribution or

potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries.

B bt 358 & S 20156 12H318H -
BEERARAZRSITRABRA  HE
EEHARARBTHRAERARRRE
HECEE ZB D HERDRESFTHES
REEZFEPEROHEXNVEBE7RES
DHWAMEARALBEIAM(BRBEFR
BESLMEGD ZZFHERE R
EFRARDEIAR) A BRARE S
FHEEPIEIS2EFEZERMA X
(RBZETRZAME RNRA R Z
HREIOXR -

BRESE

ARARZBREFEN2015F6A0R KR
BRRABZABRREAGARA TR
ETHEBAER-

1. BW

BREMIAEENBDAER/SAR
B Kok H AT B B A R B Rk sk
ARELERMNAER2HE (EE
RTX) -



Eligible participants

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and the Llisting Rules, the Board may ot its sole discrefion
grant options to any fulltime or partime employees of the Company,
its subsidiaries or any entities in which the Group holds any equity
inferest, including (a) any executive and nonexecutive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, ifs subsidiaries
or invested entities, (b] any executives (including president, senior vice
president, vice president of the Group), central management (including
general manager, director, deputy general manager and deputy
director), management of president's office (including officer and
deputy officer], department managers of divisions under respective
cenfres, general managers and department managers of commercial
management companies, senior management (including general
manager and deputy general manager) of project companies and
persons holding managerial positions of respective departments of the

Company, its subsidiaries or invested enfifies.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of six years from

Q June 2015.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not,
in aggregate, exceed /6,722,909, being 10% of the total issued
Shares as of the listing Date (without faking info account the partial
exercise of the over-allotment opfion, representing 9.96% of the fotal
issued Shares as at the date of this annual report. As at the date of
this annual report, 65,539,499 Shares, represenfing 8.5% of the
fotal issued Shares as at the date of this annual report, remain

available for grant under the Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the fotal number of Shares
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of options granted to any
participant (including exercised and outstanding options) under the
Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period up fo the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total Shares in issue.
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Offer period and amount payable for options

An offer of the grant shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participant for a period of not more than 15 days from the date on
which it is made. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable
upon acceplance of the grant of option which the Company has

subsequently waived.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The minimum period during which an option must be held before it
can be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme shall be one year affer the date on which the opfion is
granted. The Board may in its absolute discrefion impose further

restrictions on the exercise of the opfion.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions on
the exercise of the opfion, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the option is granted and shall expire on the
earlier of the last day of (i) a sixyear period from the date of such

grant; and (i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the "Exercise Price”] shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the highest
of:

[l the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the date on which the option is

granted [must be a business day;

[i)  the average closing price of the Shares as sfated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the option is granted;
while if the Company has been listed for less than five business
days, the new issue price shall be regarded as the closing

price for the business day in any period prior fo the listing; and

liii)  the current nominal value of the each Shares.
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On 13 July 2015, an aggregate of 16,113,800 share options were
granfed by the Company. The closing price of the Shares immediately
before the grant of share options on 13 July 2015 was HK$7.1 per Share.
Further defails of the grant are sef out in nofe 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The share options granted on 13 July 2015 include cerfain financial
performance target of the Company and performance appraisal of the
eligible participants. The financial performance farget conditions of the

Company for the share options becoming vested were:
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Assessment period Growth of revenue Growth of net profit Exercise period

ZRH EEBRARRE FEREHERR 1T

2015.1.1-2015.12.31 5% YoY 20% YoY From 2016.7.13 10 2021.6.8
IRLLIERS% REIER20% 82016.7.13%2021.6.8

2016.1.1-2016.12.31 10% YoY 25% YoY From 2017.7.13 10 2021.6.8
IRHEIER10% RILER25% B2017.7.13%2021.6.8

2017.1.1-2017.12.31 15% YoY 30% YoY From 2018.7.13 10 2021.6.8
IRLEIER15% RIIER30% 82018.7.13%2021.6.8

As the 2015 annual results of the Company failed to fulfill the required
financial performance target, the share options falling under the assessment
period of 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 would not be vesfed.
Pursuant fo relevant terms and requirements under the Share Option Scheme,
such share options not becoming vested shall lapse forthwith and shall be

cancelled by the Company.
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The summary below sets out the details of movement of options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2015 pursuant to the Share Option

Scheme: mE :
Number of share options
BREA
Balance Granted  Exercised  Cancelled/ Balance
Exercise s at 1 January during during  lapsed during as at 31 December
Category/Name Date of grant price (HK$) 2015 theyear  the year the year 2015
- TEE MN2015F RE R RER RER 20155
g/ 2% Rt B H (Brm) 1R1B#&& R 78 /XXM 12A31B#EH
Directors
=
Zhao Xingli 13 July 2015 7.1 0 1,520,000 N/A (456,000) 1,064,000
BEN 2015%7A138 TER
Fang Zhifeng 13 July 2015 7.1 0 1,920,000 N/A (576,000) 1,344,000
s 2015%7R13R i
Senior Management
BREEE
So Kin Ching 13 July 2015 7. 0 2,850,000 N/A (855,000] 1,095,000
Hg 2015%7A13R8 ekt
li Wenfeng 13 July 2015 7.1 0 1,513,600 N/A (454,080) 1,059,520
FXA 2015%7R138 T
Ren Jinhui 13 July 2015 7.1 0 880,000 N/A (264,000) 616,000
e 2015%7A138 TER
Chen longzhen 13 July 2015 7.1 0 656,000 N/A (196,800 459,200
-2 2015%7R13R TEA
Subtotal /N5t 9,339,600 (2,801,880 6,537,720
Other employees of 13 July 2015 7. 0 6,774,200 N/A (2,128,510 4,645,690
the Group
AEEHEMES 2015%7R13R i
Total #8531 16,113,800 (4,930,390) 11,183,410
Note 1: Each of the grantees to whom the above share options have been conditionally Kzt 1 : BRIRE R AR 81 F G HER B E

granted under the Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(i) as to 30%, from the date of the first anniversary of the date of grant, i.e.
13 July 2016, fo the date the Share Option Scheme will expire, i.e. 8 June
2021 (both dates inclusive);

(ii) as fo 35%, from the date of the second anniversary of the date of grant, i.e.
13 July 2017, to the date the Share Option Scheme will expire, i.e. 8 June

2021 (both dates inclusive); and

(iif) as to 35%, from the date of the third anniversary of the date of grant, i.e.
13 July 2018, to the date the Share Option Scheme will expire, i.e. 8 June
2021 (both dates inclusive).

Note 2: All the share options granted to the grantees on 13 July 2015 are subject to certain

MiaE2

condifions including the automatic lapse of options if the grantees’ employment with
the Group ferminates before the share options are vested and the fulfillment of the
vesting conditions as sfipulated on page 45 of this annual report regarding the
performance target of the Company. Of the share options granted on 13 July
2015, 137,500 share options lapsed because an employee left the Group in
2015, and an aggregate of 4,792,890 share options have not been duly vested
and were thus cancelled because the performance target of the Company for the
year 2015 has not been fulfilled.

& AR AR AR :

(i) ERHASNE—@EFFHAH
2016F7R130) i = B & 8
FHB (20216 A8R) (BFEE
EmMB)1T##£30%:

(ii) EREBHOFE_@RERDH
20177 R13RA) REHE R ETE
FHI R (BN2021F6A8H) (BIEH
EBMA)ITE35%: &

(iii) EREBHOE=ZEAFA(H
2018 7R 13R) BEE Rt &
ZIEIE (BD2021 6 A8RH) (BiEHE
BMB)ITE35% -

R2015F7A1IBRMRARARBZAAE
WA E TR (BEMARAEAR
SEZERBBENBREREKZL A
BRESDERBMLERNFREASEN
HEMARRRRBEBFEZBE KM E=
g A fEE - R2015F7 138 &
Z BERAE - 137,500 B AR #E f 70 2015
F-R2EEBRRAASEMEY  MaH
4,792,89017 i B #E d i A A B 201 5 1)
RIB B IR AR E R R E R 5B E U R
FESH -



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, so far as was known to any Director or chief

execufive of the Company, the following persons (other than the Direcfors

and chief executive of the Company) had interests and/or short positions in

the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
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336 of the SFO. AEEzELMAZEE R RKE -
Long positions in Shares R HETFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
MR A EEMTE HERNDHE FRELD
ERlse
%
Homecare!" Beneficial owner 218,252,390 28.33
EmERA
Ms. Zhang Qing Hua" Inferest of spouse 218,252,390 28.33
REEZ LY i (B #E &
Honeycare Infernational Investment Limited ~ Beneficial owner 130,137,845 16.89
BEmEAA
CDH Harmony* Beneficial owner 78,621,620 10.21
EmERA
CDH Jiangen® Inferest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.21
RERRY EEEE S
CDH | Inferest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.21
SiE —H REEEE S
Tianjin Dinghui Private Equity Investment Inferest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.2
Management Centre (Limited Partnership
RESEREREEED D XY AEE s
(BERA&R)Y
Dinghul Investiment Management (Tianjin) ~ Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.21
Company Limited™
SERBREERE(RR)ARLAY IEEEER
Tianjin Taiding Investment Company Inferest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.21
Limited™ XEEEER
East Oak Company Limited”! Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.21
RELEER
Mr. Wu Shangzhi®® Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.21

R EE"

XEEE RS
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Name of Shareholder
BRER

Harmony Care!

M. Lin Yuhua!

ME Y

Mr. Lin Yurong®

MRS EY

Mighty Sky Investments Limited”!

CCBI Investments Limited"

CCB International {Holdings) Limited"’
EIRBIE (R BRA A

CCB Financial Holdings Limited"
EUTemEBRAERA R

CCB International Group Holdings Limited®!

BRITEBREEZERER AR
China Construction Bank Corporation'”
FERZRIBITROBR A A
Central Huijin Investment Ltd."!

FRESREFRAEAA

Notes:

Annual Report 2015

Nature of interest
EEME

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Inferest of controlled corporation
REEE S

Inferest of controlled corporation
REAE

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Inferest of controlled corporation
REEE S

Inferest of controlled corporation
REEE R

Interest of controlled corporation
R LEE S

Inferest of controlled corporation
REEE S

Inferest of controlled corporation
REAE RS

Interest of controlled corporation
R LEE S

GEX

1. Homecare is wholly owned by Mr. Lin Yuming. 1.

2. Ms. Zhang Qing Hua is the wife of Mr. Lin Yuming and is therefore deemed to .

be interested in the Shares that Mr. Lin Yuming is interested.

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding
BERMDEE FREQ
Bak

%

54,633,975 7.09
54,633,975 7.09
54,633,975 /.09
46,033,525 5.98
46,033,525 598
46,033,525 5.98
46,033,525 5.98
46,033,525 598
46,033,525 5.98
46,033,525 5.98

Homecare AN ERA A2 EHA o

FER LT AMRERLENES Bt
18 A B o 2 M B o
B



3. CDH Harmony is directly wholly-owned by CDH Jiangen which is owned as fo
78% by CDH I. Tianjin Dinghui Private Equity Investment Management Centre
(Limited Partnership) is the General Pariner of CDH | while Dinghui Investment
Management (Tianjin] Company Limited is the General Partner of Tianjin
Dinghui Private Equity Investment Management Centre (Limited Partnership).
Dinghui Investment Management (Tianjin)] Company Limited is owned as to
85.4% by Tianjin Taiding Investment Company Limited which is, in turn, owned
as to 34.16% by East Oak Company Limited. Mr. Wu Shangzhi owns 100%
of the shares of East Oak Company Limited. Therefore, each of CDH Jiangen,
CDH |, Tianjin Dinghui Private Equity Invesiment Management Centre (Limited
Partnership), Dinghui Investment Management (Tianjin) Company  Limited,
Tianjin Toiding Investment Company Llimited, East Oak Company Limited and
Mr. Wu Shangzhi is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by CDH
Harmony.

4. As far as known fo the Directors, Harmony Care is owned as to $3.23% by
Mr. Lin Yurong and 36.77% by Mr. Lin Yuhua. Therefore, each of Mr. Lin
Yurong and Mr. Lin Yuhua is deemed fo be interested in the Shares held by
Harmony Care.

5. Mighty Sky Investments Limited is directly wholly-owned by CCBI Investments
Limited which is, in tumn, directly wholly-owned by CCB Infernational (Holdings)
Limited. CCB International (Holdings) Limited is directly wholly-owned by CCB
Financial Holdings Limited which is, in turn, directly wholly-owned by CCB
Infernational Group Holdings Llimited. CCB International Group Holdings
Limited is directly wholly-owned by China Construction Bank Corporation which
is owned as fo 57.26% by Central Huijin Investment Lid. Therefore, each of
CCBI Investments Limited, CCB Infernational (Holdings) Limited, CCB Financial
Holdings Limited, CCB International Group Holdings Limited, China
Construction Bank Corporation and Central Huijin Investment Lid. is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Mighty Sky Investments Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors
have not been nofified by any person [other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had inferests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which shall be disclosed to the Company pursuant to
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the regisfer
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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3. CDH HarmonyBI B R ER 2 EH A -
i B 2 R B — HI R 78% M 4 o
RERBRERKBEEETL(ARER)
ARE-HNETBRABA TMHERE
BREBB(RR)ERQA/REFER
BREEEEDL(ERAB)INEBRAR
A BEREKREERE(RZ)ERA A
£ Tianjin Taiding Investment Company Limited
% 5 85.4%% % + 1M Tianjin Taiding Investment
Company Limited BI| B East Oak Company Limited
BEH34106% M & - R W %k & B B Eost
Oak Company Limited #] & #B % 17 « B 1t £
ERER SE—H RELEREKREE
EhaL(ERAR) REREREEE
(KRE) B R 2 A - Tianjin Taiding Invesiment
Company Limited  East Oak Company Limited
KR & 5% 8 BAR R 57 CDH Harmony
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2015 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Direcfors fo acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisted in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
during or at the end of the year under review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, there was no connected transaction of the Group

which has to be disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered info any contract with any individual, firm or
body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of

any business of the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Aricles of Association, every Director or officer of the Company
acting in relation 1o any of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs and damages which he may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed on pages 42 to 46 of this
annual report, no equitylinked agreements were enfered into by the

Company, or existed during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REVIEW PERIOD

There is no significant event after the Review Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis fo existing Shareholders.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final dividend of RMB5.5
cenfs per Share for the year ended 31 December 2015, payable to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 24 June 2016. Based on the number of issued Shares
as at 31 December 2015, this represents a fotal distribution of
approximately RMB42.47 million (final dividend of 2014 nil). Subject to the
approval by Shareholders at the AGM to be held on Thursday, 16 June
2016, it is expected that the final dividend will be paid on or before
Wednesday, 6 July 2016.

NEBRRRERAT £ 2015 | 5]

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEeRE (@)

ESHNEEFREMRX

RESERAR - ARARREFMEHMT
ENARAEEASRABRATRARAE
ERGENERRBE FETSARLRE
THEBRESEPHBANAANEMRAM
SIBAERNEMFL BEARBEEMR
XBE-ARFACHAEEEELSRA
BERBEENESLRRABEERR -

IR FE 4 80 165 SR

BAFMBI2EACE PR E ) BB IR T
2N ARBRFRLEET LKA B EM
s # b 8 15 7 o

EEHERER

CIEMEREENEHEE -

BEBRE

SRMAR AR B EMAK IS ESE
MEARTEHEELBREZIRT RE
ARBARLHIFBREBRREBEEHBRD

Hﬁ /%\

EEREMN201656A24B(EHA)E
BRENARABRREMAZERE REE
2015F 12 A3 HIEFE R ST K
AR®S559 - BIEMN2015F 1231 A
SEETRNDEE  ARRAEHXRBEHARKE
42478 L (0 4F REWERE) - BH
REBR S N2016F7H6R (2B =) s
ZBRE - RS R2016F6816R (2
HMBFRETZRRAFAS LERR
HAE -



5 2 | Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Directors’ Report (continued)
égéiﬁ =] (nﬁ

AGM AND CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For defermining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 14 June 2016 fo
Thursday, 1

transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and

6 June 2016, both dates inclusive, during which period no

vote at the AGM, non-registered holders of Shares shall ensure that all
fransfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’'s Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor Investor
183 Queen'’s Road East,
13 June

Services limited, at level 22, Hopewell Centre,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
20106.

For determining the enfilement fo the proposed final dividend (subject to
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM|, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22 June 20106 to Friday, 24
June 2016, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, non-
registered holders of Shares shall ensure that all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share cerfificates must be lodged with the
Company's Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor Investor Services limited, af
level 22, Hopewell Cenfre, 183 Queen’s Road Eost, Hong Kong for

registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 June 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is sef out on pages 54 to 64 of this

annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the Llisting Date up to 31 December 2015, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company’s listed securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and fo the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company has
always maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2015.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available fo the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s Listed securifies.

AUDITOR

The Company has appointed Deloittle Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015. A resolution will be
proposed for approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM fo re-

appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Yuming
Chairman, executive Director and President

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board of Direcfors is commitied to mainfaining high corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the Group to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and fo enhance ifs fransparency and

accountability.

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the
lising Date. For the Relevant Period, the Company has applied the
principles as sef out in the CG Code which are applicable to the Company.

Code provisions A.1.1 and C.3.3 respectively provide that board meetings
should be held ot least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
with @ majority of directors being present and the Audit Committee must
meet at least twice a year with the issuer's auditors. As the Shares were
lisled on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the listing Date, the
Company only held two regular board meetings, and members of the Audit
Committee only mef with the Company's audifors once during the Relevant
Period. In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the Relevant Period, the
Company has complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the
CG Code, save and except for code provision A.2.1 which states that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual, defails of which are set out in the
"Chairman and Executive Officer” of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopfed the Model Code as ifs code of conduct

regarding securities fransactions by the Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors, and the Direcfors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the

Relevant Period.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities fransactions by employees who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company. No incident of non-
compliance of the Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

TRERER

EEERIHRRKTINEEEREE
EZgME RENEEERAREHAE
1] il TE 3 75 5% RS K SR OK M DA B B 7B R
ErRBEUEZHES-

R EmAMRBIAERLT -NA
MR ARRERAARRFRER 2B
EIRTRIRARA -

SRR EAT G R ECI3%& D 5l R
T EFEEREFRELHETOR K
WEBFEBRT R BRZHREFALE
- MERZBEEEFARLEBETA
ZEBENETMREE - ARROR ED
BHTRBERRRER BT RA B MER
RAEBETMAEHETESH MEX
ZEQEEARAEEET - RGHE -
ExRB REAEHSE AQFR-—HET
EERERTRIME A ERTRMRX
HESFRMEXBA2 1 EERERERITH A
HOBELANH BTEHRE - AZE
Bohe BRAMBHENARSIERE RITH
mE—B e

HEXZNREESTA

ARRERMEETAREABESE
TEHFXZHWITR/TH

RAREMEZ2BESELARBEN 268
EFRRRENEHBEL Y TEE
=8 -

ZANY/NSI W) S - 57 SR VNS RS 7 BN
ERREETESX S BRI T LRE TR
GRRABRNWEMIES - ARALEERAE
MEBEREMESIWEM-



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises eight members as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Yuming (Chairman, President and Chairman of the Nomination
Committee)

Mr. Fang Zhifeng (Vice President)

Mr. Zhao Xingli (Vice President and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Lin (Member of the Audit Committee)

Mr. lin Yuguo (Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kong Aiguo (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)
Ms. Fang Lan (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)
Mr. Cai Jiangnan (Member of the Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the secfion
headed “Direcfors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 31 of this
annual report. The relationships between the members of the Board are also

disclosed under the same section.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code sfipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. lin Yuming is the Chairman and President
(equivalent to chief executive officer] of the Company. Mr. Lin is the founder
of the Group and has been responsible for managing the operation and
overall strafegic planning of the Group since its establishment. The Directors
believe that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and President in Mr. Lin is
beneficial to the business outlook and management of the Group and can
ensure consistent leadership within the Group for more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group. After considering all the corporate
governance measures that have been taken, the Board considers that the
balance of power and authority will not be impaired by the present
arrangement and the current structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions more promptly and effectively. Thus, the Company does
not segregate the roles of Chairman and President. The Board will continue
fo review the situation and consider splitting the roles of Chairman and
President of the Company in due course after taking into account of the then

overall circumsfances of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Relevant Period, the Board af all fimes mef the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating fo the appointment of atf least three independent non-
execufive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines sef out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive

Direcfors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific ferm, subject fo re-election, whereas code
provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to election by shareholders af the first general meeting affer
appointment and that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, shall be subject to refirement by rotation af least once every three
years.

Each of the executive Directors is appointed under a services contract and
each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Direcfors
is appointed under a letter of appointment for a ferm of three years from the
Listing Date which is terminable by either party by giving one month’s written
nofice to the other party.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are subject fo
refirement by rotation and re-election at AGM at least once every three
years. Any Director appointed by the Board fo fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition fo the Board shall hold office unfil the next following
AGM after his/her appointment and they will be subject fo re-election af

such meefing.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.

All' Direcfors, including non-executive Direcfors and independent non-
executive Direcfors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and

effective functioning.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the senior management.
The Direcfors may, upon reques!, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose o the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each

Director fo perform his responsibilities to the Company .

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strafegies and budgets, infernal confrol and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing
decisions of the Board, direcfing and co-ordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated fo the management.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and

of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appoiniment fo ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director's responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules

and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills fo ensure that
their contribution fo the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors
are encouraged fo attend relevant training courses af the Company's

expenses.

During the Relevant Period, the Company organized two training sessions
conducted by lawyer and Mr. Kong Aiquo, independent non-executive
Director, respectively for all Directors and Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Fang Zhifeng,
Mr. Zhao Xingli, Mr. Wang Lin, Mr. Lin Yuguo, Mr. Cheng Ruozhi and Mr.
Kong Aiguo have affended both fraining sessions. The session conducted by
the lawyer focused on corporate governance, directors’ duties,
responsibilities and obligations under the listing Rules and The Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, while the session conducted
by Mr. Kong focused on market value management and merger and
acquisition sfrategies. The Direcfors and senior management have also
reviewed the performance of the Company and the sales strategy of the

indusfry and have also discussed the market condition of the industry.
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Being a professor in corporate finance, Mr. Kong Aiguo has also read
finance and capital market periodicals such as Journal of Financial

Economics and Journal of Finance.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has esfablished three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company's offairs. All Board committees of the
Company are esfablished with defined written ferms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
(www.hemeiyl.com) and the HKEx's website (www.hkexnews.hk) and are

available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Direcfors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under "Board of Directors” in this Corporate Governance

Report.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting process, internal control system and
risk management system, audit plan and relationship with external auditors,
and arrangements to enable employees of the Company tfo raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
intfernal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 December
2015 to review inferim financial results and reports for the period ended 30
June 2015 and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance

procedures, infernal control and risk management systems.

As the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 July 2015, the Audit
Committee only met the Company’s external auditors once during the
Relevant Period.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; and
esfablishing fransparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and sfructure o ensure that no Direcor or any of his/her associates will

participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31 December
2015 to review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company
including the basis for granting share options, and the remuneration
packages of the executive Direcfors and senior management and other

related matters.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of Direcfors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and

assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
info account various aspects sef out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where

necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity,

where appropriate, before making recommendation fo the Board.

The Nomination Commitiee met once during the year ended 31 December

2015 1o review the sfructure, size and composition of the Board.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate govermnance policies and
practices, fraining and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company's policies and pracfices on compliance
with legal and regulafory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code
and the Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG

Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2015

is set out in the table below:

EERZEEHEZHE

ac &%
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

REEHEHE2015F12A3181EFE
BITZARFEESERESE

2 e

BEE &R

HEEREERRE

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
BENE g REZEE yMzEE EREEE
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Lin Yuming 5/5 1/1 N/A N/A
MEBREE i A i A
Mr. Fang Zhifeng 5/5 N/A N/A N/A
Daliios = vk T iE A T A A~ iE A
Mr. Zhao Xingli 5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A
i R 7 S A T iE B M~ iE A
Non-executive Directors
HHITEE
Mr. Wang Lin 5/5 N/A N/A 1/1
EHREE TiE A TEA
Mr. Lin Yuguo 5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A
ME B S A T iE A i A
Mr. Cheng Ruozhi [Resigned on 28 December 2015) 4/4 1/1 N/A N/A
BEZEE(R2015F 12 A28 HEHE) T A i A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFBITEE
Mr. Kong Aiguo 5/5 1/1 1/1 1/1
LEREAE
Ms. Fang Lan 5/5 1/1 1/1 1/1
FEZT
Mr. Cai Jiangnan 4/5 —/1 —/1 —/1

BEImEE
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The attiendance record of Mr. Cai Jiangnan at the Board meeting by his
alternate is set out below:

ERER®RE (A

FIRMAENEFTEERNEFLE(HA
OB TALR &HIMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEER,EERE
Name of Nomination Remuneration Audit
Alternate Director Board Committee Committee Committee
BEESHA ZEEE RELEE FMEEE EREEY
Ms. Fang Lan ] N/A N/A N/A
FEZ L k! TiE A TiE A
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with ~ FREHIRITEFT @SR/ RABEHE

the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the presence of executive Directors during the Relevant Period.

According fo Article 56 of the Arficles of Association, an annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year other than the year of
the Company's adoption of the amended and restated Arficles of
Association. As the amended and restated Arficles of Association which
became effective on the Llisting Date was adopted pursuant to written
resolutions of all Shareholders passed on @ June 2015, no AGM was held
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Direcfors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial

stafements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating fo events
or condifions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to

confinue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporfing responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 65 to 66 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid fo the external auditor of the Company,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, for the year ended 31 December 2015
is set out below:

¥ BT B &=

ARG GEE2015F12A31 B EFEMR
RRABINEZEENZE « BAERTT ST
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Service Category Fees Paid/Payable
PR 7 %8 Bl et N E A
RMB'O00

ARBEF T

Audit Services EZRE 2,000
Non-audit Services T %R -
2,000

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective internal control system
fo safeguard the Company's assets and the inferests of Shareholders. During
the Relevant Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
fraining programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal

audit and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Wei, Vice President, and Ms. Ng Sin Yee Clare of Tricor Services
Limited, external service provider, are the joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Ng's primary confact person at the Company is Mr. Chen
Wei.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution will be
proposed for each substantially separate issue af general meetings, including
the election of individual Direcfors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be vofed on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the HKEx affer each

general meefing.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant fo Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-fenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
af general meetings of the Company shall af all times have the right, by
writtlen requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an exfraordinary general meeting fo be called by the Board for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meefing
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed fo the requisitionist(s) by

the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands for putting forward proposals of new resolutions by
Shareholders at general meetfings. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company fo convene a general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragroph to
consider the business specified in the requisition. For proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer fo the “Procedures for Shareholders o
Propose a Person for Election as a Director” posted on the Company's

website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For puting forward any enquiries fo the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send writtlen enquiries to the Company. The Company will

not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above fo the

following:

Address:  No. A2 Xiaoguan Beili, Beiyuan Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, The People’s Republic of China
For the atfention of the Joint Company Secretary

Fax: 86 10 57960506

Email: ir@hemeiyl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the
case may be) fo the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order fo give effect thereto. Shareholders’

information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours fo
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
AGMs and other extraordinary general meetings. At the AGM, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available fo meet Shareholders and

answer their enquiries.

The Company has adopted an Amended and Restated Memorandum of
Association and Arficles of Association pursuant fo written resolutions passed
by all Shareholders on @ June 2015 when preparing for the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The Amended and Restated
Memorandum of Association became effective on @ June 2015 while the
Amended and Restated Arficles of Association became effective on the
listing Date. During the Relevant Period, the Company has not made any
changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Associafion. An up fo date
version of the Company’s Memorandum and Arficles of Association is

available on the websites of the Company and the HKEx.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial stafements of Harmonicare
Medical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 67 fo 154, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated sfafement of changes in equity and consolidated sfatement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated  financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal
confrol as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and fo report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed ferms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
fo any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit fo
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated  financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant fo the enfity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriafe in the circumsfances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
infernal confrol. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esfimates
made by the directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRSs and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GceEmhHEMEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 # £ 20154 12 A31 B L FE

For the year ended
31 December 2015
HZ12A31HLLEE
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’™ 000
B =% ARET T ARETT

Revenue I 25 6 909,362 935,839
Cost of sales and services $HE KBRS A A (448,557) (463,492)
Gross profit E 5 460,805 472,347
Other income H bl A 8 13,085 Q65
Other gains and losses Hitn s R E5 18 Q 22,483 (892)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (218,172) (217,235)
Administrative expenses TR X (109,611) (105,553)
Share of net losses of associates FEIL B = AR BT R - (434)
Other expenses EMAX 10 (26,623) (9,871)
Profit before tax B 74 A 7 S 11 141,967 139,327
Income fax expense FriSfiF XX 12 (31,566) (34,198
Profit and fotal comprehensive income for FARANER2EEABE

the year 110,401 105,129
Profit and fotal comprehensive income for ATEREEFAFBERES

the year affributable fo: LN -

Equity holders of the Company RARIERFEA 106,173 103,379

Non-controlling inferests AR = 4,228 1,750

110,401 105,129

Eamnings per share ZRAEF

— basic [RMB cenfs per share| —HEXRERARESD) 15 15.84 17.97

— diluted (RMB cents per share) —BBEEBRARES) 15 15.84 N/A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR O R

As at 31 December 2015 HR2015F 12831 H

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARBT T ARET T
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E 16 229,370 203,134
Infangible asset mILEE 17 33,860 4,310
Prepaid rental BREE 1,956 -
Rental deposits Hekse 9,482 9,051
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 18 27,781 32,122
302,449 248,617
Current assets BN E E
Inventories TE 19 22,253 19,831
Trade receivables B 5 EWHRIA 20 38,094 13,850
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables R 'e REMERK
RIA 21 42,287 30,444
Amounts due from related parties JiE Ut 8 38 75 3R IR 22 - 16
Certificates of deposit TR 23 320,984 —
Bank balances and cash RITEHEES 24 901,994 72,063
1,325,612 136,204
Current liabilities BB E
Trade payables B 5 R’ FRIA 25 28,494 16,364
Other payables and accruals HihEMRBE R ETER 26 134,252 113,718
Amounts due fo related parties JE < 8 38 5 7 IE 22 — 300,401
Tax payables FE A BE 1B 20,816 18,980
Provision & 15 27 822 1,400

184,384 450,863
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
RS B IR OR & ()
As at 31 December 2015 1A2015%12A318

As at 31 December

R12A 31 H
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Mz AR®TRT AR¥TR

Net current assets (liabilities) TEBRE(BR)FE 1,141,228 (314,659)
Total assets less current liabilities HEEERMRBARE 1,443,677 (66,042)
Non-current liability FERBEE

Accrued rental expenses Bt e R 32,712 33,456
Net assets (liabilities) FEEARRE) 1,410,965 (99,498)
Capifal and reserves BRKf#E

Share Capital A% Zx 28 608 —

Share premium and reserves A% A7 3% (B K 5 1,408,301 (97,279)
Equity affributable to equity holders of ARFIEETE AREES

the Company 1,408,909 (97,279)
Non-confrolling inferests FEFERRHE = 2,056 (2,219)
Total equity 481 25 1,410,965 (99,498)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 154 were approved 67 B R IS4B 2 a W BRERDNIKLES
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 23, 2016 and &R 20163 H23 B #it A& R X% H| & W i

are signed on its behalf by: NTEEREREE
Lin Yuming Zhao Xingli

MEHR i)

Director Director

EF EZE
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Conso|idofec| Statement of Changes in Equity

-

SREBBE

v/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z=201

SF12A31HIEFE

Attribute to equity holders of the Company

KAREREEAEE
Statutory Attribute to
Other Share surplus non-
Share Share reserve opfion reserve  Accumulated controlling
Capitdl ~ premium (Note i) reserve (Note ii) losses Total interests Tofal
ity EERE
B 1] BRE e 25 FER
BA e (M) e (M) BE B RRER -
RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'0OO0  RMB'000  RMB'C00  RMB'000  RMB'00O
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTL ARBTR ARETL ARETT ARKTT ARMTRT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2014 201451 A1 BE&H - - 83,754 - 21,316 [166,549)  (61,479) [5,733)  (67,212)
Profit and fofal comprehensive income  FERFIEREZERA
for e year fak - - - = - 103,379 103,379 1,750 105,129
Appropriations R - - - - 22,336 (22,336) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribufion BARDEABRE
[Note 14) (MEE14) = = = = = (70,3100 (70,310) (1,688]  (71,998)
Acquisition of nonconfrolling inferestin IR EEBTEARK
Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co., BRAR(EEHM
lid. [“Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital’) A BB ) K312
Note ii 18 (i aii) - - 9 = = = 9 (68) (59)
Acquisition of noncontrolling interestin-~~ WEEEM X T BRER
Guangzhou Woman Hospital Co., lid. AR ([EMZ T
["Guangzhou Woman Hospital’) Bel) Mo FE AR
[Noe iv] HE s (fitsEiv) = = 207 = = = 207 (307) (100)
Consideration paid for acquisition of WEAREHINEAR
subsidiaries under common control EEE D)
[Note v) = = [47,150) = = = [47,150) = [47,150)
Contribufion from a non-controlling & IS% NEREERER
shareholder of Shenyang HarMoniCore A 7] ([ B A1)
Obstefrics and Gynecology Hospital FERBRNEE
Co., lid. ["Shenyang HarMoniCare (Fit & vi)
Hospital’} {Note vi - - - - - - - 2,800 2,800
Disposal of a subsidiary os partof e REAFK HEHBAR
Reorganisation (as defined in Note 2) (E&RME2)
[Note 36) (H3E36) = = 6,768 - - - 6,768 1,027 7,795
Disposal of associates as part of the REABHERLAR
Reorganisation (Note vii) (P Evii) = = (35) = = = (35) - (35
Disposal of availableforsale invesiments os 74 2 48 F it & ] 4 i1 &
part of the Reorganisation [Note vii| BB (W i) - - (700) - - - (700) - (700)
Capital injection in HaroniCare Medical %71 %g BERZ "E]
Management and Consulfing Co., lid.  BRAR ([AEE
["HarMoniCare Management and %ﬂj) IE&
Consulting”) (Note ix| (GED) - - 250,000 - - — 250,000 - 250,000
Consideration payable for acquisifon of ~ BHKEBERIEEBHH
HarMoniCare Management and ERRE
Consulting [Note x) (MizEx) - - (277968 = = - (277968 — (277,968
Balance af 31 December 2014 2014512 R3] HEY &4 - - 14,885 = 43,652 (155816)  (97,279) (2,219) (99,498
Profit and fofal comprehensive income FRFMBERZAKAER
for he year - - - - - 106,173 106,173 4,228 110,401
Appropriations 28] - - - - 7,622 (7,622) - - -
Capifal injection in the Company (Note xi| - #772 7140 & (Bif 5¥xi) 91 278212 - - - - 278303 - 278303
Capitalisation issue (Note xil] B 35T (X 363 (363) - - - - _ _ _
Issue of new shares on the global offering 2 3% % & #T B % 17
[Note xiii (P 3xiif) 154 1,160,888 - - - - 1,161,042 - 1,161,042
Costs of issue of new shares (Note xiii] ~ B{TE KA 2 A
(GED) - (43,966) - - - - (43,966) - (43,986)
Expenses recognised on equily seffled RARELEE 2 RH
share-based payments (Note 29) IHBERZAX
(Ff5£29) - - - 4,636 - - 4,636 47 4,683
Balance at 31 December 2015 2015612831 A& 608 1,394,771 14,885 4,636 51,274 (57,265) 1,408,909 2,056 1,410,965




Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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The other reserve as at 1 January 2014 represented the registered capital of
subsidiaries, which were owned by Bosheng Medical Investment Co., lid.
("Bosheng Medical’) and deducted by the consideration paid for the
acquisition of the equity inferest in those subsidiaries, which is accounted for as
deemed distribution to the then shareholders of those subsidiaries.

According to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") Company Llaw and the
Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, these companies
are required tfo fransfer 10% of their respective afterfax profits, calculated in
accordance with the PRC GAAP, to the sfatutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can
be utilized, upon approval of the relevant authorities, fo offset accumulated
losses or to increase registered capital of these companies, provided that such
fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.

In July 2014, Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital
Co., lid. ("Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital”) acquired 0.5% non-controlling
interest in Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital at the consideration of RMB59,000.
The consideration was paid in July 2014.

On 9 June 2014, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 1% non-controlling
interest of Guangzhou Woman Hospital atf the consideration of RMB100,000.
The consideration was paid in August 2014.

On 29 July 2014, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 100% the equity
interest in Chongging Bosheng Hospital Management Co., Lid. (“Chongging
Bosheng Management”’) from Bosheng Medical at the consideration of
RMB2,500,000. On 20 August 2014, HarMoniCare Management and
Consulting acquired 100% the equity inferest in Guiyang HarMoniCare
Hospital from Bosheng Medical at the consideration of RMB44,650,000.

In April 2014, odditional capital amounting to RMB11,200,000 and
RMB2,800,000 were injected by Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital and a non-
controlling shareholder, respectively.

On 10 July 2014, the Group disposed of the inferest in Linfen Modem VWoman
Hospital Co., ltd. (“Linfen Modemn Woman Hospital”) to Bosheng Medical for
proceeds of RMB5,251,000, which resulted in a loss amounting to
RMB35,000 recognized in equity of the Group.

The Group held 10% equity interests respectively in Tianjin Hebei Modem
Woman Hospital Co., ld. (“Tianjin Hebei Modern Woman Hospital”) and
Zhongshan Modern Woman Gynaecology Hospital Co., Llid. (“Zhongshan
Modern Woman Hospital”). These unlisted investments were disposed to
Bosheng Medical as part of the Reorganisation for total proceeds of
RMB1,300,000 in 2014. The disposal has resulted in a loss amounting to
RMB700,000 recognized in equity of the Group.

f 5

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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(ix)

(x)

(]

(xii)

(xiii)

On 31 July 2014, HarMoniCare Management and Consulting was
incorporated by Bosheng Medical with a registered capital of
RMB50,000,000. On 25 August 2014, dfter the capital contribution o
RMB200,000,000 by Bosheng Medical, the registered capital of
HarMoniCare Management and Consulting was increased tfo
RMB250,000,000.

=

On 15 December 2014, Bosheng Medical transferred 13.66% equity inferest
in HarMoniCare Management and Consulting to Sharp Charm Limited (“Sharp
Charm”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Galaxy Power Solution Limited (*Galaxy
Power”), at a consideration of RMB37,970,000. On 31 December 2014,
Bosheng Medical transferred 86.34% equity interest in HarMoniCare
Management and Consulting to Harmonicare Medical Group  Limited
("Harmonicare Medical”) at a consideration of RMB239,998,000.

As part of the Reorganisation in December 2014, the Company issued
Q0,152,787 shares to Homecare International Investment Limited (“Homecare”),
9,206,705 shares to Mighty Sky Investment Limited ("Mighty Sky”) at a tofal
consideration of RMB240,304,000, which was fully paid on 16 March,
2015.

In January 2015, Concord Glory Limited (“Concord Glory”) acquired Galaxy
Power and Concord Glory injected share capital amounting to United States
Dollar ("USD") 6.2 million (equivalent to RMB37,999,000) info Galaxy Power.
Subsequent to the cash injection, the Company acquired 100% equity interest
in Galaxy Power, and in exchange, the Company newly issued 15,724,324
ordinary shares to Concord Glory.

The cash proceeds from the above share issuance were used fo seftle
consideration payable for acquisition of HarMoniCare Management and
Consulfing.

On 9 June 2015, the Company increased its authorised share capital fo Hong
Kong Dollar ("HKD") 1,140,000 divided into 1,140,000,000 shares of
HKDO.001 each. Immediately following the global offering becoming
unconditional, 460,335,268 shares are allotted and issued, credited as fully
paid, to shareholders pursuant to the capitalisation issue.

On 7 July 2015, the Company completed the global offering consisted of
191,810,000 offer shares in total with the nominal value is HKDO.0O1 per
share at the offer price of HKD7.55. On 30 July 2015, the over-allotment
option has been partially exercised in respect of an aggregate of 3,095,000
shares with the nominal value of HKDO.OO1 each at the offer price of
HKD7.55. The aggregate net proceeds from the global offering were
calculated at the offer price of HKD7.55 after deducting the underwriting fee
RMB35,150,000 and the listing expenses amounting to RMB40,936,000 in
connection with the global offering.

(i)

(x]

(xi)

xii)

(xiii)
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SIERE RO

R2015F7A78  ARAIRBEEE7.55
BT KA 191,810,000/ & ik @ &
0.001/ T ERMMBIREE - 102015
F7H30H BREERESIZEESE/ 55
7 TT Bt & $£3,095,000 8% & ik H E0.001
BEORODTURBLTE - 2REEHE
MEFRBEFELHEKEHERARYE
35,150,000t ke A 2 Bk EEHBM L H
Fl X A R#40,936,000 & RIEZEEE
755 TTEE -



Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of infangible assefs
Share of net losses of associates
Gain on disposal of associates
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, nef
Impairment loss on frade and other receivables
Foreign exchange gains
Expenses recognised on equity settled
share-based payments
Inferest income from bank deposits
Inferest income from certificates of deposit

Fair value change of shortterm investments

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital

Movements in working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase in frade receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Decrease in amounts due from related parties

Increase (decrease] in frade payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to
related parties

(Increase) decrease in rental deposits

(Decrease) increase in accrued renfal expenses

Decrease in provision

Inferest received from bank deposits

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
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B 5% A A1

FLA T S IRME L
ME - BERRBITE
B A B
JE A Bt 2 X A i 1B % R
H & B R R B W s
HEME  WHELRREN

BiRFE

B 5 &R HE RN FRN R EEE

BEE 34 Us

FhUA B 4 5 B 2 B0 S RERR
Z X

RITFERZMEBWA

T3 E 2 M B WA

RREZARBERY

LEESEPHINCERDR

feio

EEELRD

7 % (8 00)

.5 1 IR S

B e RE A MKE
21

8 M BB 75 HO R

.55 1 38 1 10 R )

H At 8 4 300 R 3 2
A8 BB 6 7 3 O ) 42 10

HEZE (Em)
FEst £ 5 s Ot 4) 18 fn
AR
BUWRERITERZHE

REMBRE
ENAEHR

RERBITRAEFE

For the year ended 31 December
BZEI2A318LEE

2015
RMB’000
AREBFT

141,967

35,172
3,660

250
215
(22,195)

4,683
(10,654)
(654)
(753)

151,691

(2,422)
(24,359)

(13,672)
16
12,130
20,573

(1,602)
(431)
(190)
(578)

9,627

150,783
(25,389)

125,394

2014
RMB'000
ARETTT

139,327

36,564
773
434
(122)

464
648

(103)

177,985

1,129
(209)

(2,301)
17,579
(1,613
13,994

206,761
(17,317)

189,444
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Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Purchase of infangible assets
Proceeds on the disposal of investments in
associates
Repayments from related parties
Advances fo related parties
Purchase of certificates of deposit
Inferest income from certificates of deposit
Purchase of shortferm investments
Redemption of shortferm invesiments

Net cash (used in) generated from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid

Advances from related parties

Repayments fo related parties

Advance from the shareholder of Galaxy Power
Solution Limited for subscription of new shares

Capital injection by non-controlling shareholders
in Shenyang HarMoniCare

Capifal injection by the shareholders in
the Company

Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary as part of
the Reorganisation (Note 36)

Proceeds on disposal of investments in
Linfen Modern Woman Hospital Co., Lid.
as part of the Reorganisation

Proceeds on disposal of availableforsale
investments as part of the Reorganisation

Consideration paid for acquisition of
non-controlling inferest in Chongqing
Dushi Liren Hospital

Consideration paid for acquisition of
non-controlling interest in Guangzhou
Woman Hospital

Consideration paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries as part of the Reorganisation

Capifal injection in HarMoniCare Management
and Consulting

Proceeds from new shares issuance on
the global offering

Expenses incurred in connection with
the global offering

REEBHMEHEESRE

BEWE BWFELERE
HEME - WE RRERFHA

BEEVEE
HEREE R RIREMS R

A Bk 07 B K

() B8 Bt 73 2 5K
BATTRE
T3 2 M B WA
BAEHKE
BEOEHKE

KREZS (TR AR FHE

BERBASRERE

BERRE

B Bt 75 5 3K

B X T R

Galaxy Power Solution Limited i% 2
B AR ) B 5K

BEEAMEIEIERBR R EE

RABREAEE

B2 48 I L & BT 1B R R TS RUIE
(B 7£36)

REAREEREIRREZ T
BERRARARKREMSRIE

REAREHEATHEERE
FT 18 308

WiE B E AT E A IEER
EHEBEMRE

W ig BN 2 F B b JF A g s
BENRE

REARKENBRARSNRE
HMEEEAANIE
ERBEEHITHRZAFREA

ERBEEELZHAX

For the year ended 31 December
BZEI2A318LEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
(61,844) (19,868)
16 212
(33,210) (3,302)
800 620
— 317,940
— (275,018)
(314,417) =
654 =
(70,000) —
70,753 —
(407,248) 20,584
(423) (71,690
— 433,890
(1,862) (744,190)
— 18,969
— 2,800
259,334 =
— 2,262
- 5,251
- 1,300
- (59)
- (100)
(277,358) [47,150]
- 250,000
1,161,042 =
(43,966) =



MEBEZRERDE Fik 2015 | 75

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
mEReRER(A)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December
BZEI2A318LEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT

Net cash generated from (used in) mMEEHAE(FTA)EEFHE

financing activities 1,096,767 (148,717)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEYLINFRE 814,913 61,311
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning FNRERBELEED

of the year 72,063 10,752
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MEREH 2B FE 15,018 -

Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year FRIBEE& KRR E&EEY
represented by bank balances and cash G RS 901,994 72,063
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1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands on 26 August 2014. The registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and its principal place of
business is located in the PRC. The Company is an investment holding
company and the Group is principally engaged in provision of
specialised hospital services, especially in obstetrics and gynaecology

and supply chain business in the PRC.

On 7 July 2015, the Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial stafements are presented in Renminbi

["RMB”) which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the preparation of the listing of the Company's shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, the companies now comprising the
Group carried out a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”).
Defails of the Reorganisation are sef out in the prospectus dated 25

June 2015 issued by the Company.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the Company was owned by
Mr. lin Yuming, Shanghai Dinghui Jiangen Equity Investment Fund,
CCBI' Investment Limited and the then individual shareholders of
Bosheng Medical as to 37.43%, 13.66%, 8% and 40.91%
respectively, and the Company became the holding company of the
companies comprising the Group. The Group comprising the
Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the Reorganisation is

regarded as a confinuing entfity.

The consolidated sfatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated sfatement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are prepared as if the current group structure had been in
existence throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, or since
the respective dafes of establishment or acquisition of the relevant

enfity, where this is a shorter period.

—REHR

RRBR2014F8A26BREBER =
HERRZEZEREHESAMKRLR
E#HeAREMLRF - ARQAFM
#% 38 BE 3 31k /3 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands » = £ £ &
MBUAPE - KRR RIREERA
AleREETEREPHEEEENELL
R% - THRGEER RHEEERR -

R2015F7A78 - KRR E &
ABRGABR AR (B £ o

FAVBRRIDAARE(TARK]D
2 ARBTARRAZYEER

REMBHRREINEE

REFEARNRABRONRBRMMERE
e RREARAEENRARETT &
BEA(EAD) FHREAZFRH
RARXRRBHR2015F6H258 2
BRER -

FERREMBE S ANQAHMNERL
A LFERERERERESS D
% . CCBI Investment Limited X2 8 4 &
EERMNEARERESE  HAlFR
37.43% ~ 13.66% 8% % 4091% B
ARBIKARNEEETS R EH
TR NEl - BEHE  ANEERAHRN
REIRENBARMEAKMAIFER

CE

REBEE2015F12R31BIEFE
MiZaBakEtEEEER KE
EREZPHRMEAHERERTR
REMNEERBREZ2015%12
ASTRLSEXEHBAERS AKX
SR A H R (AR E AR %)
—HERFEMRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERAMN KEEE]ER

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the
following amendments to IFRSs issued by the Infernational Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”).

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Confributions

Amendments to IFRSs  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to IFRSs  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 20112013
Cycle

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

%= Al (I B9 B Rt
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F
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20125 A 2
FEHE
B R B 75 R o R Rl BB B IS #R 5
CHES) ERI2011F &
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (confinued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs

that have been issued but are nof yet effective.

IFRS @

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments o IAS 16

and IAS 38

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments o IAS 16 and

IAS 41

Amendments fo IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments o IAS 12

Financial Instruments'
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

leases®

Accounting for Acquisitions of Inferests

in Joint Operations”
Disclosure Initiative”
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation”

Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses?

S I
IfF st 22
i

T o 20

2
N

=

—_

W =

— |m
é\gli

5B M

©

K S
ok =

RAl
=

=1

\

N

=

N

G

—_

L—

—mf
| S

Ral
=
W

CE
7

B~

-
E
Ei!

—~
e
il

P fy
o

S
N
TfF 2%

AEBEYEEFEATICRME
R R A B2 ¥ AT B AR M8 BT B B B 7%

SEE TR

B B B 75 3R 25 22 A
Eogel

B B B 75 R 45 22 8
F155

B B B 75 R 45 2 B
F165

B B B 75 3R 25 22 Al
F115 (BETA)

B & 5t 2 2
EAL AR
R& st A
F 1658 K& BHE
S ERIZE 385
CHES)
B % Bt 75 e e 22 R
CHEN),

B & 51 2R
£ 1658 & B
BEHERIZEA1 5
CHEN),

B R B 75 R o
R 1058 R
B & &2 Al
2858 (BT &)

B % Bt 75 e e 22 R
105
B R B 75 3R
R 1258 R
B & &1 2 A
285 (BT &)

B & 5t 2 2
EVE AR

BB & 5t 22 A
F 125 (BT )

SRIA

BEF AW
2
mE

REARELES
BEWEst
BRI’

WERET &

HAESHTE
SR 55 7 0R Y

i

B R B 75
ERI2012F &
20145 A H 2
FREBE

REEEN
=k

REEEEBE
NEISE &
EIZHEE
B EHIRAS

REEE Bt

BOEBIIMNE B

R E7

HARRER
BRELEHIE
A’



NEBRERERAT &3 2015 | /9

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (”lFRSS”) (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be defermined

Except as described below, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the above mentioned new and
amendments fo IFRSs issued but not yet effective will have a material

effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts

and the related Inferpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue fo depict the fransfer of promised goods or services fo
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration fo which the
enfity expects fo be entifled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard infroduces a 5-step approach fo revenue

recognifion:

Step 1 : Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2 Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3 : Determine the fransaction price

Step 4 : Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the confract

Step 5 : Recognise revenue when [or as) the enfity safisfies a

performance obligation

FE %1 5] & A2 42 5] Bl iR
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N &A% 5T B B B 75 3R &5 %

Bl ()

| R2018E1 AT B R T KB E R
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© B2017E1 A1 A %2 % BG 0 EE
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POR2019F1AIB R BRBNEFEE
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Y R216FIATB R ZEFBBEOFE
R AR

> RISETEZ B Hsk 2 & 56 e FE
A

BTXPrtES AARERRHAR
P LA £ B 98 5 1B 15 R A Rz % AT B
BRUHBERELENRETATEHA
SEZGAVBRREKEATE -

[ P B 5 3R 25 2E Al 55 155%
JK EXIE./:.\,“’\] HY YR

BRMBERESEREISHKEER
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as| a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
fo the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive

disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The direcfors of the Company anticipate that the application of IFRS
15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of IFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

IFRS 16 leases was issued in January 2016. It will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2019. This new
standard provides a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial statements of

both lessors and lessees.

The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring
lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease
ferm is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value.

A lessee is required fo recognize a rightofuse asset and a lease
liability at the commencement of lease arrangement. Rightofuse assef
includes the amount of initial measurement of lease liability, any lease
payment made to the lessor at or before the lease commencement
date, esfimated cost fo be incurred by the lessee for dismantling or
removing the underlying assets from and resforing the site, as well as
any other initial direct cost incurred by the lessee. lease liability
represents the present value of the lease payments. Subsequently,
depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the rightof-use asset
will be charged fo profit or loss following the requirements of IAS 16
— Property, Plant and Equipment, while lease liability will be
increased by the inferest accrual, which will be charged to profit or
loss, and deducted by lease payments.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRI RKLIEE B
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING B 3% ¥R & 2 B ([ B PR Bt
STANDARDS (”":RSS”) (Continued) i% $ﬁ % /EJJJ) (&)

T oy

As set out in Note 30, total operating lease commitment of the Group AN FESOFTH - AEB R 20154
in respect of premises leased for hospitals and offices as at 31 12ANEREEMENERERE
December 2015 amounted to RMB486 million (31 December 2014: A WE B A R 486,000,000t (2014
RMB551 million) , the direcfors of the Company do not expect the F12A31F: A R #551,000,000
adoption of IFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting policy ) A AT EERKE IR B K
would result in significant impact on the Group's result but it is K& FEHRNBRB SRS ERSE
expected that certain portion of these lease commitments will be 1O B I EH A EBRNEREKSE
required fo be recognized in the consolidated statement of financial RNEE . MIBHIE T o %SRS &
position as rightof-use assets and lease liabilities. EEERGAVTBERRNRERAE
RREEERHEERE-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FEFTHHE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in ZESZEUBBRRCIBE RN B
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial HELEABE I ZEEESH
statements included applicable disclosures required by the Rules BRERBHWNEEHAISIMAR
Goveming the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the NAEHREMRAURES DB ED
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance ("CQO"). ([RAFEBR DB EZ EBHABEEEE -

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. MEBERNARD(F6228) 5 M RmE
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and RENEERERERZIEXD Y
audits became effective for the Company for the financial year ended RARBZE2015F12A31 H LB B
31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the FEEAM - WIN ETARBIFTE A
Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with EERBZEBRTEL2EHFAA
reference to the new CO and to streamline with IFRSs. Accordingly & {5 T & 5T 7 £2 BR R B 7% 3R &5 #E 8
the presenfation and disclosure of information in the consolidated MR — e At HE2015F12A8
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 BB EEZREMBEHREA
have been changed fo comply with these new requirements. ZEREIRBEE T ERIAESF
Comparative information in respect of the financial year ended 31 HEHBEF - BEEZ=2014F12A
December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated BB FEFEZLEBREMERE
financial statements based on the new requirements. Information HETREGEAMBRERANZT B
previously required fo be disclosed under the predecessor CO or o ARIE BT A RE D 3 _E T AR BI7E A
Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are FAETHERREN DB GO k&
not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. BT LR BAEARE 2SR AR

FAEMBHRPE BEKE -

The consolidated financial sfatements have been prepared on the AN T N ErH s @R E AT - %S
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained FAMBERRENREHRIZE LK

in the accounting policies set out below. REERH o
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

The principal accounting policy are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and enfities confrolled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

(i) has power over the investee;

(i) s exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its involvement
with the investee; and

i) has the ability to use its power to affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins with the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses confrol of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated  statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains controls unfil the dafe when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
affributed 1o the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
inferests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is affributed fo
the owners of the Company and fo the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made fo the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All infragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relafing to fransactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

4,

FESTHXR@

BESERABEDREERE KR
BRNHNOREZAAEBEFE -

TEEABRRERTX -

HAEMBERRBEARTRARF
2RI ER(RENBAR) 2H B
BR-WBATBER AXRAER
1 I 4

) FAHEKEHRITEES

il HeRfEHKmOEERE
EREBTREE R

il BRENTEEENTEZEE
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WA EERIERE T Lt =B
AEP - F-RIALHREH K
SEEENTEERTENREY
% o

AEBERERFIHE R R Z G KK
MEBRARGAEAR YRKEMBAR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership inferests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity fransactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
inferests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted fo reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling inferests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and affributed fo owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it i} derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts af the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income affributable to them), and [iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained inferest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Investment in subsidiary is stated as cost less any identified impairment
loss on the statement of financial position of the Company. The result
of subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

An associafe is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power fo participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
af cost and adjusted thereafter fo recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
inferest in that associate (which includes any |ong-ferm inferests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group disconfinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only fo the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of the associate.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied fo defermine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect fo the
Croup's investment in an associate. VWhen necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assefs as a single asset by
comparing ifs recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carmying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the invesiment ceases to be an associate. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a partial inferest in the associate
is included in the defermination of the gain or loss on disposal of the

associate.

When a group entfity transacts with an associate of the Group [such
as a sale or contribution of assefs), profits and losses resulting from the
fransactions  with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial stafements only to the extent of interests in the

associate that are not related fo the Group.
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(Continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts

and sales related taxes.

Hospital service income is recognised when the related services are
rendered and when it is probable that the economic benefits from the
service rendered will flow to the Group and such benefit could be
reliably measured. Advanced receipts in respect of certain package

for which the relevant services have yet to be rendered are deferred.

Provision of hospital services in package is accounted for as multiple
element revenue fransactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated fo each kind of services under the
package. Such consideration is not recognised as revenue af the fime
of the initial sale transaction but is deferred and recognised as

revenue when the Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

(i)  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

(ii) the Group retains neither continuing monogerio| involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

confrol over the goods sold;
(i) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

liv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

[v)  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

Inferest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow fo the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Inferest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rafe that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that assef's net carrying amount

on inifial recognition.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In preparing the financial statfements of each individual group entfity,
fransactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised af the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monefary items denominated in foreign currencies are
refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setlement of monetary items and
on the refranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the condifions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a sysfematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the

related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support fo the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

The employees of the Group are members of statemanaged refirement
benefit schemes, the obligations of the Group under which are
equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan. Payments to stafemanaged refirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contribution.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing fo employees in respect
of wages and salaries in the period the related service is rendered at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for that services.

Liabilities recognised in respect of shortHterm employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected fo be

paid in exchange for the related services.

Inventories are sfated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is calculated using the firstin firstout method. Net realizable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all

estimated costs necessary fo make the sale.

Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

Share options granted to employees

Equity-sefiled share-based payments to employees are measured at the
fair value of the equity insfruments at the grant date. Defails regarding
the determination of the fair value of equity=sefiled sharebased
fransactions are set out in Note 29 fo the Group's consolidated

financial statements.

The fair value defermined at the grant date of the equity-setiled share-
based payments is expensed on a straightline basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instrument that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share opfion
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instrument expected tfo vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimate, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised

estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. VWhen
the share options are forfeited affer the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in

share option reserve will be transferred to retained eamings.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straightline basis over the lease term. Contingent renfal arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to seffle the present obligation af the end of the
reporting period, taking info account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. VWhen a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the

time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seffle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can

be measured reliably.

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lumpsum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion fo the
relative fair values of the leasehold inferests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid rental” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straightline basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,

p|onT and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress as
described below are stated af cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in esfimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified fo the
appropriate  cafegories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these asses,
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Infangible assefs with finite useful lives representing trademark and
software that are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization is recognised on a straightline basis over their estimated

useful lives of five fo ten years.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecogpnition of intangible assets

An infangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order fo determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. VWhere a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a prefax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset [or a cash-generating unif) is
estimated to be less than its carying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unif] is reduced fo its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the assef (or a cash-generating unif) is increased fo the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unif] in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised immediafely.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tox” as reported in the
consolidated  statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
faxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred fax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assefs and liabiliies in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred fax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tox assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Deferred tax (Confinued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assefs arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to ufilise the benefits of the temporary

differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed af the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assefs are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seftled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred fax liabilities and assefs reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, af the end of the reporting period, fo recover or seffle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

enfity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly affributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assefs or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financiol assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the nef carrying amount on initial recognition.

Inferest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans Gnd receivqbles

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quofed in an acfive market.
Subsequent fo initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
frade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
certificates of deposit and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective inferest method, less any identified

impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assefs are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered fo be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

[i)  breach of confract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

(i) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or
financial Reorganisation.

For cerfain categories of financial asset, such as frade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the assef's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

discounted af the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
frade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. VWhen a frade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured af amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring dfter the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss fo the extent that the carying amount of
the financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the confractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it fransfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the asset fo another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
assef's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received

and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and amounts due to related parties) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective inferest rate,
fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Inferest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecogpnition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Croup's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amount of assefs and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and the future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment fo
the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies within the next financial

year.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and the depreciation/amortisation method in
defermining the related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assefs. This estimate is based on the
management's experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation/amortisations charge where the economic
useful lives are estimated to be shorter than original expected or will
writeoff or writedown the carrying value of the itfems which are
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned. Actual economic useful lives may differ from estimated
economic useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciafion/amortisations period and therefore depreciation/

amortisations charge in the future periods.

In addition, management assesses impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an item
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets may not be
recoverable. When the recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assefs differ from the original estimates,
adjustment will be made and recognised in the period in which such
event takes place. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
approximately RMB229,370,000 (2014: RMB203,134,000) and
RMB33,860,000 (2014: RMB4,310,000) respectively.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable temporary difference and taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant judgment is
required to defermine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tfax planning strategies. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets are approximately
RMB27,781,000 (2014: RMB32,122,000). Further details are
contained in Note 18.

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables

In determining whether there is obijective evidence of impairment loss,
the directors of the Company fake into consideration of the financial
strength of the counter parties, the credit history of the customers and
the current market condition. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's camying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset's original effective inferest rate. The directors of the
Company reassess the adequacy of impairment on a regular basis.
Where the actual cash flows are less than expected, material
impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of the trade and other

receivables are disclosed in Notes 20 and 21.

Provision for medical dispute claims

The Group may be subject fo legal proceedings and claims that arise
in the ordinary course of business, which primarily include medical
dispufe claims brought by the former patients. Provision for medical
dispute claims is made based on the status of potential and active
claims outstanding at the end of each reporting period, and faking
info consideration the assessment and analysis of external lawyer and
the total claim exposure. Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remofe. A contingent
liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the confrol of

the Group.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

Provision for medical dispute claims (Continued)

Based on the assessment, the provisions for the certain medical

dispute claims existed af the end of each reporting period provided

by the Group were disclosed in Note 27. The situation is closely

monitored by the directors of the Company and provision will be

made as appropriate. Where the final actual claims are greater than

expected, a material dispute claims expense may arise, which would

be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a claim

takes place.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable from provision

of specialised hospital service and supply of pharmaceuticals and

medical devices business, net of discount and sales related taxes, are

as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARET T ARETIT
Specialised hospital service: HRIBEERRT
Provision of healthcare services TR B AR 7 773,904 789,068
Sales of pharmaceuticals and THE G R BRI
medical devices 100,329 109,357
Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical HHRELE T K BB AR M TS
devices business 35,129 37,414
909,362 935,839
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. 7HEH

Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Fang Zhifeng, the direcfors
of the Company, are identified as the chief operating decision maker
(the "CODM") of the Group for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment. The CODM reviews operating results
and financial information on a company by company basis. This is
also the basis upon which the Group is organised. Accordingly, each
company is idenfified as an operating segment. When the group
companies are operating in similar business model with similar target
group of customers, and under the same regulatory environment, the
Group's operating segment are aggregated and the Group's
reporiable segments for segment reporting purposes are as follows:

(i) Specialised hospital service

Revenue derived from specialised hospital service, especially in
obstefrics and gynecology, provided at hospitals within the
Group.

(i) Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical
evices business

Revenue derived from sales of pharmaceuticals and medical
devices other than those supply as part of the specialised
hospital services.

Segment information about the Group's reporfable segment s
presented below.
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Supply of

pharmaceuticals

Specialised and medical
hospital service devices business Total

HEZERR
ERERRYE BEREXES Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTRT AR®TR

For the year ended 31 December HZE2015612A318 1k
2015 FE

External revenue SN 2R 874,233 35,129 909,362
Infer-segment revenue A B U - 42,146 42,146
Segment revenue 2 2B U &8 874,233 77,275 951,508
Eliminations EgE! (42,146)
Consolidated revenue ma s 909,362
Segment results D EBELE 153,150 7,893 161,043
Unallocated expenses Kol H X 19,076
Profit before tax B 5t B A 141,967
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. & %B ﬁ *SI’ (#&)
Supply of
pharmaceuticals
Specialised and medical
hospital service devices business Total
HEZERR
ERERRYE BEREER #mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEF T ARBTT AR®T:R
As at 31 December 2015 M2015€12A31H
Segment assets DEEE 1,299,257 51,966 1,351,223
Unallocated assets ROBEEE 1,233,651
Elimination of infersegment A B & Wi TR I8 # 85
receivables (956,813)
Consolidated assets HREBE 1,628,061
Segment liabilities SEHEE 1,134,954 36,719 1,171,673
Unallocated liabilities RKOREE 2,236
Elimination of infersegment payables 73 55 & {5 3% I8 1 (956,813)
Consolidated liabilities CAEBE 217,096
Other segment information H 5 # & £
Amounts included in the measure of 5T & 7 B E A 5T AH
segment results: D
Depreciation and amortisation PrE LY 35,760 306 36,066
Unallocated depreciation and R B & R H
amortization 2,766
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE BE KK
and equipment, net m BB F 8 250 - 250
Addition fo non-current assets (Note) — 3E i Eh & & 32 40 (M %) 55,628 8,012 63,640
Unallocated addition to non-current 7k % B2 3 7% ) & 2 18 N
assets 33,200
Amounts regularly provided fo the EHRMEZLERKE
CODM but not included in the RILEHESBEE
measure of segment results TEF AR &5
Income fax expense FriS i = 29,538 2,028 31,566
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 53\ %B E*SI’ (#&)

Supply of

pharmaceuticals

Specialised and medical
hospital service devices business Total

HrEEEm KL
ERBERRY BEREER #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTIT AR®BTT

For the year ended 31 December BZ2014%12A31H
2014 LLFE

External revenue SN SR U 25 898,425 37,414 935,839
Infer-segment revenue A 20U &5 — 48,560 48,560
Segment revenue o B = 898,425 85,974 984,399
Eliminations ! (48,560)
Consolidated revenue AW 935,839
Segment results D ERELE 143,120 4,107 147,227
Unallocated administrative expenses 7 2 Bt 77 B f X% 7,900
Profit before tax B 5t B A B 139,327
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. o %B ﬁ*sl’ (&)

Supply of
pharmaceuticals
Specialised and medical
hospital service devices business Total
R % m &
ERBERRY BERMER 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBETT AR®BTT

As at 31 December 2014 R2014%F12831H
Segment assets DEE E 652,964 26,487 679,451
Elimination of infersegment A BD FE R 18 ] 8

receivables (294,630)
Consolidated assets HREBE 384,821
Segment liabilities DEEE 761,323 17,626 778,949
Elimination of infersegment payables P 2F & {5 7% 38 % $4 (294,630)
Consolidated liabilities LEBE 484,319
Other segment information Hfth o2&
Amounts included in the measure of 3+ &2 5 EPEEH AH

segment resulfs: T
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & I 5 37,015 322 37,337
Loss on disposal of property, plant - Y )

and equipment, net EiEFE 464 - 464
Addition fo non-current assets (Note) — 3E 5 Zh & &= 3% 40 (Ff3T) 22,051 331 22,382

Amounts regularly provided fo the EHMEELEREER

CODM but not included in the HETE D HELE TG

measure of segment results AR &5
Income tax expense P51l < 33,134 1,064 34,198
Note: Non-current assets consist of property, plant and equipment and Wit - FRBDEEREYER - BE R

infangible assets. AR B E -
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from

both external and intersegment customers. During the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, the infersegment transactions
are charged at cost plus margin basis for the sales of pharmaceutical

and medical devices.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in Note 4. Segment results
represent the profit before fax earned by each segment, without
allocation of interest income, foreign exchonge gains, se||ing
expenses, adminisfrative expenses and listing expense not directly
related fo the respective segment, which represents the internally
generated financial information regularly reviewed by the CODM.
This is the measure reported fo the CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of moniforing segment performances and allocating
resources befween segments, all assets, liabilities and expenses of the

Company and other holding companies are presented as unallocated.

Income tax expenses have been allocated to segments as additional
information regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the
measure of segment result while the relevant deferred tax assets and
tax payables have been allocated into the segment assets and

liabilities.

No geographical information is presented as all of the Group's
revenue is derived from activities in the PRC, and all of the Group's
operations and major non-current assets are located in the PRC.

No revenue from individual external customer contributing over 10%

of total revenue of the Group.

7 EE R @

EXE2HODBURREREBIRET
FEAREFP Bz - RE 22014
FR2015F12A31 BIEFE - A
RAWMEEEm PR BERERENKAK
MAREEWE -

LED NG BOR B E4PT A
SEMNEFHRE K- p A XA
ENWMARRDENB WA - HMNE
Wat  HERS TERXREZS
BB A B Y £ T R ST R BR A AT A
B EETRELERRETHEHNNA
MUBER  WRARDEER LG
DHRRAEIBLLERKEZHRN
T30k e

+H&ﬂ

REED B i‘%ﬁ&
R AR RE AR
E ABERRAXBINRRS

EE D EEE
TZF)’TEQ

FSHAXE S REEDH ERE
HATIELLERRERENBRE
o BEFESMEERILETA M
HERENIEEEMEMNRE S

RESMEERAE-

GRS S € LYo FOE
BRAAEEMAEEREIEERD
BEBARRE Lm0 EE
%o

I & {8 5 S8 = P BB Y s 16 A
SEBWE10%A L o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

OTHER INCOME

RE MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

8. HflrA

For the year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLFE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFEUWA 10,654 103
Inferest income from certificates of deposit 17 FKE 2 Fl BULA 654 =
Government granfs BT B 531 396
Others Hib 1,246 466
13,085 Q65

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hthlz=m R EE

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETT

Loss on disposal of property, HEWIZ - HE KRB
plant and equipment, net B85 (250) (464]
Gain on disposal of associates )N G - 122

Impairment losses on frade and B 5 M EARUGRIEZ

other receivables BB E (215) (648)
Foreign exchange gains B 5 s 22,195 -
Fair value change of shortterm investments %28 E 2 A A BEESH) 753 =
Others Hity - 98
22,483 (892)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
fRE MR MR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=20154F 12 A31 HILFE

10. OTHER EXPENSES

11

10. H b

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT
Expenses in relation to the listing tHEEREY 24,727 7,393
Medical disputes expenditure BRI 1,067 1,994
Provision for medical disputes BERUORE 379 150
Penalty expenditure HEEF 192 207
Others Hith 258 127
26,623 9,871

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11. BR % A0 R

The Group's profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

AEBEFANBCHERETIEE:

For the year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALFE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT
Cost of inventories recognised as expense  FERR AR MTF &R A 144,453 160,547
Depreciation of property, M - BENRETE
plant and equipment 35,172 36,564
Amortisation of intangible assets EEERE 3,660 773
Tofal depreciation and amortisation e N HER 38,832 37,337
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEYZFRENLEHERS
rental premises 65,751 61,831
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) ZEHM (H:E 13) 2,796 368
Other staff costs H it B
Salaries and other allowance e R EAERL 264,115 261,665
Expenses on the Share Option Scheme AR BIRT 2 3,615 -
Retirement benefit contribution RRREFIHR 27,386 20,997
Total staff costs (FS NG 297,912 283,030
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl kA 2,000 394




12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A31 HILFE

12. RSB B X

Enterprise income fax (“EIT")
Current tax in the PRC
Deferred tax (Note 18)

AR B BN EAF A
EERIIE (FIRE18)

Total income tax recognised in profit or loss  FA 182 FER K ATIS T 48 %8

The Company is a fax exempted company incorporated in the

Cayman Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made as the Group
did not have assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profit Tax during
the reporting period (2014: Nil).

Under the Law of the PRC on Entferprise Income Tax (“EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the statutory EIT rate of all
other PRC subsidiaries in the Group is 25% (2014: 25%) except as

stated below.

In accordance with the approval from the local taxation bureau of
Yubei District, Chongqing City (EEM At & A TG D)
Yubeidishui longshanshuitong No. [2015]1128 (it i sE LB
2015112855 (2014: Yubeidishui longshanshuitong No. [2015]85
(At RiRE LA @2015855%)), Chongging Dushi Lliren Hospital
was entiled the preferential income tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 15%).

In accordance with the approval from the local taxation bureau of
Nan'an District, Chongqing City (EETRE F & A S D)
Nandishuinanshuitong No. [2016]5 (FH#FEFE201655%)
(2014: Nandishuishuitong No. [2014] 13331 (RibfifiEm
201413331%%)), Chongging Modern Woman Hospital Company
["Chongging Modern Woman Hospital”) was entifled the preferential
income fax rafe of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014 15%).

EEMAEH ( [REREHR] )

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFT ARETTT
27,225 25,155
4,341 2,043
31,566 34,198

ARABRASHSEMAINE
AR NI

B0 AN 5% B A i H R 3 AR R A
FANEH A ERBAE - A EET
REBNGSHEME(0145F : &) -

REFECERSHETEEMRF
BOED REBHEGE - BT XA
S AR AR A E At BB B 2 R A
AEREMBHERR25% (201445 ¢
25%) °

REEEmHILELAFREBED
B9t ST b 3 B BE LU B 3@ 20151128
R(20144F « J db #b i B WL B B
201585%%) ER MW E A BR R
B ZE2015F12A318 I E A #
ZRISUHEBRBHER(20145
15%) ©

BEEETEERAHEEHEH
B it 3 g 3 R R B @ 201655k (2014
M B E2014133315%) 0 &
BEREAZTERERAANTEER
RDREBEZE2015F12A831BILEFE
EHZZISANERMAEHRE(2014
0 15%) o
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. Fﬁ '/fFE.IF ﬁ Faﬁ SIZ (#8)
In accordance with the approval from the local taxation bureau of BEEETEMELFHREBED
Wanzhou District, Chongqging City (EEMEM &M HHBEB), B Ht S8 M B = BB 2015105
Wanzhoudishuigaoshuitong No. [2015]105 (&M iR 5 ERBMNAXGESRR AR
2015105%%), Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics and ([EEEMNME])NEZE2015F12
Gynecology Hospital Co., ltd. ["Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare ABIALFEAREXISUNER
Hospital”] was entitled the preferential income tax rate of 15% for the Fri8fi & (20144 : 25%) °

year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 25%).

In accordance with the approval from the local taxation bureau of BEEEMEERMLHHELE B %
Fuling District, Chongqing City (EEMEEREM A TR B BE SCOF B S B 8 20159058
Nandishuichengshuitong No. [2015]90 (5ZhF# 201 5905%) (20144 « 7% #b % 8 # —201458
(2014: Fudishuishuijianbeiyi No. [2014]58 (ZisFiEifE—201458 ) BEEREERENEGEERAR
5%)), Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology ARAI(EEZFEMEER ] RE
Hospital Co., Lid. ("Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Hospital”) was Z2015F12A3IBEEEEE=E
entifled the preferential income tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31 S15%H) 1B B TS B XK (20144 ¢
December 2015 (2014: 15%). 15%) °

In accordance with the approval from the local taxation bureau of BRIEEMNTEBERLFHREEED
Nanming District, Guizhou City (EMTEREMLTHREBE), B HE XX BB = 5 HO305% (2014 4 -
Shuitongsanfenju No.030 (B@B=5/30305%) (2014: FE LA = 38201404158 ) - EF5 =
Nandishuisantong No. [2014]041 (fgiFi=382014041%5%)), B REZE2015F12A31HIEFE
Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital was entitled the preferential income EEZXZISANEBRMBHE(2014
fax rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: &F:15%) °

15%).

In accordance with the approval from the local taxation bureau of BESNTESRHL AR BEEH
Yunyan District, Guizhou City (EMTEEEMF L) /) Bt 3T E % 3B 2015001255 (2014
Yundishuitong No. [2015]0012 (Z#:#£8201500125%) (2014: F: 2B 201400235) - ESH R
Yundishuitong No. [2014]0023 (EFii8201400235%)), Guiyang RzFERERARTEBERAD
Modern Woman Hospital Co., lid. (“Guiyang Modem Woman REZE2015F12A31BILFEA#
Hospital’] was entitled the preferential income tax rate of 15% for the ZRI5%MBERERER(20144F :

year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 15%). 15%) °
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled fo the profit before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

12. RIS H B X @

FANBREBRGABELEMER
Woas Ry BR B AT AB EBR 0T -

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A310LLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARBFT

Profit before tax IRV 141,967 139,327
Tax at applicable EIT rate at 25% B25%)E A EATS TR
HEHBIE 35,492 34,832

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TRAIHNR B S B R s &

for tax purposes 2,640 2,656
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AIERTIEE BN S & 2,732 2,199
Tax effect of deductible temporary AIERA R E B = BTS2

differences not recognised — 58
Utilisation of deductible temporary B S B AR RERR 2 AT F0 R B R = 5

differences previously nof recognised (480) =
Tax effect on the preferential income tax rate BB RA T IS5 2 (6,444) (5,547)
Utilisation of tax loss previously not B A LRIARERTIEER

recognised (2,952) -
Decrease in opening deferred tax assets R E AT R T BB ERIELE

resulting from a decrease in applicable HIEEERD

tax rafe 578 =
Income fax expense s 31,566 34,198

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is also imposed on dividends
declared and paid fo non-PRC resident in respect of profits eamed by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred fax has not
been provided for in the financial statement in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting fo RMBQ1,101,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB36,939,000), as the Group is able to control the fiming of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RIBEEMESHE B2008F 1A 1
B 2 B B A R Bh AT R AR A 3F
TEERE IR RIK RS IREM SR
BN -mRAEEAEHERZE
HNBROKBAEEREZRERARR
NG 2R CTR i N
X P R2015F12H31 8 #F Kt &
AR R BRENEREBAR
¥01,101,0007T (20144 = A R ¥
36,939,0007T) 5t 2 IE FE T I »
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=20154F 12 A31 HILFE

EXECUTIVE

Executive directors, chief executive and non-

executive directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2014:1)

13. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF

directors and chief executive were as follow:

13.%%&%Eﬁﬂlkéiﬁ

UTEE BETHAR
RIFEHITESE
ERKENTALAQOI4F: —F)
EERERTBRAESANHFHE
T

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BZE2015F12A831HILEEE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Share-based
allowances  contribution payment Total
EIRTE R
& ROEBE s &I X B3 = 4 #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETR ARBTRT AR®TR
Executive directors: (Note i) HMITESE - (Mg
Mr. Lin Yuming (Note iii] MEREE
(B =Eiii) 504 8 - 512
Mr. Zhao Xingli HEE A 375 12 472 859
Mr. Fang Zhifeng ValioS - i 322 6 596 924
Non-executive directors: (Note i)  FEITE S : (M ki)
Mr. Lin Yuguo MEBR K E - - - -
Mr. Wang Lin THREE — - — —
Mr. Cheng Ruozhi [Note iv) G 2 EHE
(B 5 iv) — - — —
Independent non-executive WY IFEMITESE
directors: (Note i) (B #Eii)
Mr. Kong Aiguo LERLE 167 - — 167
Ms. Fang lan HRRE L 167 — — 167
Mr. Cai Jiangnan ZImEE 167 — — 167
Total st 1,702 26 1,068 2,796




13. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE (Continued)

Executive directors: (Note i)

MEBFZRAMRDT  FH 2015 l ] ] ]

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

RBEERBEITHRAES

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A318ILFE

Salaries and
allowances

o kR
RMB'000
ARETTT

MITES : (D)

Retfirement
benefit
scheme  Share-based
contribution payment Total
R RAE A
A8l H K A 1D A 5t
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000

ARBTIT ARBTIT ARKETET

Mr. Lin Yuming (Note iii] MERR L&
(Bt & iii) 227
Mr. Zhao Xingli fHBLH S A 133
Non-executive directors: (Note i) JEZITE = : (M aEii)
Mr. Lin Yuguo MEB %L & -
Mr. Wang Lin EFREE -
Mr. Xu Xiaolin (Note iv) BN A
(Pt 5Eiv) -
Mr. Cheng Ruozhi (Note iv) a2 ek
(B &Eiv) -
Total Bt 360
Notes: B &
(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their (i)
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.
(i) The non-execufive directors’ emoluments and independent non-executive (ii)
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.
(i) Mr. Lin Yuming was appointed as the chief executive of the Company (iii)
on 26 August 2014 and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the chief executive.
(iv/  Mr. Cheng Ruozhi was appointed as director after Mr. Xu Xiaolin (iv)

v

resigned in 2014. And he had tendered his resignation as a non-
executive director of the Company on 28 December 2015.

All the other members except Mr. Lin Yuming were appointed as the
directors of the Company on 18 March 2015. The emoluments
disclosed above include the emoluments paid/payable to respective
individual by the Group prior fo their appointment.

(v)

5 = 232
3 = 136
8 — 368

ERATATEZTNHESEIEZRE
EMARNALAKEEEEEZERH
B AR 75 O SR B o

ERMRIERITES MBI IFHTT
EENMEEIERBERETALA
EEMRENRE 2 HE -

MERTER2014F8 A20 B EE
ERARAZITHRAE » LXK
Bemzie e ERIER/TTHRA
FriR RIS 2 B ©

B R 2 58 R 2014 6F HE 1R /NI 4
EHEREZEIRES ARER
201512 A28 B B tE AR Al 2 3F
HITE=S-

B ERREES - A EMKE R
20153 1BHEZERARAE
F-LXHMBEBECHMERBERRS
EZERAEEEN TENHEA
THBE -
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13. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one
(2014: none) is director of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 whose emoluments are included in the disclosures
above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2014: five) individuals

were as follow:

BEERBEITHRAES

(%)

12 & % Ff

BHE2015F12A31BIEFE - &A%
BrfusesHALH  BE—REARQ
AIEHR(2014F : &) EHEBMFRE
EREXHE - HepHE AL (2014
FRB)ZHFMAOT

For the year ended 31 December
BZEI12A31HLEEE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARBT T

Salaries and allowance e &OERL 2,014 1,903
Expense on Share Opfion Scheme BRI RT 815 X 11 -
Contributions to refirement benefits schemes 2R K 18 Fll 5 &Il ¢t 7% 44 17
2,169 2,020

The number of these highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following band is as follows:

FHNTFAUATHENRSFEE A
g

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HLEE
2015 2014

Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, no directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments, and no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the direcfors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

B E20144F k2015123108 1k
FE MEEFTHEARERELH
FH AEBYERNEEXRIEARS
FALIXHEAMSERMARE
EENIPNEI RS 3 2N
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14. DIVIDENDS 14.

FARER RIS

Dividends recognised as distributions
during the year

During the year ended 31 December 2014, according fo the
resolution of shareholders’ meeting of Guiyang HarMoniCare
Hospital, Chongging Fuling HarmoniCare Hospital, Guiyang Modem
Woman Hospital, Guangzhou Woman Hospital and Chongging
Dushi liren Hospital, accumulated profit of RMB71,998,000 was
distributed to Bosheng Medical and the non-controlling shareholders.

Subsequent fo the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMBO.06 per share amounting to RMB42.47 million in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2015 has been proposed by the directors
of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted eamnings per share attributable
fo the owners of the Company for the year is based on the following
dafa:

Earnings B8R

15.

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted A {EaT EFAIRER K i#EE T

earnings per share, representing profit for
the year affributable fo equity holders of (L 2 FRFE)

the Company

287 (AIEARABERFEA

Iz 5

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBFT
—~ 71,998

BHZE2014512A31BIEEE » BRIE
EEMEER EERRMEERR -
ERBRR BENMNZFBREEEHT
BABRMBIRASARER  MiEL
BRNMIEERRRDIRZFTAEA
K #71,998,0007T °

RBEHRERRE  ARFAEECESR
MEZE2015F 12831 B L FF k%
RABEBREBEBRARK00OTE HA
R¥42478 0 HAFRRRER
RERARE EHE -

BERER
0 AR RS AR SRR
158 BRI TS TSI B RE ¢

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBETTT
106,173 103,379
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continved)

Number of shares

15.

BEREZ R @
iz 17 21 B

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE

2015 2014
‘000 ‘000
FIR TR
Weighted average number of ordinary RIETESRERBNZ
shares for the purpose of basic eamings INHE 15 E B A B R
per share 670,274 575,419
Weighted average number of ordinary RETESRE SR
shares for the purpose of diluted eamings 4 F 35 & @A% 2 B N/A
per share 670,274 5@ A

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share has been adjusted for shares issued in

respect of the Reorganisation and capitalisation issue.

The computation of diluted eamings per share in 2015 does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s overallofment option granted
in relation fo listing and share options granted under share option
scheme (Note 29), because the exercise prices of those options were
higher than the average market price for shares for 2015. No diluted
eamings per share is present for 2014 as there were no dilutive
potential shares in issue in 2014.

RAGHESRER RN M MNEFH
ERBRBECHAEANRE AN
TMETZRDEITHE

015F28RBERANZAELE
BREARALLETRE 2 BREEK
BERBERESS(HE2 R
ZERBETE REAZZTHBRE
ZITRESRKRMN2015F 2 F5H
B WHEMR0I4FEL2NETREER
- ThER2014FE N B2 BHITEE
Bk
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16. M5 - MER&RE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold

londand  Leasehold Medical Motor Furniture ~ Construction

buildings improvement  equipments vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total

HE HE HER "E
THREF WEEE BERRE AE #E IR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT AR®TT ARETR

COST BN
At 1 January 2014 20141 R1H 18,956 181,054 142,152 12,359 49,272 4,106 407,899
Additions NE - 3,253 11,976 244 3,303 304 19,080
Transfer i — 4,410 — — — (4,410) —
Disposals HE = - (1,173) (326) (2,224) - (3,723
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMNBAA - (28,303) [10,204) [479) (2,865 — (41,851)
At 31 December 2014 2014F12A31 8 18,956 160,414 142,751 11,798 47,486 = 381,405
Additions NE 6,215 5,203 9292 138 2,751 38,075 61,674
Disposals & - - (570) (193) (649) - (1,412)
At 31 December 2015 2015%12A31H8 25,171 165,617 151,473 11,743 49 588 38,075 441 667
ACCUMUIATED DEPRECIATION RiE
At 1 January 2014 20141818 6,282 54,487 51,504 8,143 32,431 — 152,847
Charge for the year FRYH 809 16,069 12,804 1,277 5,605 — 36,564
Eliminated on disposals e B B — — (736) (303) (2,008) - (3,047)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR — (5,017) (1,928) (185) (963) — (8,093)
At 31 December 2014 2014%12A318 7,091 65,539 61,644 8,932 35,065 — 178,271
Charge for the year FRZH 832 15,907 13,230 850 4,353 — 35172
Eliminated on disposals HH e B B - — (402) (185) [559) — (1,146)
At 31 December 2015 2015%12A318 7,923 81,446 74,472 Q597 38,859 — 212,297
CARRYING AMOUNT HREE
At 31 December 2014 2014%12A31H 11,865 Q4,875 81,107 2,866 12,421 = 203,134
At 31 December 2015 2015%12A31H 17,248 84,171 77,001 2,146 10,729 38,075 229,370
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17.

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than

construction in progress are depreciated over their useful lives, after

16. ¥ - BWERRE®

Lt - B

ERHRBEEB(ERT

RBRIMN G R RGEERERF

faking info account the estimated residual value, on a straightline HIREGEERENT :
basis as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings 20 years HMELHREFT 20F
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the lease term and HEWMEERE ®REPHESZERE
estimated useful lives up to 10 years 104 & {51 AT A8
FHPHBREE
Medical equipments 10 years EL B 104
Motor vehicles 4-6 years RE 4E6F
Furniture and fixtures 3-6 years REREE 3EO6F
INTANGIBLE ASSET 17. B &=
Software  Trademark Total
B (5 Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARBTT
Cost B 7R
As at 1 January 2014 20141818 4,123 — 4,123
Addition NE 3,302 = 3,302
Disposal of a subsidiary e — M E A A (391) = (391)
As at 31 December 2014 2014512331 H 7,034 — 7,034
Addition NE 10 33,200 33,210
As at 31 December 2015 2015%12A31H 7,044 33,200 40,244
Accumulated amortisation BT #H
As at 1 January 2014 20141 A1 H 2,030 = 2,030
Addition NE 773 = 773
Disposal of a subsidiary s — B R A [79) = (79)
As at 31 December 2014 2014412 H31H 2,724 — 2,724
Addition NE 894 2,766 3,660
As at 31 December 2015 2015%12A31H 3,618 2,766 6,384
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2014 201451231 H 4,310 — 4,310
At 31 December 2015 2015%12A31H 3,426 30,434 33,860
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

17. B EE @

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation: HEEMNFAEREHMT
Software 510 10 years & 5Z 104
Trademark 10 years P 104
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18. EEHEEE
The movement of the Group's deferred tax assets during the years are ERNAREBELTHBEEZSHNT
as follows:
Unrealized
Accrued  Advertisement  profit from Allowance
Accrued rental  expenditure  intra-group for doubtful
staff costs  Tax losses expenses (note)  transaction Provision debts Others Total
i Bt EERX £EERS
EERA HEFE HERX (W)  REBRFAB B REBHE Hith @it
RMB'O00  RMB'O0O  RMB'000 RMB'OOO  RMB'O0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2013 2013F12H31H 4,030 17,574 3,535 14,191 1,166 429 — 240 41,165
Credit [charge] o RPN F
profit or loss (BE&=MR) 1,505 (12,870) [146) 2,215 131 (101) 162 6] (9,043
At 31 December 2014 2014%12A318 5,535 4,704 3,389 16,406 1,297 328 162 301 32,122
Credit (charge] fo s AER
profit or loss (BEB&=MR) 4,359) (4,265) (43) 4213 133 (125) 44 6l (4,341)
At 31 December 2015 2015128318 1,176 439 3,346 20,619 1,430 203 206 362 27,781

Note: The balance represents the nondeductible advertisement expense that
exceed the annual deduction allowed by the EIT Law. This deductible
temporary differences is allowed to be setoff against income from
subsequent taxable years.

st ZBEBBDEMEBRM A FFF
EHRBH AR ESRAX - %
AR E B = R A B H R AR
FREHUWA -
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18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued) 18. iﬁ ﬁ ﬁ | ﬁ E (&)
Deferred tax assefs have not been recognised in respect of the ELERBEEY ERERTHEIE

following items:

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARKETFTT

Tax losses HIEER 70,011 76,225
Deductible temporary differences A] 0 B = KA 34,207 36,127
104,218 112,352
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation fo those tax F R A K TEORI A8 B MY B 2 B R 2R A
losses and deductible temporary differences due to the unpredictability B RO B S K AT BE B RE AR B A AT
of future profit streams of the relevant subsidiaries and it is not HHATS AN IABE Y \ERZE
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax T TH B 18 & AT 1R B = R e ROR
losses can be utilised. JETRIAE E o
The tax losses will be expired as follow: MIAEEBHMT

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREET T

2015 20154 - 17,142
2016 20164 30,673 30,673
2017 20174 12,524 12,524
2018 20184 9,637 Q,637
2019 20194 6,249 6,249
2020 20204 10,928 =

70,011 76,225
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

INVENTORIES

19. 7 &

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBETIT

Pharmaceuticals ZE 14,888 13,066
Medical devices and consumables BRI & B AN 7,365 6,765
22,253 19,831

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows a credit period of approximately 60 days to 180
days for the specialized hospital service fo the patients which are due
from medical and commercial insurance program, O day to 90 days
for the sale of pharmaceuticals and medical devices after issuing

invoice.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented

based on the invoice date:

20. E 5 B IR

AEBE R AR ER 8B REE
WeEELEXERRAIFENEE
A RBO0ZE 180K - 1 $H & 5 o J B8
BRENEENRBFEEZRNOE
Q0K °

TXHINZEZEBHAZINES
JE W R IR R B D AT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT

Less than 90 days DIR90K 30,883 8,970
91 to 180 days 91E180K 4,014 3,480
181 days fo 1 year 181IRE1EF 578 1,101
Over 1 year HBiE1E 2,619 209

38,094 13,850

For trade receivables disclosed below which are past due but not
impaired, the directors of the Company access the customer's credit
quality by evaluating their historical credit records and define credit
limits for each customer. Recoverability and credit limits of the existing
customers are evaluated by the directors of the Company regularly.

HRTXHABEESBHEERER
BIRKKE  RAARESEEBFE
EEFPRENERELEFEEEE
BB UEEREPHNEERE A
AR EFEEHFEREAESAKE
AHAERBEFNEERSE -
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.

Aging of frade receivables that are past due but not impaired:

EZREWFIE @

EEHERREER S EEFEN K

EA
[EEa

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARMET T

181 days to 1 year 181RE14F 578 1,101
Over 1 year BiB1E 2,619 209
3,197 1,400

The frade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
receivables from the local medical insurance centers, receivables from
certain medical insurance companies and receivables from the sale of
pharmaceuticals and medical devices by Tai He Tang fo certain
cusfomers that have a good trading record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the direcfors of the Company believe that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date that credit was initially granted up to the
end of each reporting period.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

B & HE R E R E 5 R WK F0R E
FEUE B B AR I P D RIR - ENCE
TEERRARKBERERNMER
ETHEASEERFRILENT
FH#HEZER R BEEREMERZ X
HER -ENBERRHEREZRE
EREPREZIRERENERL
BERBRRASBARBRALRTER
AR B o

RMB'000

AREFTT

As at 1 January 2014 20141 R 1R —
Addition by 648
As at 31 December 2014 2014%12H31H 648
Addition 18 40 115
As at 31 December 2015 2015 12A31H 763
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of impaired trade receivables

mEMBRERMEE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

20. E 3 EWHKE @
EREE 5 EWRRERER

As at 31 December

MA12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Overdue by: #HE]
Over 1 year HBiE1F 763 648

21. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

2L AR -RERHEME

RECEIVABLES W IE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Prepaid rental BREE 17,755 13,853
Prepayments fo suppliers TARH R B FRIE 18,869 7,756
Deposits to suppliers NTHEBZED 1,290 1,234
Deferred expenses in relafion to the listing  _E 77 B X2 #8 B8 69 -5 3 &
expenses - 2,616
Consideration receivable for disposal BB DA R (E
of an associate 1,266 2,066
Other receivables H fth & U R IE 3,107 2,919
42,287 30,444

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO RELATED PARTIES  22. FE U {3 B8 75 ;X 1E

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T AREF T
Amounts due from a related company JRE Uiz (2 2 2 R) FE (B 5 34c)
(Note 34(c)) - 16
Amounts due fo related companies JE 1 B 2 2 ) 3 (B 5 34(c)
(Note 34(c)) — 299,351
Amounts due to a shareholder (Note 34(c))  F& < B% 58 2k 38 (M 5% 34(c) — 1,050

300,401
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23. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

23.

7 K&

As at 31 December

M12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR T ARBTF T
Certificates of deposit FE 320,984 —

Note: The cerificates of deposit were issued by Xiamen International Bank.
The certificates of deposit at par value were USD49,500,000 with
fixed refurns and the maturity periods of 101 days and 129 days
respectively. The certificates of deposit were settled on 8 January 2016.
The total amounts of principal and interest received were

USD49,897,000 (equivalent fo RMB327,412,000).

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

24.

ME - FTRAEFREMBBRITEL 7T
P M {E 4549,500,000% T M@
RE T BHR S A AI0TK K129
Ko ZEGFRENR2016%F1A8H
BEE BB ZAE RF BB
£49,807,000% 7t (HHE R AR
327,412,0007%) ©

RITEBRREE

As at 31 December

M12B31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBT T

Cash and bank balances denominated in: A TN E ¥ ENIR S RIB1TES

— RMB —ARK 877,322 53,092
— USD — X7 6,929 18,969
— HKD — BT 17,743 2
901,994 72,063

Bank balances carried interest at prevailing market rates which range
from 0.35% to 4.10% per annum as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
0.35% to 0.50%).

The bank balances denominated in RMB were deposited with banks
in the PRC and the conversion of such balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

2015612 A31H - R 17 & 8 A
WITMHFEFEN F0.35%E4.10%
(20144 : 0.35%ZF0.50%) 5t &, o

NAREFENRTEHTRS
BRT BREEHRILBRABINEAE
ST AR B T AR e S EE B AR A B
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. B G5 BT RRIE

As at 31 December
M12B31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTIT

Trade payables B S e FIE 28,494 16,364
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally granted on BZRNFEALE  BEHBOEX
0 to 90 days credit ferm. An aged analysis of the Group's trade WEEH RERSHR AEEK
payables, as af the end of each reporting period, based on the WEAHZIME S EMNRBRREK
goods received date, is as follows: DT -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARMET T

Within Q0 days 90K A 27,110 13,973
91 to 180 days 91E180K 358 Q34
181 days to 1 year 181RE14F 1,026 1,457

28,494 16,364
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FEMBHRERMEE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=20154F 12 A31 HILFE

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2&%@@ﬁﬁﬁ&@ﬁ§

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARETT

Advances from patients R ANB K 95,954 72,685
Staff cost payables JEHE B AR 28,866 29,443
Accrued operating expenses fEEtEEM X 1,685 869
Dividend payables FE 1~ P& B — 423
Other PRC tax payables H b e < A B F 1R 1,369 811
Construction fee payables ENEEE R 776 Q46
Accrued rental expenses e Y 1,308 754
Listing expenses payable JET E R X - 4,752
Others H1th 4,294 3,035

134,252 113,718

27. PROVISION

27. & tw

Provision for medical
dispute claims

BERUDRERS

RMB’'000

ARBT T

As at 1 January 2014 R2014%1 818 1,915
Provision by 150
Payments 3R (665)
As af 1 January 2015 RK2015F1A1H 1,400
Provision P 5 379
Payments R (957)
As at 31 December 2015 R2015% 12831 H 822

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes
arising from its normal business operations. The directors of the
Company assess the exposure and an oufflow of economic benefits
on certain major medical disputes existed at the end of the reporting
period based on the best estimate of the management and the opinion

of the external legal advisor.

AEBRARXEBEESNENET
BRAUAOME/RSE ARTAEER
BEEENREMRENEERE
RNERFEREIRETEIER
A 2 e B B B A7 R &R H
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A31 HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. f% 2
Nominal
Number value Share
of shares per share capital
BMHER BREE i@
HKD HKD
BT BT
Authorised ETE

On incorporation and at 31 December A & 5k 32 B K 72 2014

2014 (Note i) F12A31 8 BzED) 380,000,000 0.001 380,000
Increase in authorised share capifal S T B 2 12 00 (B £ i)

(Note iii) 760,000,000 0.001 /760,000
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12831H 1,140,000,000 1,140,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRHR
On incorporation and at 31 December A 5 it B 37 BF ]2 2014

2014 (Note i) 128318 (Mtsxi) = 0.001 =
Transfer from issued but not fully paid ~ # B 31718 & & & &

(Note i) (Bt 5E0) 99,359,493 0.001 99,359
New shares issuance to Concord Glory [ Concord Glory Limited

Limited (Nofe ii) BT (BT 5L ) 15,724,324 0.001 15,724
Capitalisation issue (Nofe iii) & A b 217 (M 2Liii) 460,335,268 0.001 460,335
New shares issuance on the global IR ERRET

offering (Note iv) (Bff 5 iv) 191,810,000 0.001 191,810
New shares issuance on exercise of 1A 1B B8 g R R 1T 5P B

overallotment option (Note v) BE1T 7 AR (BT L) 3,095,000 0.001 3,095
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12831H /70,324,085 /70,324
Presented as 235 RMB'000

AREFIT
608

Issued but not fully paid BETERHE
On incorporation (Nofe i) & I Ak 37 B (BT i) ] 0.001 —
New issuance (Note i) FreeqT (BYsED 09,359,492 0.001 —
At 31 December 2014 MR2014%F 12831 H 99,359,493 —

Transfer fo issued and fully paid (Note i) & # %= B 2% 17 K #1 2
(B 5E1) (99,359,493 —

At 31 December 2015 201512831 H = =
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F12A31 HILFE
28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

On 26 August 2014, the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability with authorised
share capital comprised of 380,000,000 shares at par value of
HKDO.001 per share. Upon its incorporation, one nil paid subscriber
share of the Company was fransferred to Homecare, which is wholly
owned by Mr. Lin Yuming.

In December 2014, the Company issued 90,152,787 shares to
Homecare, 9,206,705 shares to Mighty Sky Investments Limited at a
total consideration of RMB240,304,000, which was fully paid on 16
March 2015.

In January 2015, the Company newly issued 15,724,324 ordinary
shares fo acquire Galaxy Power.

On 9 June 2015, the Company increased ifs authorised share capital
to HKD1, 140,000 divided into 1,140,000,000 shares of HKDO.001
each. Immediately following the global offering becoming unconditiondl,
460,335,268 shares were allotted and issued, credited as fully paid,
to shareholders pursuant fo the capitalisation issue.

On 7 July 2015, 191,810,000 ordinary shares with par value of
HKDO.001 each of the Company were issued at HKD7.55 per share
by way of placing and global offering. On the some date, the
Company's shares were lisled on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

On 30 July 2015, the overalloiment option has been partially
exercised, and 3,095,000 shares with par value of HKDO.0O1 each
of the Company were issued at HKD7.55 per share.

28. B &N (@)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

2014%8A26B AR RHE
HEAMKZLAEREEREMEA
Al A TE R% AR B $5 380,000,000 %
FREMEO0.001 B TR H o 5t
RAE MR ERLEEE2EREN
Homecare ## 5 7K 1A &) — A% 7K 85 A% X
REARS -

2014128 A2 8 2 5l @
Homecare & Mighty Sky Investments
Limited & 1790,152,787 % K&
9,206,705 i - BMREABAR
#240,304,0007T © 201543 A
16B 5 -

2015F 1A KX &~ & ¥ ¥ 17
15,724,324 B & 58 i bA 45 8 Galaxy

Power ©

20156698 - AN 1 & # i H
ETERAZED 40,0008 T 5 &
1,140,000,000 8% & B E {€0.001 /&
T B R IREEK R EK
1&g RIBEE AR BEITERRAE
K B 17460,335,268 & & 1 - A Bk
FIRBR -

201557 R78 > ARRINEE R
EREBEEZHANRER755ETTHE
77191,810,000% % Bz E 1H0.001
BLzERERKR-BA  AAFRKH
PAEE AT ER £

201547 A30R  WBELKRED &
BOTE  RRABERER7.55%
JLE 173,095,000 & IR E{50.001
BTz -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. iE R R 5T &

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme’)
was adopted pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 9 June
2015 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to selected
participants and the validity period of the Share Option Scheme shall
be 6 years from the date of grant. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the board of direcfors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and employee of the
Group. The Share Option Scheme has become effective on 7 July
2015, the date on which the shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

In July 2015, the board of direcfors of the Company approved certain
share options granted to a list of eligible grantees (“Eligible
Crantees”), including 2 directors of the Company, 4 members of the
senior management of the Company, certain employees of the
Company and ifs subsidiaries. According fo the Share Option
Scheme, the Eligible Granfees were granted share opfions of the
Company to subscribe the ordinary shares of the Company at the
exercise price of HKD7.10 per share. In July 2015, a fotal of
9,339,600 share options were granted fo the direcfors and members
of the senior management of the Company and a total of 6,774,200
share options were granted fo certain employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The share options shall be aufomatically unlocked on
the unlocking dates in accordance with the relevant proportions and
during the next 3 vears. The share options will be vested when the

certain performance conditions stated below are met.

At 31 December 2015, the directors of the Company estimated the
number of share options expected to vest was 8,811,229,
representing 1.45% of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

RRARBIER2015F6A0R BB 2
BRABRRABRESS(ER
BEtEl])  ZAENEIEENRAL
BEZ2EERHERD - BRES
MEXHAERE AHREOF - RiE
BREFE ARAREFEARAA
EREE(BRARAEERAEH
BE)RLBERE BREFIZN
20157 A7 B (BIA 2 & B 0 17 Bk
RETERETHB) £ -

R20155F7 R RRREEZEHIER
—HABEBARATEERERAD
BRHETELRE ZFaBEBARA
BHE2ERARNBESR 4B2ARAD
REBEKRE  RNABRREWE AR
ETREE - RIEBEREE 48R
AR AN ER AR R AR AR T
EEFER7I0ETRBARARAER
PR R2015F7 R RRARIEENG
REEANEBSHERK, 339,600
BERARBREMBARE TIE
B HERO,774,2001% B IR - &
P 15 AR 422 AR B L DI R R R 3 AR
RERHESEE - BRE/NTX
Pt 2 & T RBIGIERIEKERE ©

R2015612A31H AR A E=F
B BEMSEBNBERERE R
8,811220fn  IEARRI N % B E %
TR DY 1.45%
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The share opfions are exercisable according fo the following

29. B ST & ()

BREARE T LT

arrangement:
Locked-up Period
and Unlocking
Grantdate  Vesting condition Date
EEHK
RHBH BEBRMT fREEH
Tranche | July 2015 (1) Revenue increase by 5% and net profit affributable to the  The date which is
equity holders of the Company, excluding the non-recurring 12 months
expenses as defined in the Share Option Scheme, increase  from the grant
by 20% for the year ended 31 December 2015, compare date
fo the corresponding amountfs for the year ended 31
December 2014;
(2) Individual performance during the vesting period set by the
Company
ikl 2015678 (1) BZE2015F12A31BIEFEREREZE2014F gREBHR
12A31R IEFEE MR R ARG EZFEAARE smi2EA
EREFR(TEEBEREFE TR ZIFETFUER <2HAH
52 ) 3 AN 20%
2] ARRRENNEHEHANEAKRR
Tranche |l July 2015 (1) Revenue increase by 10% and nef profit affributable o the  The date which is
equity holders of the Company, excluding the non-recurring 24 months
expenses as defined in the Share Option Scheme, increase  from the grant
by 25% for the year ended 31 December 2016, compared ~ date
fo the corresponding amountfs for the year ended 31
December 2015;
(2) Individual performance during the vesting period set by the
Company
E8t 2015678 (1) BZE2016F12A31BIEFEREREZE2015F gREBHE
1I2A3TAIEFEEMIONR ARG EER A AR FHR24EA
EREFR(TEEBEREFEERZIFETFTUERN <2HH
) AN25%
2] ARFRENNEHEHANEAKRR
Tranche |l July 2015 (1) Revenue increase by 15% and nef profit affributable o the  The date which is
equity holders of the Company, excluding the non-recurring 36 months
expenses as defined in the Share Option Scheme, increase  from the grant
by 30% for the year ended 31 December 2017, compared ~ date
fo the corresponding amountfs for the year ended 31
December 2016;
(2) Individual performance during the vesting period set by the
Company
E=H#t 2015678 (1) BZE2017F12A31BIEFEREREZE2016F gRHEBHE
12A3TAIEFEEMISUR ARG EER A AR FHR36MEA
EREFR(TERBEREFEERZIFEFTUERN 2HH
) 3 AN 30% :
2] ARFRENNEHEHANEAKRR

Hit

30% of the total

4,834,1400% -

35% of the total

5,639,830/ -

35% of the total

5,639,830/ -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. ,E\ﬁ- HQ*E %;1_ %ﬂ (#8)

(1) The following table discloses the movement (1) TRIEBESEKERFT
of share options held by the Eligible AFMEENEREN
Grantees % B

Number of options
BREZE
Balance Granted Forfeited Lapsed Balance
at beginning during during during at end
Share options oftheyear  oftheyear  oftheyear  of the year  of the year
R FHE FREYE SrREK FARKER  EREH
Directors: -

Mr. Fang Zhifeng Dalrot = Jivket — 1,920,000 = (576,000) 1,344,000
Mr. Zhao Xingli T Sk — 1,520,000 = (456,000) 1,064,000
— 3,440,000 — (1,032,000) 2,408,000

Members of the senior BREERE

management: KE :

M:r. Su Jianging BEFRE — 2,850,000 = (855,000) 1,995,000
Mr. Li Wenfeng EXREE — 1,513,600 = (454,080) 1,059,520
Mr. Ren Jinhui FEEELE = 880,000 = [(264,000) 616,000
Mr. Chen longzhen PR [ 48 5 4 = 656,000 = (196,800) 459,200
— 5,899,600 — (1,769,880 4,129,720
Cerfain employees ETEE — 6,774,200 (137,500) (1,991,010) 4,645,690
Total @t — 16,113,800 (137,500) (4,792,890) 11,183,410

(2)

The exercise price is HKD7.1
determined by the direcfors of the Company.

The estimated fair value of the share options

granted on the date of grant

per share opfion and is

TEESSHBREZ1ET
HARREEERE -

(2) AR HBHKRENE
RS2 FE

Number of options

BREHE

Directors  Chief executives  Certain employee

Share options BBAR = BeTHAE ETEE
HKD HKD HKD

BT BT BIT

Tranche | F—H#t 3.24 3.24 2.63
Tranche |l £ 3.56 3.56 3.14
Tranche Il £ =4t 3.82 3.82 3.53




] 3 O ‘ Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F12A31 HILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Binomial Model option pricing model has been used fo
calculate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of
an opfion varies with different variables of certain subjective

assumption. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Directors

TTEEGET)
AR B W B R
£ 2 B ) 2

Exercise price (HKD)
Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

Year fo expiration I B3 4F 58
Expected volatility T8 50K @
Suboptimal exercise facfor RETERAR

Expected volatility was determined by using average historical
volafility of the price retum of the ordinary shares of the
comparable companies. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on directors’ best estimate, for the
effects of nonransferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral

considerations.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises ifs
estimates of the number of opfions that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
esfimates, if any, is recognised in the profit and loss over the
remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to

the share options reserve.

According to the vesting conditions, the directors of the
Company estimated the number of share options expected to
vest was 8,811,229 at the end of 2015. The Group
recognised the fotal expense of RMB4,683,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015 in relation to share options granted
by the Company.

29. BB R ST & ()

ARARRA AN BEEEE
DiEBERENRFE - AR
AEBEREATENERRRE
ROLDENEETNREMLF - B
RENEEES T EBERRA
ETEERMESH - MZERE
AR BB

Chief executives ~ Certain employees

THAER ETEER
7.1 7.1

0% 0%
1.37% 1.37%
5.56 5.56
60.82% 60.82%
2.5 1.5

BHKELDERTERAREBK
B @ | T E LR EEE - KA
FEANAHFHERBEFT LR
EAFT AR EREE TR RIT
REBRARZTZEBEHFE-

RBEHR AREETEH RN
REBNBRERE 2fhat - B/ R
BEFHTE(AE) R F &5 B 5
BN 1B ARER - 07 B8 IR R 4 1
HAREHREE -

RESBGE AR2AESHFR
5FEREHRHEE 2 BERESE
78,811,229 - KEBREE2015
F12A31 BB AR R R BB AR AR
R HFE AR 4,683,0007T °
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30. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

mEMBRERMEE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

30. REHE

REBEREEA

RI|BEHR NEBRET AT HEHL
EHENPRRERENKAES

leases which fall due as follows: HAWMT :
As at 31 December
M12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Minimum lease payments under operating %€ & 8 & & (K 1 & 4 5%
leases:
Within one year —F R 67,277 68,335
In the second fo fifth year F-EZRE 261,267 267,856
After five years A F 1% 157,432 214,785
485,976 550,976

Operating lease payments commitments represent rental payable by
the Group for the premises leased for hospitals and offices. These
leases were negofiated for lease terms of one to twenty years.
Monthly rental was fixed and none of the leases includes any

contingent rentals and renewal options.

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

REBMENKAERASEHES
R AMERNNES ZEFHED
MWEBMEERIZ206 - AEETE -
TEEMEARBEREORE-

1. EAXRESE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AR T T

Capifal expenditure in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated

financial statements

REEY X  BERRECFTL
BARREEMBEHRERRBEED
BEARX

17,472 Q2
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

33

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes
arising from its normal business operations. The directors believe,
based on the status of potential and active claims outstanding at the
end of each reporting period, and taking into consideration the
assessment and analysis of external lawyer and the total claim
exposure, provision of RMB822,000 was recognised in respect of
the medical dispute as at 31 December 2015 (2014:

RMBT,400,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTRIBUTION

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a statfemanaged
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC. The
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required fo contribufe a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the refirement benefit plan to
fund the employee benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions. The retirement benefit cost charged to profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB27,412,000
(2014: RMB21,005,000).

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

32.

33.

34.

Name Relationship
"L/ BB E2RES

From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2015
20141 HA1TAZE2015412H31H

Bosheng Medical
[EES-T

Dongguan Bosheng Medical Investment Co., Lid. * *
(REMBLEBRREEREMELR)
["Dongguan Bosheng Medical Investment”)

((REBLBRERE)D

Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital of Obstetrics and
Gynaecology Co., lid. **

(BEINEGEBREREERR)

["Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital”)

(B IMERERER])

HAEE

AEERAEXEBLESIENET
BEAOME/KRS BREZSHEH
RAARRNEBERBRBERBEER ML
ZRIIBEMOFEEDIITRER
B EERAR/M2015F 124 3]
HHBRERMUDEAAREKS22,0007T
(20144 : AR®1,400,0007T) & #
1o

iR K 18 £ =K

AEETEEESTEBNTZEN
BREEERAKENFTEKE - KA A
FEKERRARRENTFERAE
B b A 3R IR AR A RE B0 g5 DA B
NEERANMFAFRIE AEBEHR
REMGFENE BTN ELRE
B - B E2015F12A31 A IEF
EERGEHHERKRBANRASA
R#27,412,0007T (20144 : AR
21,005,0007T) °

BETXRS

Company under significant influence of Mr. Lin Yuming

EMEREEEATENR A

Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
BEBRNNE QA

Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
BAEBERAMHME R A
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. Eg E E 55 % (#8)

Name Relationship

Rt £2REA

Jincheng Modern Woman Hospital Co., Lid. * * Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical

(BHBERAZFBREREELRR) BAERBENNE R A

["Jincheng Modern Woman Hospital”)

(BHHEREZFER]

Shanxi Modern Hospital of Obstetrics and Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
Gynaecology Co., lid. ** 18 A B8 T A B B 2 A

(LARRGBEEBRERETAF)
["Shanxi Modern VWoman Hospital”)

(TR FERE])
Weihai Modemn Obstetrics and Gynaecology Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
Hospital Co., Ltd. * * HAEBBRNME QA

(BERKFEBRARAR)
["Weihai Modern Woman Hospital”)
(TEBRRFESR])

Xi'an liren Hospital Co., Ltd.* * Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
(ALBEABRBRQAF) 18 A B8 B 9 BT BB 2 A

["Xi'an Liren Hospital”)

(AzBAEK])

Yanji Bosheng Modern Woman Hospital Co., ltd. ** Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
(EEFERRLZFEBRAERAA) EAEREA N E QA

["Yanii Bosheng Modern Woman Hospital”)

(EEHERKLFER]

Zhoushan Modemn Woman Hospital Co., Lid. * * Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
(RILRRZFERBRAF) 8 A B I E A Al
["Zhoushan Modern Woman Hospital”)

(TALBRRZFE&ER)

Tianjin Hebei Modern VWoman Hospital* * Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical
(REFIERR LT EERARAR) A BRI B A A
Zhongshan Modern VWoman Hospital* * Subsidiary of Bosheng Medical

(FIURKFEHERAERAA) BAEBERAMHME R A
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. Bg EE 5\5 2 (#&)

(a) Name and relationship (Confinued) (o) & ERBKBER @
Name Relationship
o4 - E2RES
Gansu Taihetang Pharmaceutical Co., Lid. Company controlled by /v\r Lin Yurong
(HEAMEEZEFREELR) MELFTEZEFHA
["Gansu Taihetang”)
([HRAFED
Changsha Liren Hospital of Obstetrics Hospital organized by Mr. lin Yuguo
and Gynaecology Hospital MRE B 4 A 2R 9 BB B

(RAOPBAGERR)
" Chongsho Liren Hospital”)
(RAPBARERD

Hebei Modern Woman Hospital Co., Lid. Company controlled by Mr. Wu Yaping
CUitBERZFEBREERAR) R FREESINRA

["Hebei Modern Woman Hospital”)

(DR Rz F &)

Weihai HarMoniCare Clinic of Gynaecology* * * Company controlled by Mr. Wu Yaping
(BBFMEREFZ ) R FREESNA A

("Weihai HarMoniCare Clinic”)

(TEEMEPZ D)

Linfen Modern VWoman Hospital * Associate

(AR ZFBEREERAR) AN

Changsha Songziniao Hospital* Associate
(RAZXFREEETNZERBRAA) RN

Baotou Modem Maternity Hospital * Associate

(BRRAGEBRAREEAA) /N
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. Eﬁg ﬁiE 5‘5 E’ (#8)

(a) Name and relationship (Confinued) () & EBEBER@®

* These three entities are no longer related parties of the Group * R2014F HEHRBRER
after the disposal of the relevant equity interests in 2014. Z=RARTERAKEERN

RAED -

**  These related companies are no longer related parties of the R 2014EBEBERBILA
Group after the disposal of the relevant equity inferests to THERBEREL Z5H
independent individuals by Bosheng Medical in 2014. ERATERASENEE

5 e

***  The company is no longer a related party of the Group dfter the *rx o R2015F3A13EHREF
disposal of the relevant equity interests by Mr. Wu Yaping on EEHEMRBRERZ  AQ
13 March 2015. ATERAEENEES -

Related party transactions b) BELRS

(b)

For the year ended 31 December
BZI12A31BLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®BTT

Royalty and service fee paid to: NFATETOERER
BR75 &

Bosheng Medical (Note i) 18 A B (PRt i) 2,399 17,971

Purchase of trademark from: BEUTETBEARE:

Bosheng Medical [Note ii) 18 A B8 B (P i) 33,200 -

Notes: B 5

(i) The royalty and service fee are determined based on 2% of (i) FREEREBIZERER
revenue from specialised hospital services. PR UK 25 B0 2% 7€

(ii) On 5 March 2015, Harmonicare Medical entered into a (ii) 2015%3A58 @ fiEB8&EH
trademark ownership transfer agreement with Bosheng Medical. BEBERITLEFMARE
Pursuant to which Bosheng Medical transferred trademarks to EaEe B BEBRN
Harmonicare Medical at the consideration of RMB33.2 million. AR¥332BEE THREMR
The consideration was paid in 2015. MEBREZIRR - RES

R2015F X 1 o
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. Eg E E 5\5 2 (#&)
(b) Related party transactions (Confinued) (b) BERFR S am

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HLEE

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBET T ARETT

Sales of pharmaceuticals, medical devices [Al LA TN & 5 $H & 25 5 - BB &

and consumables fo: R B A

Dongguan Bosheng Medical Investment R =1 4 BB E K& N/A
E A 1,189
Gansu Taihetang HEAME - 68

Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital BREIMERERR N/A
TiE A 3,613

Jincheng Modern VWoman Hospital EWBERLFEE N/A
iE A 1,715

Shanxi Modern Woman Hospital IR EERR N/A
E A 6,892

Weihai Modern Woman Hospital BOBIRAIFESER N/A
FiE A 1,080

Xi'an Liren Hospital AREAEL N/A
ES 1 4,043

Yaniji Bosheng Modern Woman Hospital ~ (EF B AR 2 T & N/A
TE A 333
Changsha Liren Hospital ROB ALK - 3,683

Zhoushan Modern Woman Hospital AL IR A & F BB N/A
T A 159

Baotou Modem Maternity Hospital BERERLZFER N/A
TiE A 232

Linfen Modern VWWoman Hospital BRI R 2 F &R N/A
E A 2,351

Tianjin Hebei Modern Woman Hospital X338 46 38X £ B8 B . N/A
T8 A 2,089

Changsha Songziniao Hospital RORFREBMATZER N/A
TiE A 1,012

Zhongshan Modern Woman Hospital IR ER BB N/A
E A 1,633
Hebei Modern VWWoman Hospital AMIERR L F B 404 278
Weihai HarMoniCare Clinic BB MZEF 2 - 44
404 30,414
The above transactions were carried out in the ordinary course NERXRSGRAEEREXKA
of business of the Group and conducted in accordance with 12 IR T B AR E IR R

the ferms and conditions mutually agreed by both parties. R HEAT ©
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Related party balances

Amounts due from related parties

(c)

M. BEFRZ @

B E 5 4 BR
FEUR BB 75 7R IR

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Trade in nature BEZMHE
Amount due from a related company FE Uy — 8 B 3 A& Rl ZKIE
Changsha Liren Hospital ROBE ALK - 16

The following is an aged analysis of amounts due from the
related parties which are trade in nature based on the invoice

date at the end of each reporting period:

NMTREBREHRERERR
Hi B 5104 U E T 5OR
BT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETT
Not past due 78 5 - 16

The above receivables from related companies are
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interestfree and recoverable

within one year.

As at 31 December

W EERBRENAR
BetE BEW 28 BAR
—FREE -

Maximum amount
outstanding during the year
ended 31 December
MREBZE12B31HILEEE

M12A31H REBZRESEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARBTT AR®BTRT AR®TE

Non-trade in nature

FESMHE
Amount due from related & Uk 8 Bét N B IO
companies

Bosheng Medical 54 & -

50,527
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34.

(c) Related party balances (confinued)

Amounts due to related parties (Continued)

BEEIRSZwm

(c) BELE&Rw
FEAS B 75 TR IE (@)

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR¥ETT

Trade in nature BEZMHE
Amount due fo related companies JE B8 3 A RIRRIE
Bosheng Medical 1% 4 B - 1,486
Yanji Bosheng Modemn Woman Hospital %&£ IR K 2 T &z - |
Gansu Taihetang HEAM=E - 115
- 1,602

Bosheng Medical allows credit period of 90 days for royalty

and service fees.

The following is an aged analysis of amounts due to the related
parties which are trade in nature based on the invoice date af
the end of each reporting period:

BEBRERBERRBENRE
BHIROOR -

NTREREHRENRERR
HIWE 5 M E RN R E T R
AREC DT

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTT

0-3 months OZ=3EA

— 1,602
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. Eg ﬁiE 5‘5 2’ (#8)

(c) Related party balances (Continved) (c) BEE R &6k
Non-trade in nature FEEMHE

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR¥TT

Amount due fo related companies JE B8 3 A Rl RRIE
Bosheng Medical (Nofe i) BEEE(MED) - 278,590
Concord Glory [Note ii) Concord Glory (Fft 5% i) - 18,969
Chongging Modemn Woman Hospifal EERREKE
Investment — 190
— 297,749
Notes: B 5
(i) Included in the balance as at 31 December 2014 was an (i) 2014F12A31HH & &% 8
amount of RMB277,968,000, represented the payable to EREEREERMEETIER
Bosheng Medical for transfer of the equity interests in = &9 B #E i FE Y2 Sharp Charm
HarMoniCare Management and Consulting by Sharp Charm RAMEBEENREARE
and Harmonicare Medical. 277,968,000t ©
(ii) As at 31 December 2014, the balance represents the advance (ii) 2014F 12 A31H W & %
from Concord Glory to Galaxy Power. The balance was Bl Concord Glory 8 15 Galaxy
subsequently capitalised as share capital and share premium of Power®) 24 3K - #H B #5 #4 H
Galaxy Power in January 2015. B R2015F1H B X R
Galaxy Power B9 B 25 K2 B& 17 '
B
Amounts due to a shareholder FE A+ R R KR
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Lin Yuming R E BH — 1,050
The above outstanding amounts due to related parties are LI EA REE T MR EERBIAA
denominated in RMB, unsecured, noninterest bearing and R¥EAE BER 28 HAREX
repayable on demand. Amounts due to shareholders represent W (B o FE {5 AR 51 3K 78 B AL th FE 1<F AR

other payables to the shareholders. RFRIA -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. Eﬁ EE 3\5 E’ (#8)

il

(d) Remuneration of key management personnel d) *EEFEZEEEA
of the Group 7 A

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT

Salaries and allowance e AL 2,988 1,232
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes i K 18 F] 5 2l 4 7 47 27
Share-based payment & 1 & At 2,898 -
5,943 1,259
Further details of the Directors’ emoluments are included in EEHMFBEHNWEIS

Note 13.
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35. ¥ B 2 F

BERARAEEMBRA ZFBH
P e

35. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period

are set out below.

Equity interest attributable

to the Group
AEBEMGRE
Place and date of Issued and fully paid ordinary 31 31
incorporation/ share capital/ ~ December ~ December
Name of subsidiaries establishment registered capital 2015 2014 Principal activities
ERITRAE
AL/ BERRA/ 20158 2014%
WELAEEH B 3R A 5 AMER 12H3]E/| 12ﬂ31%|/ TEXH
Tai He Tang The PRC RMB5,100,000 100 100 Supply of
(LBAMEERXFRAR) il AE#5,100,0007T Pharmaceuticals
and medical
devices business
AL & B
i
%%
Wuhan Modem Obstetrics and The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Provision of
Gynecology Hospital Co., lid. 19 December 2005 ARH10,000,0007T Specialised
(RERRGEBREBRRA) I hospital service
("Wuhan Modern Woman Hospital”) 2005412 419H TR BRI RS
(TREBEAD
Chongging Modem Woman Hospital  The PRC RMB21,000,000 100 100 Provision of
EERA 31 March 2006 ARE21,000,0007% Specialised
3 hospital service
200663 A31H HRAE BRI E R
Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital. The PRC RMB4,210,000 95.5 95.5 Provision of
EEATEARL 13 April 2006 AERE4,210,0007¢ Specialised
H hospital service
200654 A13R PR BRI BERT AR
Cuiyang Modem Woman Hospital ~ The PRC RMB2,560,000 96.5 96.5 Provision of
EBRBER 5 April 2007 AE#2,560,00078 Specialised
i hospital service
200744 A5H PR SRR AR
Guangzhou Woman Hospital The PRC RMB10,000,000 Q7 Q7 Provision of
BN &+ B ]éju|y 2008 ARE10,000,0007% Speciohsed
i hospital service
200857 A16H PR SRR AR
Chongging Bosheng Management The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Holding company
BERRLER " 25 August 2008 AE#1,000,0005T ZERAT]
2008F8H25H
Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare  The PRC RMB6,000,000 97 97 Provision of
Hospital 27 March 2009 AE#6,000,0007T Specialised
BEEMME i hospital service
200963 A27H REE DR
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

MEBRREHE

Cuiyang HarMoniCare Hospital
ERMERR

Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare
Hospital

i)ﬁmﬁﬁﬂliéf

Shanxi Wo De Investment Co., Lid.
(WFREREGRAA)
("Shanxi Wo De Investment”)

(MuARERE])

Fuzhou Modem Woman Hospital Co.,
ltd.

(BMNBARGEBRERAR)
("Fuzhou Modem Woman Hospital"|
([RMBEL])

Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology
and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Lid.

(RIIMERmERBRERAA)
("Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital’)
(DRI

Beijing HarMoniCare Gynecology and
Paediatrics Hospital Co., Lid.

(krMERFEZERERQR)
("Beijing HorMoniCare Hospital’)
(MHEmFED)

Harmonicare Medical

eSS

HarMoniCare Management and
Consulting

(TD%gFMIEuau’EJ‘ﬁBE al)

Harmonicare Medical Investment
Limited
|"Harmonicare”)

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

EMAL,
B R B

The PRC
25 May 2009
i
2009F5A25H

The PRC
26 June 2009
H

2009F6H26H

The PRC
26 Ocfober 2009
i
2009F10H26H

The PRC

4 January 2010
HE

20101 4R

The PRC
29 July 2010
HhE
2010%7A29A

The PRC

14 June 2011
FE

201166 H14H

Hong Kong
15 July 2014
B

201447 A15H

The PRC
31 July 2014
FEI2014%7A31H

The BVI
27 August 2014
RBERES
20148 A27H

HE2015F12A318IEEE
35. it B A |

Issued and fully paid ordinary

share capital/
reglsfered capital
ERTRARE
EBRRE
HMEAR

RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007t

RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007t

RMB17,800,000
AR#17,800,0007c

RMB25,000,000
AR#25,000,0007t

RMB40,000,000
AR#40,000,0007t

RMB40,000,000
AR ¥40,000,0007t

HKD10,000
10,000%7T

RMB582,000,000/
RMBT,250,000,000

AR 582,000,0007t/
AR®1,250,000,0007T

USDO0.001
0.001%m

Equity interest attributable
to the Group

AEEEGRE

31 31

December  December

2015 2014

20155 2014%

12A318 12A31AH

% %

100 100

96.5 96.5

100 100

83 83

92 92

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Principal activities

TEEH

Holding company
and provision of
Specialised
hospito\ service

PR R A R
ERERRS

Provision of
Specialised
hospital service

REERBRRE
Holding company

? fl/\

Provision of
Specialised
hospital service

RSB RS

Provision of
Specialised
hospital service

} /\W%#EEH&%

Provision of
Specialised
hospno\ service

TR ER B R

Holding company

T rl./\

Holding company

T rl./\

Holding company

]{ fl/\
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35. ¥ B 2 B ()

Equity interest attributable

to the Group
AEEEGRE
Place and date of Issued and fully paid ordinary 31 31
incorporation/ share capital/ ~ December  December
Name of subsidiaries establishment registered capital 2015 2014 Principal activities
BRIRAR
L LBREA 2015% 20145
NGy B3 B B dMEAR 12A318 12A318 FE#EHK
% %

Galaxy Power The BVI USD200 100 N/A Holding company
27 August 2014 200%7T NER ERRAE
201468A27H

Sharp Charm Hong Kong HKD100 100 N/A Holding company
5 September 2014 1007 TER BERRE

EE
201449H5R

Beijing He An Da Management The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Holding company

Consulting Co., lid. 13 November 2014 ARE50,000,0007T AR
LTREREEREAFGRAA HE

('Beijing HAD'] 2014411 A138

([tREZE]
Note: |i) All the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are registered as B 3E - (i) B8 7 B o i A 52 |9 BT B

Limited liability companies under the PRC Law.

(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

ARBREPEEAREMS
BRRAA -

i) MAFEERBLHEENBL
AEBTENBERES

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 7 August 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in
Shenyang HarMoniCare Hospital to a close family member of Mr. Lin

Yuming for a cash consideration of RMB2,660,000.

36. HE—REMHEL A

M201458 78 » & & B #§ K i
BEMENEZHMRELE THE
RAEEaR ReRERARK

2,660,0007T °
Consideration received 2 WARE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash consideration received BEWRERE 2,660
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 36. Il:H % - FEﬁ Bﬁ % /Z\\ ﬁ.l (#&)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which RXEEHEZEERER
control was lost o

Year ended
31 December
2014
BZE2014%
12A31H 1t
FE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Current assets MEEE

Inventories TE 1,337
Trade receivables Z 5 WA 423
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B SR R K H Al e W RIR 5,352
Bank balances and cash IRITAEBR R © 398
7,510

Non-current assets FEMENEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB REH 33,758
Infangible assets BEE 312
34,070

Current liabilities mEBE

Trade payables B 5 R FRIE 3,658
Other payables and accruals H fth JE A 5RIA R €T B A 1,763
Amount due fo a related party JE <t B8 38 75 E 40,097
45,518

Non-current liabilities EMEBEE
Accrued rental expense st eRx 1,197

Net liabilities disposed of BEHEBEFHE (5,135)
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 36. ll:H % - FEﬁ Bﬁ % /ZA\ ﬁ.l (#&)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BMNEB A A zla
Year ended
31 December
2014
BZE2014%F
12A31H 1t
FE
RMB'000
AR T T
Consideration received BEWRE 2,660
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEREFHE (5,135)
Non-controlling interest FE 12 IR 2 (1,027)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary recognized iR Rz HE— RN EQ Rz Was
in equity (Note) (B =) 6,768
Note: The entire equity inferest in Shenyang HarMoniCare Hospital was M SRNESMEN 2 HRELE TR
disposed of to a related party of the Group as part of the SEO-—ZRBALTBEREAN —
Reorganization, and therefore, the gain on disposal of was recognized By Bt HEKRZRAEE#E
in equity of the Group. 2R o
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHRNBARZRE
FERA
Year ended
31 December
2014
BZE2014%F
12A31H 1t
FE
RMB'000
AR T T
Cash consideration received BERBEeRE 2,660
less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERERBEEEED (398

Consideration received in cash

BERREKE 2,262




] 46 | Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBERRNE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=20154F 12 A31 HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 37. ¢ T AR SR AR E
B

RISK MANAGEMENT

Categories of the financial instruments ST B¥ER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Financial assets: PRMEE
Lloans and receivables (Including cash and  EF R EW B (BERE &
bank balances) RITHEEBR) 1,266,735 92,148
Financial liabilifies: TREE
Amortised cost 5 Ak R 33,564 306,952

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, certificates of
deposit, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables
and amounts due to related parties. Defails of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial insfruments include market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
directors of the Company manage and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a fimely and

effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily fo the foreign currency risk

and interest rate risk, which details are described as follows:

Currency risk

The Group underiakes cerfain financing fransactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group tfo foreign currency risk. The
Croup does not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure fo currency risk. The directors of the Company manage ifs
currency risk by closely moniforing the movement of the foreign
currency rates and considering hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should such need arise.

TREREEBEREER

AEBENIZcHTIABRGKEESR
WOaRIR - Hofh e MR~ e AR E TS
fr‘ﬁlﬁoﬁm{i RiITEHERE B
2 FETBRIR  E At 85 5RIR K FE A5 R
BARB 2SR TANFIERE
MM ERE BRI AEBEN
RieEmsERk EERRNKRE
B AR - TXEIFEZZRRD
BER ARAREFERREEZER
B - R N A BURBUE S 16

35 B ke
AEEEYEEE YN ERR R
REB - FHERIWT

B % e
AEBEUIINERTLETRHERS

It T 369 0 B B o 7 S B A R A
MTERNE T EERRER - XA A
EETUERIEERTEBHUNERE
HE®ER SHREEEL EF
MEERBEHEANIMNERER
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 37. s I AR SR ERE
RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) g (#8)

Financial risk management objectives and tREMEEEERBE
po||C|es (Continued) (%)

Market risk (Continued) ™5 R ke @)

Currency risk (Continued) B (&)

RERESHR  NEEAINETTER
ENEEREREENREBERT

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monefary assefs and monetary liabilities as at the end of each

reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
af&E BE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12831H M12831H
2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTRT ARBTET

usb e 22,396 327,913 18,970
HKD BT Q 17,743 Q

22,405 345,656 18,979
Sensitivity analysis BRED M

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the HK dollar
and US dollar against RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against HK dollar and US dollar. 5% is the
sensifivity rate represents the direcfors’ assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their franslation to RMB at year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in postax profit where RMB weakens 5% against the US
dollar and HK dollar. For a 5% strengthening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on

the profit for the year, and the amounts below would be negative.

$E.Igﬁﬁfﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁf\ﬁ
I R B ) A B

TREINAEEHARBLETLR
55 7T BE IR 5% BURKE FE B 0 5%
MBRELERRESHINEEE
REAEEHNFMG BRENNE
BRERRBEIEHENERIAE - 1
BOUMIINEERZHHEZEEE
HERFRAARENBESR
RATFIEBRRT  ARBHETRE
LR ESUEBR A BB ME M- A
RELEMEETTESSS  FEF
BAeXEFEERARNEE 0 NE
BRERER-
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 37. €T AR SmEAKRE

RISK. MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

B @)

TR EREERBERBX
(%)

BRE 2 @)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBTT

Profit for the year FEAMHE
UNYD) ETT
HKD BT

12,297 (128)
665 =

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest risk in relation to variable-
rafe bank balances (see Note 24), which carry prevailing market
inferest. The group is also exposed tfo fair value inferest rafe risk in
relation to certificates of deposit with fixed returns (see Note 23). The
Group currently does not have a specific policy fo manage their
interest rate risk and have not entered info interest rate swap to hedge
its exposure, but will closely monitor their interest rate risk exposure in

the future.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been defermined based in the
exposure to inferest rates for non-derivative insfruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding af the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis
poinfs) increase in interest rate risk represents management's

assessment of the reasonably possible change in inferest rate.

If interests had been 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all the other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
fax profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 would increase/
decrease by RMB3,382,000 (2014: increase/decrease
RMB270,000). This is mainly affributable to the Group's exposure fo

inferest on its variable rate bank balances.

R = [ B
AEEEHERAEKTS A K
BZFRBRITAERRKE24) B
MRS REF KRR - AN & B I E e
B [ FE [ 3R 17 5K E (R KT 3£ 23) 2R
R ERXRRER - A& E B A&
EEAMERER A ERBEE  TFARIZ
MEEHEPRER BRARERIE
2 P TED 1 RO ) 2R LB

T B E 5 7

K THBEESTIIRERSE HRIE
TETAZNMEZRBMEE REAE
MOMBERINBERARZARENT
ERTAREZFYERET - MER
B 38 H0SOME £ B (2014 4F : 501E &
) ORKEEEHMNESEATRE
B aF A

fits 7 2= 32 90,8 4 501 £ 24 (2014
F:50MER) BB HEMESREF
g BIAREBEEHZE2015%12H3)
BLEEFE BB FEBEE MR A
R % 3,382,00070 (2014 4 : 3% fn,/
WA AR¥E270,0007T)  hEE
MR AEEEREEERITERZ

I 2= 2| B AT B o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 37. ¢ T E N SRIAEE

RISK. MANAGEMENT (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Credit risk

The Croup's maximum exposure fo credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due fo failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the Company have
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the directors of
the Company review the recoverable amount of each material
individual debt af the end of each of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group have concenfration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks. However, the credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the majority of the counterparties

are banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group's management monitors
and mainfains a reasonable level of cash and cash equivalents which
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the impacts of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management relies on the cash generated from operating activities as

the main source of liquidity.

B @

BRI 5 AT @)

= B R
AEMAXSUFHABITEEM
SEUBRANESEERARKA
CABMBRAEFISHEDERS
REEMIREE -

AREEERR ARAREFHIR)
MEREEEERSE FEEHLE
b BEHE AR Fr - RE AR BREUERAE 15 36 W @
BHER - W ARAREZTRZ R
SHRERSERNBILER AT
Bl & & - BRBSAIYE S EART
DHREBERE At XARE
ERR/AKENEERRABREE -

HNERREBRRITHRBES - K
SEEHEREETERR AW AR
REZBERZGHUFHTREERIFNER
T #REERFEVNEERR
AR

B & = E R
EERDECTRBE AEBEERE
ERRARERBEHANEA S IR
EFEEMEEKF UEREAEE
LEMFESYERRERENRDY
IRE - ERERBELEEDMER
THEREENRBES IR
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 37. ¢ TE R S EAKRE

RISK. MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
po|icies (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables details the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabiliies based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

B @)
tREREEREZENNKE

(&)

BRI 5 AT @)

REE 2R (#)
TRFMAEMIETELBEBH
FpahEs X2 BBEENAE
BAEANKNSEENNSRE
EHREBBESRERE -

Over
On demand 1 month Total
or within but within  undiscounted Carrying
one month 3 months cash flows amount
RELIR
RERDY BEeERE
1MEAR 1Z3E8 A 4BEE BREIE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETRT ARBTT AR®TR

As at 31 December 2015 R2015%F

12A31H
Financial liabilities s@mas
Trade payables 2 S REN A 25,392 3,102 28,494 28,494
Other payables H b pE 1B 4,294 776 5,070 5,070
Total At 29,686 3,878 33,564 33,564
As at 31 December 2014 A20144

12A31H
Financial liabilities EHmEeE
Trade payables B S ENNRIE 13,418 2,946 16,364 16,364
Other payables H ith fE A~ 3R IE 3,458 5,698 9,156 Q.156
Amount due fo related parties & 1< B & 5 3K 18 281,432 — 281,432 281,432

Total et 298,308

8,644 306,952 306,952
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 37. £ mtTEAR SR AR E

RISK. MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost at

the end of the reporting period approximated their fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to confinue as a going concern, while to maximise the refurn
fo the equity holders of the Company through optimisation of debt and
equity balances. The Group's overall sftrategy remains unchanged

during the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts [which include
amounts due to related parties, net of cash and cash equivalents) and
equity affributable fo equity holders of the Company.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on the recommendation of management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through issue of new shares,

issue of new debts as well as the redemption of existing debs.

39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no significant events after the reporting period.

38.

39. 4

B @)

EMTHEHZAFEE

RAANENEREERSRARN
FHEEREAFERES -

EXEBERE

FEBENEAERABRRERAE

BERESAELE AREBELE
BHEEAFE  SARBEDZFTEA
FHMERALF - FA - AEBEWER

HH TS -

AEENEARBEREFER (B
ENBETRE NRRSEAS
FEM RARARAFE ARIGE

N3
S o
I

ARAEESBFTERITELRRE -
ARABEERTBEFERER
AR R RERNEEOERR - RIE
ERENES AKRESBEBETH
- BTHEBERBERAEEHER
HERRBOEEFE-

HEH®KREE

REERRYEEMEKRFTEHE -



] 5 2 | Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE U RR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=20154F 12 A31 HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

40. & ¥ B Bf # AR R =

THE COMPANY
As at 31 December
MW12B31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Non-current asset FEMBEE
Investment in subsidiaries (Note i) KB AR E (M st 658,435 =
658,435 =
Current assefs MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FB {3 ~ 1% & & H fth & I 50 IE 721 2,616
Certificates of deposit T 320,984 —
Bank balances and cash RITER LIRS 429,293 -
750,998 2,616
Current liabilities mEBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE @] 17,224 4,637
Amounts due fo related parties JR& 1< B 3 05 FRIA - 620
Other payables H i & 14 58 300 4,752
17,524 10,009
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE(BR)FE 733,474 (7,393
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAEGE 1,391,909 (7,393
Net assefs (liabilities) EEER) FE 1,391,909 (7,393
Capifal and reserves BARK#E
Share capital N 608 —
Share premium and reserves (Note ii) % 19 4 (B K {5 4 (FfT s i) 1,391,301 (7,393)
Tt sy B 1,391,909 7,393)
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Financial Summary

— in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE20154F 12 A31 HILFE

40. XD B B RN R @)

B E
— RIZEIFR RS RS 2ER

For the year ended 31 December

HZEI12A31ALEE

2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS AR
Revenue & 909,362 935,839 833,200 750,262
Profit before tax & F5 A A1) 141,967 139,327 87,489 35,686
Income tax expense Frefim% (31,566) (34,198 (21,774) (14,793)
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A FIJ 58 K & @
income for the year Nk 110,401 105,129 65,715 20,893
Attributable to: LATR & 5 FEfh :
Equity holders of the ZAN/NECTR 35
Company BHHA 106,173 103,379 66,839 30,565
Non-controlling inferests JEIE R RE S 4,228 1,750 (1,124) (9,672)
110,401 105,129 65,715 20,893
As at 31 December
MI12B31H
2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTxT AR®TRT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets 188 E 1,628,061 384,821 457,447 484,656
Total liabilities BE & (217,096) (484,319) (524,659) (487,785]
1,410,965 (99,498) (67,212) (3,129)
Equity affributable to VAN % 75 FE1h -
Equity holders of the ZAYNETE: £
Company ESE=N 1,408,909 (97,279) (61,479) 4,175
Non-controlling inferests FEERE R 2,056 (2,219) (5,733) (7,304)
1,410,965 (99,498) (67,212) (3,129
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE

Notes:

(i

(i)

COMPANY (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s balance of investments in
subsidiaries represents ifs investment cost of USD6,195,000 (2014:
USD1), the deemed investments arising from the waiver of amounts due
from subsidiaries amounting to RMB617,767,000 (2014: nil) pursuant
to the relevant writtlen statfements made by the Company during the year
and the deemed investments arising from the equity seftled share based
payments amounting to RMB2,669,000 (2014: nil).

40. 7~ 7 B AR OR R @)

(i) R2015F12A318 » &R AR K
BRAIZERAKBABERERA
6,195,000 7L (201445 : 1%&7T) »
REARBDRFANELZEBE
MERRCEWINE QR REE
EZRERE ARKGO7,767,000
TL(014%F : )P UBER/HZ
BROXNEEZBIEREARE
2,669,0007T (20144 : £&) »

(i)

Attribute to owners of the Company

LN 2PN
Share
Share Share option Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
BRA RIVEE BREGGE 25TE1E #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBETRTE ARETT ARBTT ARBTT AREBTE
Balance at 1 January 2014 R2014F1 188
b oS - - - - -
Loss and tofal comprehensive & [E & 18 K& 2 A
income for the year R — - - (7,393) (7,393)
Balance af 31 December M2014512A31H
2014 ) 75 4 — - — (7,393 (7,393
Profit and fotal comprehensive £ A FlJ 5 & 2 m W A
income for the year HEE — — — (760) (760)
Capital injection T E 91 278,212 = — 278,303
Capitalisation issue AT 363 (363) - - -
Issue of new shares on the EIREE AT
global offering 154 1,160,888 — — 1,161,042
Costs of issue of new shares B 4TH7 A% 15 2 A A - (43,9606 - - [43,966)
Expenses recognised on MRS E 2 IR H
equity seftled share-based TR ZALZ
payments = = 4,683 = 4,683
Balance at 31 December M2015F12AH31 8
2015 ) 45 B 608 1,394,771 4,683 (8,153) 1,391,909
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Financial Summary

B A

RIBE BRI BEREER

For the year ended 31 December
HEI12A31BLEFE

2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT AREFTIT AR®BTT
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mE¥EE
Revenue U == 909,362 35,839 833,200 750,262
Profit before tax 3 A1 A E 141,967 139,327 87,489 35,686
Income fax expense Fri5 % & A (31,566) (34,198) (21,774) (14,793)
Profit and total comprehensive FRFER2ERA
income for the year Fak el 110,401 105,129 65,715 20,893
Attributable fo: AT AL :
Equity holders of the Company ARNBERFEEA 106,173 103,379 66,839 30,565
Non-controlling interests IR 4,228 1,750 (1,124) (9,672)
110,401 105,129 65,715 20,893
As at 31 December
M®12A831H
2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARKETT AR®TR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 1,628,061 384,821 457 447 484,656
Total liabilities wARE (217,094) (484,319) (524,659) (487,785)
1,410,965 (99,498) (67,212) (3,129
Equity attributable to AR A LA :
Equity holders of the Company RRARIEREFAA 1,408,909 (97,279) (61,479) 4,175
Non-controlling interests SRR 2,056 (2,219) (5,733) (7,304
1,410,965 (99,498) (67,212) (3,129




"AGM”
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"Articles of Association” or
"Arficles”

[ER2 4R 408

“Audit Committee”

[BRZER]

“Beijing HarMoniCare
Hospital”

Bl e ES

"Board” or "Board of Directors”

[EEg

"Bosheng Medical”

[18 4 58 5 |

“BVI”
[REEREE]

“CDH Harmony”
[ CDH Harmony |

"CDH I"
[ i — )

“CDH Jiangen”
[ R

"CG Code”
[EEERTH

“China” or "PRC"

[ B
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annual general meeting of the Company

ARABEREAFRE

the articles of association of the Company adopted on @ June 2015 which became

effective on the Listing Date, as amended from time to time

RABR2015FO6AOBMMIL N L B AERNBRRME (EAFERT)

the audit committee of the Board
EEGERLES

Beijing HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Lid. (1t FF13EER 52 BB
BR2AF]), a limited liability company established in the PRC and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

IRMERRERAERAR EFEKINERAT  RARAI2EWERQ T

the board of Directors of the Company
KAFREFE

Bosheng Medical Invesiment Co., ld. ({HAEBBERERMDER AT, which was
established in the PRC on 24 December 2007 as a joint sfock limited liability company,
a connected person to our Company by virtue of Mr. Lin Yuming, one of our Directors and
substantial Shareholders, holding 37.43% of equity inferest in Bosheng Medical Investment
Co., lid.

HERBRKERGERAF - R2007F 124240 EF K - mRHBERR
Ale- ARARREFRIEZERAMEBEEREFELEZRRERNERAA
37.43% M - Z N BIRANRRIFEAL

the British Virgin Islands

CDH Harmony Limited
CDH Harmony Limited

Tianjin Dinghui Private Equity Fund | (Limited Partnership)
RESERERE—HEL(ARAH)

Shanghai Dinghui Jiangen Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership)
tERERREEREABLEERAR)

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

LRI SR AR E Y B EE AT R

the People’s Republic of China; for the purpose of this annual report only, references to
"China” or the “PRC" do not include Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region
and Hong Kong

hEARANME: SRAFHEMEPEINEAL TEERE  BFIFRITR
B NEE



"Chongging Dushi Liren
Hospital”

[EEHTREAER

"Chongging Fuling
HarMoniCare Hospital”
[EEEEMEER]

“Chongging Modermn Woman
Hospital”

[BEERK]

“Chongging Wanzhou
HarMoniCare Hospital”

[EE&MMxE]

"Company” or “our Company”

or "Harmonicare

RNCIIEARIES ¥ -3

"Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ 2= A% B B

"Corresponding Period”
[ &) 5]

"Directors”

[E=]

vy
(84 4]

"Fuzhou Modern Woman
Hospital”
[t IR

"GMP Certificate”
[GMPR &

MEEFERERAT F3 2015 ‘ ]57

Chongqjing Dushi Liren Hospital Co., lid. (EE#HEBABRAR AT ), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of our Company
EEMTREBABRARAR  ETFREKINBERAT  RARRZIE2ENE

NGC]

Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., lid. (EEF
BEFEIRERERER AT, a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of our Company

ERFRENMEFRESRERAR ETPEKINEARAR REARRIZIEE
B A A

Chongging Modem Woman Hospital Company lid. (EE R 2 FE R AR A7), a
limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
EERRZFERARAT  ETFEKIOHBERAT  RARAZ2EMBER
A

Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Lid. [ &
BE 8 M A 3 7 2 B B B BR 2 @), previously known as Chongging Wanzhou Bosheng
HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., lid. (2 B B M 18§ 4 = 45 &=
& Bt A BR 22 71), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of our Company
EEBMNNEGEBRARARNGIBEEEMNBEMERESRRKBERAAF)
ERBERINERAF  RARAZIZENBRF

Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in  the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 26 August 2014

MEBBEERERRA - —HR2014F8 20 EREHEAMA YN ERE
(Ea/NE]

has the meaning ascribed therefo under the Listing Rules

BB ETMRAPMETHRE

the year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A3181L2F

directors of the Company

RRRE=E

financial year

MREFE

Fuzhou Modem Woman Hospital Co., Ud (EINIRARIFFIERABRAF]), a limied
liability company esfablished in the PRC, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of our Company
BMNRRERERAR  ETRREKINERLDR RARAZIEEZEMNBERA

The Good Manufacturing Practices for Pharmaceutical Products Cerfificate
(B HELEEERRIEES)



"Group”, “our Group”, “we"” or
us

[RS8 3 M3 A

"GSP Certificate”
[GSPRR &

“Guangzhou Woman Hospital”
[N % F %&b )
"Guiyang Modem VWoman

Hospital”
[ESIRA]

"Guiyang HarMoniCare
Hospital”

[ & 5 0 3 B Br

“Harmony Care”

[Harmony Care |

"HarMoniCare Management

and Consulting”
[ A3 E 12 3
“Homecare”

[Homecare |

"HKEX"
[FEBXZ 5]

“Hong Kong"” or “"HK"
(&%)

“IFRS”
[ B F% B 7 e &5 22 A

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

[(BYE=7]
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the Company and its subsidiaries
/NS D E TN EE N

The Good Supply Practices for Pharmaceutical Products Certificate

(R EEESEERERE)

Guangzhou Woman Hospital Co., Uid. (& M Z F & iz B R 2 7), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

BEMZFERERAR EFBEKNINERAR  RARBZIZENBE AR

Guiyang Modern Woman Hospital Co., Uid. [BES R R Z FEB BR 2 7 ), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
EGRRLZFERARAR ERPBERINBRAT  RARAZFER2ENE

NCT)

Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., (& % f £ 7 &= B it A
R 2 7] ), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on May 25, 2009, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

EEMEREBR AR DA - R2009F5A25 B AR BEFEMAZHABRAA -
RARRZ2EMBERA

Harmony Care International Investment Limited

Harmony Care International Investment Limited

HarMoniCare Medical Management and Consuliing Co., lid. (FIEBEEIR#EAGR
A 7] ), previously known as HarMoniCare Medical Investment Co., ltd. [FIEE& &L EH
FR/AR]), o limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

MEBEEESAERAA(AIBMEERREBRAR)  £FEKIHER
NE BARFIZEZEANB AR

Homecare International Investment Limited

Homecare International Investment Limited

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
BEAEXGREEMABR AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEBF TR R

Infernational Financial Reporting Standards
B % B 75 e 5 22 R

an individualls) or a companylies) who or which is/are not connected [within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) with any directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders (within
the meaning of the Listing Rules) of us, our subsidiaries or any of their respective associates
HEM BMONBEARSEESAFMNBEANES THRAHIEERE
(EmiRBIfEEE)BEBE(EMAUMERE) MEALAT



"PO"
[BERAFHEE]
“listing Date”

[ 7 A8

“listing Rules”

[EmRAI

"Memorandum of Association”

[4 4% = 72 K4 ]
"Model Code”
[T 2= Al]

“Nomination Committee”

fEERZER]

"PRC GAAP"
[PEARERA

“Prospectus”

[HEEERE]

"Relevant period”

[ BE B

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FHEE =

“Review Period”

= 8 B A

B R 0]

MEEFERERAT F3 2015 ‘ ]59

initial public offering of Shares and listing of the Group on the Stock Exchange on 7 July
2015
REBMRPR015F7A7ERBRXAERAHEERO R EH

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commenced on the Stock Exchange i.e. 7
July 2015
B ERFARRBEXMETZBHBI2015F7A7H)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from fime
to time

B3P E 5 £ TR B (B ERT)

the memorandum of association of the Company adopted on @ June 2015, as amended
from time to time

ARARNR2015F6 AR RMMABEIRRNE (B AKEF)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers confained in
Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules
EHRBMEIOMB LT HETAESTETESFRINELETH

the nomination committee of the Board

ExeR%%EE

the generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC
PEARHEERA

the prospectus dated 25 June 2015 issued by the Company
ARARIFENBRA2015F6A2BMBRER

the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2015
EFTHBE2015F12A31 BEHE

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExeyMzEe

the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
2015F 1 AT HZE2015F12H31 HHHE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE PBEZEEEY

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BEAESRMESHERZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

R  BRIAEMTRNERNEBEMNFES/ EF 5 ELAE KD



"Sharels)"
A& 17 ]

"Shareholder(s)”
['A% 2R |

"Share Option Scheme”

[f8 RchE =t 2

"Shenyang HarMoniCare”
&S ME ]

"Shenzhen HarMoniCare

|u

Hospita

2RI ES

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk <2 Py |
“Tai He Tang”

[KME]

“Written Guidelines”
[Em#ESl]

“Wuhan Modern Hospital”

[EERK]

“YoY”
12 ]
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sharels) with par value of HK$0.001 each in the capital of the Company
RRFRAHEREEOC.001H TTHIR G

holder(s) of the Share(s)
[EELEEE=DN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders on 9 June 2015 which became effective on the Listing Date
RARERBRRN2015F6AQRBBH —FHIRFRB R IRA e BE IR E T 2
(BER EMHABER)

Shenyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., ltd. (25137 &= &
BT A BRAE]), which was divested by the Group in August 2014
BHEANEREBREARRAA  REER2014568 AEEN QA

Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., ltd. (&YIIFIZELF T,
TIE&FT AR A R]), previously known as “Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology Hospital
Co., Ud. [(FRIIFIERBFEIEEBR)" a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

RINMEBREBEREGR DT GIERINMEFRER)  EPBEKINERA
Al RAREIEREWNE XA

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMEAERIMBR AT

Shanxi Tai He Tang Pharmaceuticals Co., Utd. (1L 78 K F1 % %2 25 B R 2 A, a limited
liability company esfablished in PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
IWFAAMEELERQA  EFEXNINERAR  RARAEZENE R A

written guidelines on securities fransactions by employees

BEETEFRXZHNE@MIES

Wuhan Modem Obstefrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Lid. (% 3R X 1% 2 & Ft B R
A 8]}, alimited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

RERRGEBRBERRA  EHBEKIHNERRAT  BEARAZ2EMB R
A

year-on-year

EFFH

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “connected AR F R B X E BB FIEIN B2
transaction”, “subsidiary” and  “substantial shareholder” shall have the  AJ TEIEA L] -[EEX S| - [WEBAF
meanings given fo such ferms in the Listing Rules, unless the context otherwise  RIEBREBIEAHF EmRAIFME T 5

requires.

AR H R o






	Cover

	Inside Front

	Contents

	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis

	Directors and Senior Management
	Directors’ Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Definitions
	Back Cover




